
 

  10/17/20 

OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA #1007 
 

DATE: October 21, 2020 
 
PLACE: Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 in regard to the COVID-19 

Pandemic, special procedures will be followed for this board meeting. The meeting will be 
conducted via teleconference/video conference. Members of the public will have the right to 
observe the meeting using this link: www.opusd.org/livestream. Members of the public may 
offer public comment as provided on page 2 of this agenda. 

 
TIME: 5:00 p.m. Closed Session 

6:00 p.m. Open Session 
 
The Mission of the Oak Park Unified School District is to provide students with a strong foundation 
for learning, which meets the challenge of the present and of the future through a balanced 
education, that includes academic achievement, personal growth and social responsibility. 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Barbara Laifman, President  
Allen Rosen, Vice President 

Drew Hazelton, Clerk 
Derek Ross, Member 

Denise Helfstein, Member 
Charlotte Robertson, Student Board Member 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                                 Educating Compassionate and Creative Global Citizens 

 
ADMINISTRATION 

Dr. Anthony W. Knight, Superintendent 
Ragini Aggarwal, Executive Assistant 

Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent, Business & Administrative Services 
Stewart McGugan, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 

Dr. Jay Greenlinger, Director Curriculum and Instruction 
Enoch Kwok, Director, Educational Technology & Information Systems 

Susan Roberts, Director, Pupil Services 
Brendan Callahan, Director Bond Program, Sustainability, Maintenance and Operations 

Sara Ahl, Director Extended Care Programs 
 

COPY OF ENTIRE AGENDA ON WEB SITE - https://www.oakparkusd.org/Page/9952 

http://www.opusd.org/livestream
https://www.oakparkusd.org/Page/9952


 

  10/17/20 

INDIVIDUALS WHO REQUIRE SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN A BOARD MEETING, 
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO AN AMERICAN SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETER, DOCUMENTATION IN 
ACCESSIBLE FORMATS, OR ACCOMMODATIONS DUE TO THE ELECTRONIC FORMAT OF THIS MEETING, 
SHOULD CONTACT THE SUPERINTENDENT’S OFFICE 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING TO ENABLE THE 
DISTRICT TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE ACCOMMODATION AND ACCESSIBILITY 
TO THIS MEETING. PHONE (818) 735-3206 or e-mail: raggarwal@opusd.org 
 
Welcome to a meeting of the Oak Park Unified School District Board of Education.  Routine items are placed under the 
Consent Calendar and are approved by a single vote of the Board.  When the agenda is adopted, a member of the Board may 
pull an item from the Consent Calendar and transfer the item to an appropriate place on the agenda for discussion. 
 
PURSUANT TO EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20, THE BOARD MEETING ROOM IS CLOSED. TO FIND OUT HOW 
YOU MAY ELECTRONICALLY ATTEND THE BOARD MEETING AND PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT PLEASE 
READ THE FOLLOWING GUIDELINES: 

 
Members of the public will have the right to observe the meeting using this link: www.opusd.org/livestream 
 
Public Comments may be submitted via this link http://www.opusd.org/PublicComments. If you wish to make a comment 
regarding a matter on the agenda or within the board’s jurisdiction please submit your comment via the form accessed by 
the above link by 6:00 p.m. on October 21, 2020. Although not required, please submit all of the requested information.  In 
keeping with the reasonable time regulations described below, every effort will be made for your name and comment to be 
read by the Board President, and your comment will be placed into the item’s record at the Board meeting. Comments on a 
matter related to an item on the Agenda may be submitted prior to the meeting and during the meeting using the above link. 
 
This public comment form will be open to members of the public 30 minutes (at 4:30 pm) prior to the closed session of the 
public meeting which begins at 5:00 pm. This form will take the place of the “yellow speaker cards” available at in-person 
meetings.  

 
The President of the Board will inquire if there is anyone in the audience who desires to address the board with respect to 
any item appearing on the regular meeting agenda, or on any issue within the jurisdiction of the Governing Board.  Individual 
speakers will be allowed three minutes to address the Board on each agenda or non-agenda item. The Board shall limit the 
total time for public input on each item to 20 minutes. With Board consent, the Board president may increase or decrease 
the time allowed for public presentation, depending on the topic and the number of persons wishing to be heard. Due to the 
electronic nature of this meeting and to maintain the integrity of providing an opportunity for public comment, every effort 
will be made to read your comment into the record. In order to ensure that non-English speakers receive the same opportunity 
to directly address the Board, Google Translate will be used to translate any emails to the Superintendent’s Executive 
Assistant at raggarwal.opusd.org who will receive and submit the public comments in open session. 

 
Your comments are greatly appreciated. However, in regard to comments which are not on the agenda, the Board cannot 
enter into a formal discussion at this time, nor can a decision be made.  Matters warranting discussion will be placed on a 
future agenda.   Thank you for your cooperation and compliance with these guidelines. 
  
All Board Actions and Discussions are electronically recorded and maintained for thirty days.  Interested parties may 
review the recording upon request. Upon request by a student's parent/guardian, or by the student if age 18 or older, the 
minutes shall not include the student's or parent/guardian's address, telephone number, date of birth, or email address, or the 
student's name or other directory information as defined in Education Code 49061. The request to exclude such information 
shall be made in writing to the secretary or clerk of the Board. (Education Code 49073.2) 

 
NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 
Closed Session at 5:00 p.m.           Open Session at 6:00 p.m. 

AGENDA IS POSTED AT THE – OPUSD WEBSITE:   https://www.oakparkusd.org/Page/9952 
 

 

mailto:raggarwal@opusd.org
http://www.opusd.org/livestream
http://www.opusd.org/PublicComments
https://www.oakparkusd.org/Page/9952


 

  10/17/20 

OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
AGENDA – REGULAR BOARD MEETING #1007 

October 21, 2020 
 

CALL TO ORDER – Followed by Public Comments/5:00 p.m.   
CLOSED SESSION: 5:00 p.m.  

OPEN SESSION: 6:00 p.m. 
 
Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 in regard to the COVID-19 Pandemic, 
special procedures will be followed for this board meeting. The meeting will be conducted via 
teleconference/video conference. Members of the public will have the right to observe the meeting 
using this link: www.opusd.org/livestream. Public Comments may be submitted via this link 
http://www.opusd.org/PublicComments 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER: _______ p.m. 
  
II. PUBLIC SPEAKERS – CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS 
 
III. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION ON THE 
FOLLOWING ITEMS: 
 

A. SUPERINTENDENT’S GOALS  
 

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE: Government Code 
Section 54957  
 

C. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT : Student Workers Technology, Computer 
Technician, Instructional Assistant I Grade Level, Temp Instructional Assistants I – 
Literacy & Numeracy, Temp Instructional Assistant I Literacy and Reading, 
Instructional Assistants I Literacy and Reading, Instructional Assistant II Special 
Education, Instruction Assistant III Behavior 

 
D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- EXISTING LITIGATION : 

(Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) 
Name of Case : OAH No. 2020090177  
 

E. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS : Government Code 54957.6  
Agency designated representatives: Adam Rauch and Stewart McGugan 
Employee organizations: Oak Park Teachers Association & Oak Park Classified 
Association  

 
IV. CALL TO ORDER – RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION AT:  ________ p.m. 

A. ROLL CALL  
B. FLAG SALUTE 
C. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS TAKEN  
D. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

http://www.opusd.org/livestream
http://www.opusd.org/PublicComments


 

  10/17/20 

V. PUBLIC SPEAKERS:  SPEAKERS ON AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
VI. OPEN COMMUNICATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 

A.  BOARD REPORTS/DISCUSSION/COMMUNICATIONS 
1. Presentation of Partners in Education Award to Brandon McFadden 
2. Presentation of Partners in Education Award to Judie Berro 
3. Remarks from Board Members 
4. Report from Student Board Member  
5. Remarks from Superintendent 
6. Report from Oak Park Education Foundation 
7. Report from the Technology Department by Mr. Enoch Kwok, Director of Technology 
8. Update on COVID-19 Impact on Oak Park USD Schools  

  
B. BUSINESS SESSION: 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 
 Consent items shall be items of a routine nature or items for which no Board discussion is 

anticipated and for which the Superintendent recommends approval. 
  
 At the request of any member of the Board, any item on the Consent Agenda shall be removed 

and given individual consideration for action as a regular agenda item. 
a. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting September 15, 2020 and Board 

Retreat Meeting held on October 4, 2020, and Special Closed Session Meetings held 
on October 14, 2020 and October 16, 2020 
Board Bylaw 9324 requires Board approval of minutes from previous meetings 

b. Approve Public Employee/Employment Changes 01CL24751-01CL24779 & 
01CE10426-01CE10507 
Board approval required for public employee employment and changes 

c. Ratify Purchase Orders - September 1 – September 30, 2020 
Board Policy 3300 requires Board approval of Purchase Orders 

d. Approve Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints – October 2020  
Education Code 35185 requires Board approval of each quarterly report regarding complaints 
related to instructional materials, teacher vacancy or misassignment or facility conditions 

e. Approve the Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Instructional Materials, Books, and/or 
Library Books 
Board approval is required to dispose of obsolete or surplus instructional materials 
 

 ACTION 
2.   BUSINESS SERVICES  
a. Approve Resolution #2020-20 Authorizing the Issuance of Oak Park Unified School 

District General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
Board approval required for Authorizing the Issuance of refunding bonds 

b. Approve Resolution No. 2020-21, Applying for State Grant Funding Beyond State 
Bond Authority for Measure S Modernization Projects, 18-20 S Red Oak 
Elementary Modular Replacement 
Board is required to adopt a resolution acknowledging State Bond funding limitations prior to 
filing Modernization funding applications to the State 

c. Approve Service Contract for District's Security Camera System 
Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

d. Approve Acceptance of Donation 
Board Policy 3290 requires Board approval for donation to the District or District Schools 



 

  10/17/20 

    3.   CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
a. Approve Revised GPA Designation on the Oak Park High School Transcript 

Oak Park High School is proposing the removal of the UC and Cal Grant GPA from the 
transcript 

b. Approve Addendum to the Career Technical Education Incentive Grant (CTEIG) 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Ventura County Office of 
Education and Oak Park USD 
The Board approved the CTEIG MOU with Ventura County Office of Education at the June 30, 
2020 meeting. The Addendum is to accept additional funds beyond the initial MOU amount 

 
4.   HUMAN RESOURCES 
a. Approve Revised Memorandum of Understanding Between Oak Park Unified 

School District and the Oak Park Teachers Association Regarding Instruction in 
the Hybrid Learning Model for Elementary Schools  
Board approval required for Memoranda of Understanding with collective bargaining units 

b. Approve Memorandum of Understanding Between Oak Park Unified School 
District and the Oak Park Teachers Association Regarding Instruction in the 
Hybrid Learning Model for Secondary Schools  
Board approval required for Memoranda of Understanding with collective bargaining units 

 
5.   BOARD 
a. Approve Board Goals for 2020-2021  

Board approval required for 2020-2021 Board Goals which were reviewed at the October 4, 
2020 Board Retreat 

b. Approve Revised 2020 Governance Handbook  
Board approval required for 2020 Governance Handbook which was reviewed at the October 4, 
2020 Board Retreat 

c. Review and Approve 2020-2021 Moral Imperatives and District Goals  
Board  approval required for the 2020-21 Moral Imperative and Goals which were reviewed at 
the October 4, 2020 Board Retreat 

 
 6.   BOARD POLICIES 

a. Approve Amendment to Board Policy and Exhibit 3555 Nutritional Program 
Compliance – First Reading 
Board Policy updated to reflect NEW STATE REGULATIONS (Register 2020, No. 21) which 
provide that complaints regarding meal counting and claiming, reimbursable meals, eligibility 
of children or adults, or use of cafeteria funds and allowable expenses should be submitted 
directly to the California Department of Education (CDE), and complaints alleging 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability should be 
submitted to the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA). Complaints regarding other program 
requirements or other bases for discrimination are to be investigated and resolved at the district 
level. Policy also deletes the USDA nondiscrimination statement that must be included on all 
forms of communication regarding program availability, which is now presented in the 
accompanying exhibit. New exhibit presents the USDA statement, formerly in BP 3555, which 
must be included on all forms of communication available to the public regarding the 
availability of child nutrition programs in order to advise the public of the district's status as an 
equal opportunity provider and the address of the agency with responsibility to handle 
complaints against the district. 

b. Approve Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5144.1 
Suspension and Expulsion Due Process – First Reading 
Board Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 419) which prohibits districts  



 

  10/17/20 

from suspending students in grades 4-8 for disrupting school activities or willfully defying the 
authority of school personnel. Policy also references NEW LAW (AB 982) which requires a 
district to provide a student who is suspended for two or more days with the homework assigned 
during the period of suspension. Regulation adds new section on "Additional Grounds for 
Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 9-12" reflecting the option to suspend, but not expel, a 
student in grades 9-12 for disruption or willful defiance. 

c. Approve Amendment to Board Policy and Exhibit 5145.6 Parental Notifications – 
First Reading 
Board Policy updated for gender neutrality and to update legal references based on new laws 
reflected in the accompanying exhibit. Exhibit updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 74, 2020) which 
extends the suspension of certain mandated activities through the 2020-21 school year; reflect 
NEW FEDERAL REGULATION (85 Fed. Reg. 30026) which requires notice of the contact 
information of the district's Title IX Coordinator; delete legal cites for the Open Enrollment Act, 
which is no longer operational; delete reference to BP 5141.33 which is no longer applicable to 
exclusions from school; reflect NEW LAW (SB 1109, 2018) which requires dissemination of an 
opioid fact sheet to parents/guardians of student athletes; reflect NEW LAW (AB 2370, 2018) 
which requires child care centers with buildings constructed before 2010 to test drinking water 
for lead and notify parents/guardians of the results of that test; add notice requirements for 
districts receiving Impact Aid for children residing on Indian lands; reflect NEW FEDERAL 
REGULATION (85 Fed. Reg. 30026) which requires notifications to the parents/guardians of a 
student who complains of sexual harassment regarding rights, the complaint process, and the 
availability of supportive measures; and move the classroom notice requirement pertaining to 
complaints about health and safety in California State Preschool Programs to AR/E 1312.3 - 
Uniform Complaint Procedures consistent with CDE's Federal Program Monitoring instrument. 

d. Annual Review of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5116.1 Intradistrict 
Open Enrollment – First Reading 
Education Code 35160.5 and 48980 require annual review of this policy. The policy and 
administrative regulation are being submitted for review. There are no recommended updates 
from CSBA or the staff.  

e. Annual Review of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6145 
Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities – First Reading 
Education Code 35160.5 requires annual review of this policy, as it relates to the participation 
of students in grades 7-12 in extracurricular and cocurricular activities. The policy and 
administrative regulation are being submitted for review with updates for gender neutrality. 
There are no other recommended updates from CSBA or the staff.  

 
VII. INFORMATION ITEMS 

1. Monthly Cash Flow Report  

2. Monthly Measure S Status Report 

3. Monthly General Fund Budget Report 

 
VIII. OPEN DISCUSSION 
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT: 
        There being no further business before this Board, the meeting is declared adjourned at ____ p.m. 



 

 

MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING    9-15-2020        #1003 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
CALL TO ORDER/MEETING PLACE 
The Board of Education President, Mrs. Barbara Laifman, called the regular meeting to order at 5:07 p.m. 
On March 17, 2020, Gov. Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 that, in part, authorized governing 
boards to hold public meetings via teleconference. Governing boards must still provide advanced notice 
of each public meeting in accordance with the Brown Act and make public meetings accessible 
telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public seeking to observe the meeting 
and/or to address the governing board on agenda and non-agenda items and participate in the public 
hearing on Sufficiency of Instructional Materials.  
 
Based on these guidelines, the OPUSD Board of Education held a video conference/teleconference 
regular meeting on September 15th. Members of the public were able to observe the meeting auditorily 
using a published live stream link. Members of the public were able to submit comments via an online 
form which opened at 4:30 pm on the day of the meeting and remained open for submission of comments 
until the end of the meeting.  
 
BOARD PRESENT 
Mrs. Barbara Laifman, President, Mr. Allen Rosen, Vice President, Mr. Drew Hazelton, Clerk, Mr. Derek 
Ross, Member, and Mrs. Denise Helfstein, Member  
 
BOARD ABSENT 
None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
Board President, Barbara Laifman reported that in Closed Session the Board would be discussing:  
 

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE: Government Code 
Section 54957  
 

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT: Clerical Sub, Health Services Technician, 
Instructional Assistants I Grade Level, Instructional Assistants I – Literacy & Numeracy, 
Instructional Assistant I Math, Instructional Assistant I Reading, Instructional Assistant II 
Special Education, Instruction Assistant III Behavior, Full time District Nurse, Long Term 
Maternity Leave Substitute Teachers, Long Term Maternity Leave Substitute Assistant 
Principal MCMS 

 
E. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS: Government Code 54957.6  

Agency designated representatives: Adam Rauch and Stewart McGugan 
Employee organizations: Oak Park Teachers Association & Oak Park Classified Association  

 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 5:08 p.m.   
 
CALL TO ORDER/MEETING PLACE 
The Board of Education President, Mrs. Barbara Laifman, called the regular meeting to order at 6:39 p.m.  
 



 

 

BOARD PRESENT 
Mrs. Barbara Laifman, President, Mr. Allen Rosen, Vice President Mr. Drew Hazelton, Clerk, Mr. Derek 
Ross, Member, Mrs. Denise Helfstein, Member  
 
BOARD ABSENT 
Charlotte Robertson, Student Board Member 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Dr. Tony Knight, Superintendent, Mr. Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services, Mr. 
Stew McGugan, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, Dr. Jay Greenlinger, Mrs. Sara Ahl, 
Director of Extended Care Programs, Mr. Brendan Callahan, Director of Bond Program, Sustainability, 
Maintenance and Operations, Mr. Enoch Kwok, Director of Information Technology, Mr. Byron Jones, 
Director of Fiscal Services, and Mrs. Ragini Aggarwal, Executive Assistant. 
 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
Board President, Barbara Laifman, reported that the Board took no action in closed session. 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
Barbara Laifman led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education adopted the agenda as 
presented. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0.  
 
PUBLIC SPEAKERS 
There was 1 public speaker on agenda item B.3.a. Due to this meeting’s electronic nature and to maintain 
the integrity of providing an opportunity for public comment, the Board President read the one public 
comment when the agenda item was called. 
 
OPEN COMMUNICATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
REPORT FROM BOARD MEMBERS  
Board Member Allen Rosen reported that he was excited about all the new things going in the district.   
  
Board Member Drew Hazelton thanked the teachers, staff, and families for everything they were doing to 
work through Distance Learning challenges. Drew also stated that the board was very appreciative and 
supportive of the teachers' hard work and assured them that the board was there to support them in 
whatever they need during these challenging times. Drew also reported that he attended Ms. Novak’s 
class at Oak Hills with Dr. Knight and Dr. Greenlinger, and it was great to watch a virtual class in action.   
  
Board Member Derek Ross thanked the teachers, staff, and administrators for their great job with the 
students. Derek reported that he attended the Oak Park Recreation and Park District community meeting. 
  
Board Member Denise Helfstein reported that she attended the Curriculum Council meeting and the 
Wellness Council meeting. Denise thanked the partnership we have between our students, teachers, staff, 
and parents. Denise thanked the governance team and fellow board members for doing an exceptional job 
with selflessness and was grateful for her fellow board members' integrity and commitment.   
  
Board Member Barbara Laifman reported that she attended the EEAC meeting, GATE DAC meeting, the 
English Language Advisory Committee meeting, and the OPEF meeting.   
     



 

 

Superintendent Tony Knight reported that the virtual back to school nights went very well. The 
schoolwide enrichment model just started and is being funded by the OPEF. Dr. Knight reported that he 
visited the virtual classroom with Drew in Ms. Novak’s class. Dr. Knight shared that EEAC is putting 
together events related to Coastal Cleanup month. Dr. Knight also shared the US News ranking of Oak 
Park High School as number 66 in California and number 1 in Ventura County, and thanked all the 
teachers, staff, students, parents, and administrators for the wonderful job.   
 
REPORT FROM OAK PARK EDUCATION FOUNDATION   
Scott Star, the Chair of Oak Park Education Foundation, thanked Sara Ahl for her help with the Friday 
Enrichment program. There are 30 classes with over 800 students participating in the virtual Friday 
Enrichment program for grades DK-8. This is being offered free of charge for all students. Scott also 
thanked Paula Friedman, the part-time College and Career Counselor at Oak Park High school, funded by 
OPEF, for the wonderful opportunities she provides for the students of Oak Park High School. OPEF is 
planning a virtual wine tasting event to be held on October 9th. Commemorative bricks have been 
installed at Oak Park High School.   
 
REPORT FROM OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL  
Jane Nye, Oak Park MAC member, reported that Sheriff Chiaramonte has reported a few Oak Park issues 
for Aug-Sep, a couple of vehicle break-ins, and catalytic converter thefts. Jane worked with Lisa 
McCullough, Environmental Resource Analyst III in Water & Sanitation department of Public Works to 
complete a Trash Audit in response to resident student William’s Liu’s request to add 4 trash cans on 
Kanan Road. Jane also requested that OPUSD consider Ventura County’s Transportation’s Adopt-a-Road 
Program for student service credits. Jane followed up with Jasmine’s (sophomore at OPHS) and William 
Liu’s request to add Water Lilies to Medea Creek. It was agreed to plant the Water Lilies in the Oak Park 
Lagoon pond. Verizon appeal by David Lelie upheld on Aug 27 by Planning Commission – no Verizon 
tower off of Churchwood/Hawthorne in Monte Carlo neighborhood, $1K appeal fee refunded to the 
residents.  
 
UPDATE ON COVID-19 IMPACT ON OAK PARK USD SCHOOLS  
The Board received an update in regard to COVID-19 and the impact on OPUSD schools. 
 
B.1. CONSENT AGENDA 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education approved the Consent 
Agenda. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0  

a. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting August 18, 2020 and Special Board 
Meeting September 8, 2020 

b. Approve Public Employee/Employment Changes 01CL24697-01CL24750 & 
01CE10312-01CE10425 

c. Ratify Purchase Orders - August 1 – August 31, 2020 
d. Approve Virtual Student Teaching Agreement with California State University 

Northridge from September 2020 Thru June 2021  
e. Approve Resolution #2020-18, Establishing the GANN Appropriation Limit for Fiscal 

Years 2019-2020 and 2020-2021  
f. Approve Notice of Completion for Measure S Project 20-04S Collaborative Furniture 

Districtwide for 2019-20 School Year 
 
 
B2.   BUSINESS SERVICES 

a. Approve Consultant Agreement for Collective Equity with Dr. Terry Walker 
The Board spoke with, and asked questions of, Dr. Walker at the meeting, and approved the  



 

 

agreement for Dr. Walker to serve as the District’s Collective Equity consultant.  
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education approved the  
Consultant Agreement for Collective Equity with Dr. Terry Walker. Motion carried Aye: 
Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0  

b. Approve District of Choice Reporting Requirement  
On motion of Drew Hazelton, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education approved 
the District of Choice Reporting Requirement. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, 
Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0  

c. Approve Unaudited Actual Revenues and Expenditures Report for Fiscal Year 2019-20  
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education approved the 
Unaudited Actual Revenues and Expenditures Report for Fiscal Year 2019-20. Motion 
carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0    

d. Approve Spending Plan for 2020-21 Education Protection Account Funds  
On motion of Allen Rosen, seconded by Derek Ross, the Board of Education approved 
Spending Plan for 2019-20 Education Protection Account Funds. Motion carried Aye: 
Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0.    

e. Approve Acceptance of Donations 
On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education approved 
the Acceptance of Donations with thanks. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, 
Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0.       

f. Authorize Measure S Project 20-18S, Renovate Exteriors of Buildings B and C at Red 
Oak Elementary School and Award Associated Contract for Services 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education authorized 
Measure S Project 20-18S, Renovate Exteriors of Buildings B and C at Red Oak Elementary 
School and awarded Associated Contract for Services. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, 
Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0.       

g. Approve Renewal of Agreement with Developing Outdoors for General Staffing 
Services for the Extended Care Program for 2020-2021 
On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education tabled 
the Renewal of Agreement with Developing Outdoors for General Staffing Services for the 
Extended Care Program for 2020-2021. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, 
Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0. 

h. Approve Renewal of Consultant Agreement for Legislative Advisory and Advocacy 
Services for 2020-2021  
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Barbara Laifman, the Board of Education approved 
The Renewal of Consultant Agreement for Legislative Advisory and Advocacy Services for 
2020-2021. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0.  
Absent – 0.  

 
 
B3.   CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 

a. Public Hearing and Approval of Resolution #2020-19, Regarding Sufficiency of 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials for 2020-2021  
Board President, Barbara Laifman opened the Public Hearing at 9:03 pm. Due to the 
electronic nature of this meeting and to maintain the integrity of providing an opportunity for 
public comment during the public hearing, the Board President read the one public comment 
from Melissa Paul which was submitted on this item. Dr. Jay Greenlinger thanked the parent 
for the comment and provided a response to the comment. There being no other comments 
Public hearing was closed 9:13 pm. On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Drew 
Hazelton, the Board of Education approved the Resolution #2020-19, Regarding Sufficiency 



 

 

of Textbooks and Instructional Materials for 2020-2021. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, 
Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent –0. 

b. Approve the Adoption of the 2020-21 Oak Park Unified School District’s Learning 
Continuity and Attendance Plan 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education adopted of the 
2020-21 Oak Park Unified School District’s Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan. 
Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent –0. 

 
B4.   HUMAN RESOURCES 

a. Approve Memorandum of Understanding Between Oak Park Unified School District 
and the Oak Park Classified Association Regarding Work During the COVID-19 
Environment 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education approved  
Memorandum of Understanding Between Oak Park Unified School District and the Oak Park 
Classified Association Regarding Work During the COVID-19 Environment. Motion carried 
Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent –0. 

b. Approve Memorandum of Understanding Between Oak Park Unified School District 
and the Oak Park Teachers Association Regarding Instruction in the Hybrid Learning 
Model for Elementary Schools  
On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Derek Ross, the Board of Education approved  
Memorandum of Understanding Between Oak Park Unified School District and the Oak Park 
Teachers Association Regarding Instruction in the Hybrid Learning Model for Elementary 
Schools. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent –0. 

 
B5.   BOARD POLICIES 

a. Approve Amendment to Board Policy and Exhibit 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 Employee 
Notifications – First Reading 
On motion of Drew Hazelton, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education approved 
Amendment to Board Policy and Exhibit 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 Employee Notifications as 
first and final reading. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 
0. Absent – 0.  

b. Approve Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 4113 Assignment 
– First Reading 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education approved 
Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 4113 Assignment as first and 
final reading. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0.  
Absent – 0.  

c. Approve Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5141.22 Infectious 
Diseases – First Reading 
On motion of Allen Rosen, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education approved 
Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5141.22 Infectious Diseases as 
first and final reading. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 
0. Absent – 0.  

d. Approve Adoption of New Board Policy 5141.5 Mental Health – First Reading 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education adopted 
New Board Policy 5141.5 Mental Health as first and final reading. Motion carried Aye: 
Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0.  
 
 



 

 

e. Approve Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5144.1 Suspension 
and Expulsion Due Process – First Reading 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education tabled 
Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5144.1 Suspension and 
Expulsion Due Process until October. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, 
Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0.  

f. Approve Amendment to Board Bylaw 9270 – Conflict of Interest - First Reading 
On motion of Denise Helfstein, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education 
approved Amendment to Board Bylaw 9270 – Conflict of Interest as first and final reading. 
Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0.  

 
On motion of Drew Hazelton, seconded by Derek Ross, there being no further business before this Board, 
the Regular meeting is declared adjourned at 9:27 p.m.    
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      President of the Board 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      Clerk or Secretary of the Board 



 

 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL BOARD STUDY SESSION MEETING    10-4-2020        #1004 
BOARD OF EDUCATION.  
 
CALL TO ORDER/MEETING PLACE  
The Board of Education President, Mrs. Barbara Laifman, called the Board Retreat Special meeting to 
order at 9:04 a.m. On March 17, 2020, Gov. Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 that, in part, 
authorized governing boards to hold public meetings via teleconference. Governing boards must still 
provide advanced notice of each public meeting in accordance with the Brown Act and make public 
meetings accessible telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public seeking to 
observe the meeting and/or to address the governing board. 
 
Based on these guidelines, the OPUSD Board of Education held a video conference/teleconference 
special meeting on October 4th. Members of the public were able to observe the meeting auditorily using 
a published live stream link. Members of the public were able to submit public comments via an online 
form which opened at 8:30 am on the day of the meeting and remained open for submission of comments 
until the end of the meeting.  
 
BOARD PRESENT 
Mrs. Barbara Laifman, President, Mr. Allen Rosen, Vice President, Mr. Drew Hazelton, Clerk, Mr. Derek 
Ross, Member, and Mrs. Denise Helfstein, Member. 
 
BOARD ABSENT 
Charlotte Robertson, Student Board Member 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Dr. Tony Knight, Superintendent, Mr. Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services, Mr. 
Stew McGugan, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, Dr. Jay Greenlinger, Director of 
Curriculum and Instruction, and Mrs. Ragini Aggarwal, Executive Assistant. 
  
FLAG SALUTE 
Barbara Laifman led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education adopted the agenda as 
presented. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0. 
 
OPEN SESSION 

A. BOARD RETREAT 
1. The Board reviewed and amended the 2020-2021 Moral Imperatives and District Goals  

 
On motion of Allen Rosen, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board took a 5-minute recess at 11:45 am.  
 

2. The Board reviewed and amended the 2020-2021 Governance Handbook 
3. The Board reviewed and amended the Board Goals for 2020-21  

 
 



 

 

On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Allen Rosen, there being no further business before this Board, the 
special meeting is declared adjourned at 2:17 p.m.    
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      President of the Board 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      Clerk or Secretary of the Board 



 

 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL BOARD MEETING    10-14-2020        #1005 
BOARD OF EDUCATION –  
 
CALL TO ORDER/MEETING PLACE  
The Board of Education President, Mrs. Barbara Laifman, called the Special meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 
On March 17, 2020, Gov. Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 that, in part, authorized governing 
boards to hold public meetings via teleconference. Governing boards must still provide advanced notice 
of each public meeting in accordance with the Brown Act and make public meetings accessible 
telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public seeking to observe the meeting 
and/or to address the governing board. 
 
Based on these guidelines, the OPUSD Board of Education held a video conference/teleconference 
special meeting on October 14th. Members of the public were able to observe the open session of the 
meeting auditorily using a published live stream link. Members of the public were able to submit public 
comments via an online form which opened at 5:30 pm on the day of the meeting and remained open for 
submission of comments until the Board recessed to closed session.  
 
BOARD PRESENT 
Mrs. Barbara Laifman, President, Mr. Allen Rosen, Vice President, Mr. Drew Hazelton, Clerk, Mr. Derek 
Ross, Member, and Mrs. Denise Helfstein, Member. 
 
BOARD ABSENT 
Charlotte Robertson, Student Board Member 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Dr. Tony Knight, Superintendent, Mr. Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services, Mr. 
Stew McGugan, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, Mrs. Ragini Aggarwal, Executive 
Assistant, and Mr. Jay Fernow, District’s Legal Counsel. 
  
FLAG SALUTE 
Barbara Laifman led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
On motion of Allen Rosen, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education adopted the agenda as 
presented. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0. 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION  
Board President, Barbara Laifman reported that in Closed Session the Board would be discussing:  

 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS : Government Code 54957.6  

Agency designated representatives: Adam Rauch and Stewart McGugan 
Employee organizations: Oak Park Teachers Association & Oak Park Classified Association  

 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 6:04 p.m.  
 
 



 

 

On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Derek Ross, there being no further business before this Board, 
the special meeting is declared adjourned at 9:24 p.m.    
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      President of the Board 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      Clerk or Secretary of the Board 



 

 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL BOARD MEETING    10-16-2020        #1006 
BOARD OF EDUCATION –  
 
CALL TO ORDER/MEETING PLACE  
The Board of Education President, Mrs. Barbara Laifman, called the Special meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 
On March 17, 2020, Gov. Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 that, in part, authorized governing 
boards to hold public meetings via teleconference. Governing boards must still provide advanced notice 
of each public meeting in accordance with the Brown Act and make public meetings accessible 
telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public seeking to observe the meeting 
and/or to address the governing board. 
 
Based on these guidelines, the OPUSD Board of Education held a video conference/teleconference 
special meeting on October 16th. Members of the public were able to observe the open session of the 
meeting auditorily using a published live stream link. Members of the public were able to submit public 
comments via an online form which opened at 8:00 am on the day of the meeting and remained open for 
submission of comments until the Board recessed to closed session.  
 
BOARD PRESENT 
Mrs. Barbara Laifman, President, Mr. Allen Rosen, Vice President, Mr. Drew Hazelton, Clerk, Mr. Derek 
Ross, Member, and Mrs. Denise Helfstein, Member. 
 
BOARD ABSENT 
Charlotte Robertson, Student Board Member 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Dr. Tony Knight, Superintendent, Mr. Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services, Mr. 
Stew McGugan, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, Mrs. Ragini Aggarwal, Executive 
Assistant, and Mr. Jay Fernow, District’s Legal Counsel. 
  
FLAG SALUTE 
Barbara Laifman led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
On motion of Allen Rosen, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education adopted the agenda as 
presented. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. Absent – 0. 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION  
Board President, Barbara Laifman reported that in Closed Session the Board would be discussing:  

 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS : Government Code 54957.6  

Agency designated representatives: Adam Rauch and Stewart McGugan 
Employee organizations: Oak Park Teachers Association & Oak Park Classified Association  

 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 8:34 a.m.  
 
 



 

 

On motion of Drew Hazelton, seconded by Derek Ross, there being no further business before this Board, 
the special meeting is declared adjourned at 9:54 a.m.    
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      President of the Board 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      Clerk or Secretary of the Board 



TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION
FROM:            DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT
DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020
SUBJECT: B.1.b. APPROVE CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL ACTIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE SUPERINTENDENT

ISSUE: APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL ACTIONS
                          CONSENT

AUTHORIZATION TO HIRE
Number Name Position Start Date Fund Salary Site
CL24751 Nicholas Moradi Computer Technician 10/12/2020 General $24.24) DO

CL24752 Darcy Gilbert
Instructional Assistant I - Literacy & 
Numeracy Temp 9/15/2020

Learning loss 
mitigation $17.24) OHES

CL24753 Gail Rosenberg
Instructional Assistant I - Literacy & 
Numeracy Temp 9/14/2020

Learning loss 
mitigation $20.37) BES

CL24754 Valerie Jones
Instructional Assistant I - Literacy & 
Numeracy Temp 9/28/2020

Learning loss 
mitigation $20.37) BES

CL24755 Martha Montoya Instructional Assistant I - Grade DK 10/19/2020 General $20.37) BES
CL24756 Ayesha Saxena Instructional Assistant I - Literacy/Reading 10/19/2020 General $20.37) MCMS

CL24757 Anna Brown
Instructional Assistant I - Literacy/Reading - 
Temp 10/19/2020 General/PTA $20.37) OHES

CL24758 Colin Buchanan Instructional Assistant I - Literacy/Reading 9/14/2020 PTA/General $17.14) OHES
CL24759 Megan Brennan Instructional Assistant II SpEd 10/9/2020 Special Education $22.06) ROES
CL24760 Megan Hellerstein Instructional Assistant III Behavior 9/21/2020 Special Education $22.30) ROES
CL24761 Joshua Lund Student Worker Tech Dept 9/29/2020 General $13.00) DO
CL24762 Michael Garland Student Worker Tech Dept 10/1/2020 General $13.00) DO
CL24763 Colin Welch Student Worker Tech Dept 9/28/2020 General $13.00) DO
CL24764 Ian Chapman Student Worker Tech Dept 9/28/2020 General $13.00) DO
AUTHORIZATION TO PAY STIPEND
Number Name Position Start Date Fund Salary Site
CL24765 Magdalena Rojas Extra Duty Accountability 7/1/2020 Measure S $6,500.00) DO
CL24766 Julie Prince WebMaster 8/10/2020 32534 $450.00) OPHS
CL24767 Kim Randall Safe School Ambassador 8/10/2020 PFA $200.00) OPHS
IN-SERVICE CHANGE
Number Name Change Effective Date Fund Salary Site
CL24768 Christine Faille Return from LOA - Food Service Assistant I 9/14/2020 Fund 130 $19.72) OPHS
CL24769 Sean Mulford Instructional Assistant II - SpEd LOA 9/14/2020 Special Ed $18.54) BES
CL24770 Julie StAmand Return from LOA - Accounting Assistant II 9/21/2020 General $26.63) DO

CL24771 Jacquie Morris
Instructional Assistant I Math - New POS # 
from PTA funding to General 10/19/2020 General $20.37) BES

CL24772 Hallie Medoff Instructional Assistant III - Behavior LOA 10/5/2020 Special Ed $23.65) BES



TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION
FROM:            DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT
DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020
SUBJECT: B.1.b. APPROVE CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL ACTIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE SUPERINTENDENT

SEPARATION
Number Name Position Effective Date Separation Type Salary Site
CL24773 Sarah Gallo Instructional Assistant II SpEd 9/23/2020 Resignation $19.63) OPHS
CL24774 Christine Dion Instructional Assistant I Math 10/17/2020 Resignation $20.37) BES
CL24775 Myriah Brennan Instructional Assistant I - Math 10/9/2020 Resignation $20.37) ROES
CL24776 Lynn Framer Senior Accountant 10/30/2020 Resignation $38.41) DO
CL24777 Joanna O'Melia Instructional Assistant I - L & N 9/29/2020 Resignation $18.13) OHES
CL24778 Tracy Troxel Instructional Assistant I - Literacy/Reading 10/2/2020 Resignation $18.13) BES
CL24779 Clatina Koonce Instructional Assistant II - SpEd 10/13/2020 Resignation $22.06) OPHS

Prepared by: Respectfully Submitted,
Stew McGugan Assistant Superintendent /Human Resources

__________________________________
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D.
Superintendent



TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION
FROM:            DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT
DATE: OCOTBER 21, 2020
SUBJECT: B.1.b. APPROVE CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL ACTIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE SUPERINTENDENT
ISSUE: APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL ACTIONS

                          CONSENT

AUTHORIZATION TO PAY STIPEND
Number Name Position Start Date Fund Salary Site
01CE10426 Tess Kokiousis EEAC committee 8/7/20-5/27/21 District $450.00 OPHS
01CE10427 Sharon Merfeld EEAC committee 8/7/20-5/27/21 District $450.00 ROES
01CE10428 Kellie Milbourn EEAC committee 8/7/20-5/27/21 District $450.00 BES
01CE10429 Katie Wilsker EEAC committee 8/7/20-5/27/21 District $450.00 MCMS
01CE10430 Angela Folendorf Teacher-in-Charge 8/7/20-5/27/21 Site $3,500.00 OHES
01CE10431 Erik Amerikaner Summer School Curriculmn 8/1-9/1/2020 OPEF $1,250.00 OPHS
01CE10432 Kate Thompson Summer School Curriculmn 8/1-9/1/2020 OPEF $1,250.00 OPIS
01CE10433 Tony Peluce Summer School Curriculmn 8/1-9/1/2020 OPEF $2,500.00 OPHS
01CE10434 Anna Mendez Summer School Curriculmn 8/1-9/1/2020 OPEF $2,500.00 OPHS
01CE10435 Yeganeh Gorji Summer School Curriculmn 8/1-9/1/2020 OPEF $2,500.00 OPHS
01CE10436 Heidi Cissell ASB 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $1,344.00 OPHS
01CE10437 Sheri Boone Peer Counseling 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $133.00 OPHS
01CE10438 Allan Hunt NHS Advisor 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $465.00 OPHS
01CE10439 Cathy Lory CSF Advisor 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $648.00 OPHS
01CE10440 Erik Amerikaner Webmaster 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $1,350.00 OPHS
01CE10441 Aaron Shaw Dept. Chair PE 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $4,000.00 OPHS
01CE10442 Winnie Sloan Dept Chair Science 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $5,000.00 OPHS
01CE10443 Erik Amerianer Dept Chair CTE/Tech 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $4,000.00 OPHS
01CE10444 Maryannick Bovard Dept Chair Foreign Language 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $4,000.00 OPHS
01CE10445 Kathy Bowman Dept Chair English 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $5,000.00 OPHS
01CE10446 Heidi Cissell Dept Chair VPA 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $4,000.00 OPHS
01CE10447 Rebecca Custodio Dept Chair Special Ed 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $4,000.00 OPHS
01CE10448 Kim Galbreath Dept Chair Social Science 8/10/20-5/27/21 Site $4,500.00 OPHS
01CE10449 Cathy Lory Dept Chair Math 8/10/20-5/27/22 Site $5,000.00 OPHS
01CE10450 Elana Levine Jazz Dept 8/10/20-5/27/23 Donation $3,000.00 MCMS
01CE10451 Elayne Roesner Beg Band Support 8/10/20-5/27/24 Site $5,000.00 MCMS
01CE10452 Amy Sinnamon Math Dept Chair 8/10/20-5/27/25 Site $1,500.00 MCMS
01CE10453 Lindsay Smits Language Arts Chair 8/10/20-5/27/26 Site $1,500.00 MCMS
01CE10454 Sharon Lavene Social Studies Chair 8/10/20-5/27/27 Site $1,500.00 MCMS
01CE10455 Teresa Hogan PE Chair 8/10/20-5/27/28 Site $1,500.00 MCMS
01CE10456 Carrie Jones Dept Chair Sp Ed 8/10/20-5/27/29 Site $1,500.00 MCMS
01CE10457 Elana Levine Electives Chair 8/10/20-5/27/30 Site $1,500.00 MCMS
01CE10458 Kim Sonnabend Leadership 8/10/20-5/27/31 Site $800.00 MCMS
01CE10459 Rebecca Goldman Leadership 8/10/20-5/27/32 Site $800.00 MCMS
01CE10460 Sharon Lavene Leadership 8/10/20-5/27/33 Site $800.00 MCMS
01CE10461 Kelly Pomerantz Leadership 8/10/20-5/27/34 Site $800.00 MCMS
01CE10462 Al Calce Leadership 8/10/20-5/27/35 Site $800.00 MCMS
01CE10463 Brittany Ulloa Leadership 8/10/20-5/27/36 Site $800.00 MCMS
01CE10464 Paula Foy Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $160.00 OHES
01CE10465 Heather Sloan Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $80.00 OHES



TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION
FROM:            DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT
DATE: OCOTBER 21, 2020
SUBJECT: B.1.b. APPROVE CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL ACTIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE SUPERINTENDENT
ISSUE: APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL ACTIONS

                          CONSENT
AUTHORIZATION TO PAY STIPEND
Number Name Position Start Date Fund Salary Site
01CE10466 Keri Lieberman Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $80.00 OHES
01CE10467 Joy Reints Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $160.00 OHES
01CE10468 Beth Ruben Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $80.00 OHES
01CE10469 Michelle Williams Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $160.00 OHES
01CE10470 Lianne Arnold Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $65.00 OHES
01CE10471 Amy Buccino Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $240.00 ROES
01CE10472 Nicole Lo Bianco Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $160.00 ROES
01CE10473 Robbin Lund Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $320.00 ROES
01CE10474 Patti Holland Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $80.00 ROES
01CE10475 Jamie Brown Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $160.00 ROES
01CE10476 Nina Johnson Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $160.00 ROES
01CE10477 Kathy Strong Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $160.00 ROES
01CE10478 Kim Annino Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $12.50 BES
01CE10479 Barbie Lee Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $12.50 BES
01CE10480 Kellie Milbourn Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $80.00 BES
01CE10481 Allison Gerin Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $90.00 BES
01CE10482 Brandie Pryor Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $160.00 BES
01CE10483 Tawnya Watson Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $90.00 BES
01CE10484 Stacey Altman Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $5.00 BES
01CE10485 Erik Squire Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $80.00 BES
01CE10486 Victor Anderson Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $10.00 OPHS
01CE10487 Jen Hankins Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $8.00 OPHS
01CE10488 Russ Peters Class Size Overages August 8/7-8/31/20 General $13.00 OPHS
01CE10489 Victor Anderson AED Coordinator 8/7-8/31/20 General $3,150.00 District
01CE10490 Gina Arnello Grade Level Lead 8/7-8/31/20 Site $200.00 BES
01CE10491 Cindy Stephens Lead Teacher 8/7-8/31/20 Site $700.00 BES
01CE10492 Sandy Hirano Safety & Disaster 8/7-8/31/20 Site $150.00 BES
01CE10493 Kim Annino Grade Level Lead 8/7-8/31/20 Site $200.00 BES
01CE10494 Kathy Grossman Grade Level Lead 8/7-8/31/20 Site $200.00 BES
01CE10495 Tawnya Watson Grade Level Lead 8/7-8/31/20 Site $200.00 BES
01CE10496 Stacey Altman Grade Level Lead 8/7-8/31/20 Site $200.00 BES
01CE10497 Diane Farlow Grade Level Lead 8/7-8/31/20 Site $200.00 BES
01CE10498 Cindy Stephens Grade Level Lead 8/7-8/31/20 Site $200.00 BES
01CE10499 Cynthia Morrow SST Meeting 8/7-8/31/20 Site $300.00 BES
01CE10500 Sandy Hirano SST Coordinator 8/7-8/31/20 Site $700.00 BES
01CE10501 Bradie Pryor 504 Meeting 8/7-8/31/20 Site $600.00 BES
01CE10502 Heather Powers 504 Coordinator 8/7-8/31/20 Site $400.00 BES
01CE10503 Cindy Stephens Student Council 8/7-8/31/20 Site $550.00 BES
01CE10504 Heather Powers Student Council 8/7-8/31/20 Site $550.00 BES



TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION
FROM:            DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT
DATE: OCOTBER 21, 2020
SUBJECT: B.1.b. APPROVE CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL ACTIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE SUPERINTENDENT
ISSUE: APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL ACTIONS

                          CONSENT
AUTHORIZATION TO PAY STIPEND
Number Name Position Start Date Fund Salary Site
01CE10505 Margie Puryear Safety & Disaster 8/7-8/31/20 Site $150.00 BES
01CE10506 Michael O'Hagan Webmaster 8/7-8/31/20 Site $300.00 MCMS

IN-SERVICE CHANGE
Number Name Change Effective Date Fund Site
01CE10507 Tara Beeh 1.0 FTE to 0.8 FTE 9/14/2020 General OPIS

Prepared by:                                                                                         Respectfully Submitted,
Stewart McGugan Assistant Superintendent,Human Resources

 __________________________________
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D.
Superintendent



TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: B.1.c. RATIFY PURCHASE ORDERS – SEPTEMBER 1 THROUGH 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 
CONSENT 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board ratify the following purchase orders issued for the period 

September 1 through September 30, 2020? 
 
BACKGROUND: Purchase Order Report listing all purchase orders issued during the reporting 

period is included for the Board review. All purchase orders have been approved 
by an administrator as a necessary expense and are budgeted for and within the 
budget authorization of the account. The Board is requested to ratify the 
purchase order from September 1 through September 30, 2020.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Ratify the Purchase Order Report as submitted. 
 2. Do not ratify the Purchase Order Report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
 
Prepared by:  
 
Byron Jones, Director Fiscal Services 
Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 

 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



Board Report by Fund/ObjectReqPay211d

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/01/2020 - 09/30/2020

PO
Number Vendor Name Description

Fund
Object

Account
AmountLoc

010-1160 Certificated Salaries Stipends

B21-00175 Justin Parzik Independent Band Coach/

Site Stipend

010-1160013 4,500.00 

4,500.00 Total:010-1160 Certificated Salaries Stipends

010-4100 Approved Textbooks and Core Cu

P21-00195 McGraw-Hill MCMS Impact Journal Shipping 

Charge

010-4100005 594.64 

P21-00196 Studies Weekly, Inc dba American 

Legacy Publishing

20/21 BES Social Studies 010-4100005 852.64 

1,447.28 Total:010-4100 Approved Textbooks and Core Cu

010-4330 Other Materials and Supplies N

B21-00150 DIY Home Center Custodial/Mat & Supplies 010-4330013 1,200.00 

B21-00151 SOS Survival Products COVID Supplies 010-4330004 12,500.00 

B21-00152 Southwest School Supply 2020/21 PO for COVID Supplies 010-4330004 2,500.00 

B21-00154 Pacific Plumbing Specialists 2020/2021 Plumbing Parts and 

Supplies

010-4330004 1,000.00 

B21-00155 Cedar Valley Plumbing Supple 2020/2021 Plumbing Supplies & 

Tools

010-4330004 5,500.00 

B21-00156 Airgas West 2020/2021 PO for Welding Supplies 010-4330004 500.00 

B21-00157 AT&T Red Oak Phone Charges 2020-2021 010-4330011 750.00 

B21-00161 Roadside Lumber & Hardware 2020/2021 Hardware and Supplies M 

& O

010-4330004 1,000.00 

B21-00163 Office Depot Customer Service 

Center

office supplies 010-4330009 2,000.00 

B21-00164 Southwest School Supply School Supplies 010-4330009 4,500.00 

B21-00166 Office Depot Customer Service 

Center

DW COVID Supplies 010-4330004 4,000.00 

B21-00167 DIY Home Center Blanket P.O. for custodial supplies 010-4330009 300.00 

B21-00168 Grainger Industrial Supply DW COVID 19 Supplies 010-4330004 490.61 

B21-00172 Southwest School Supply open purchase order for custodial 

supplies

010-4330009 5,000.00 

B21-00173 AARDVARK CLAY & SUPPLIES Don/Art/Mat & Supply. 010-4330013 3,500.00 

B21-00178 Southwest School Supply Red Oak Custodial Supplies for 

2020-2021

010-4330011 1,000.00 

B21-00179 Document Systems For printing costs and toner supplies 010-4330023 200.00 

B21-00180 Office Depot Customer Service 

Center

Supplies for school year 010-4330023 875.00 

B21-00185 Arduino LLC Software/Engineering/CTEIG 010-4330013 325.00 

P21-00188 VCOE Health Jackets 010-4330009 75.08 

P21-00190 Richard Smith dba Conejo Emerg 

ency Plumbing

Replace Gas Earthquake Valve 

MCMS

010-4330004 695.00 

P21-00192 AML Global American Language 

Services

SpEd Assessment - 

Interpretation (Telugu)

010-4330000 605.00 

P21-00193 Project Lead the Way (PLTW) Oth Suppl/Eng/SWP 010-4330013 1,564.24 

P21-00206 Douglas and Sturgess, Inc. Art Supplies/Other Supply Misc. 010-4330013 1,988.77 

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

623 - Oak Park Unified School District Generated for Byron Jones (623BJONES), Oct  5 2020  2:14PM

Page 1 of 6



Board Report by Fund/ObjectReqPay211d

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/01/2020 - 09/30/2020

PO
Number Vendor Name Description

Fund
Object

Account
AmountLoc

P21-00207 Office Depot Customer Service 

Center

Safety Goggles for Custodians/M&O 

Staff

010-4330004 59.70 

TB21-00012 Cellco Partnership dbaVerizon 

Wireless

COVID Verizon Jetpack Mobile 

Hotspot Devices

010-4330007 600.00 

52,728.40 Total:010-4330 Other Materials and Supplies N

010-4410 Equipment New Non-Capitalized

T21-00021 IPEVO INC COVID - iPevo Document Cameras 010-4410007 12,741.30 

12,741.30 Total:010-4410 Equipment New Non-Capitalized

010-5200 Travel and Conference

B21-00064 VCOE LCAP GOAL 2 VCOE BLANKET 

TRAINING PO 2020-2021

010-5200005 750.00 

B21-00169 VCOE LCAP Goal 1 VCOE Blanket Training 

2020-2021

010-5200005 1,500.00 

2,250.00 Total:010-5200 Travel and Conference

010-5600 Rents, Leases, and Repairs

P21-00204 REC Solar Commercial Corp Replace Inverter at Oak View High 

School

010-5600004 1,420.00 

P21-00205 Signature Signs MonumentText Addition at Athletic 

field @OPHS

010-5600004 142.54 

1,562.54 Total:010-5600 Rents, Leases, and Repairs

010-5820 Other Operating Expense

B21-00158 Department Of Justice Bur. of 

Criminal Investigation

2020-2021 Fingerprinting Services 010-5820006 8,500.00 

B21-00159 Allisun Kale ASL Interpreter for Deanne Bray 010-5820006 2,000.00 

B21-00160 Document Systems Red Oak color copies and staples for 

2020-2021

010-5820011 1,000.00 

B21-00162 Document Systems Open purchase order for color 

copies, ink, staples

010-5820009 1,600.00 

B21-00165 AT&T-CalNet 3 Red Oak Phone Charges 2020-2021 010-5820011 350.00 

B21-00174 Alexander Tseitlin Indep. Band Coach/Opima 010-5820013 7,300.00 

B21-00176 Sasha Snoberger Independent Band Coach/Site 

Stippend

010-5820013 2,000.00 

B21-00177 Nikolas Matsamura Independent Band Coach/Site 

Stipends

010-5820013 4,000.00 

B21-00181 Ventura County office of Education 2020-2021  Escape 

Finance/Payroll/Personnel

010-5820004 43,738.30 

B21-00184 Agoura Lock Technologies, Inc. keys/locks 010-5820009 100.00 

B21-00186 Christy White Associates 2018/2019 Annual District Audit 

Retention

010-5820004 2,900.00 

P21-00181 Bee Professionals Bee Removal for Homeowner 

@OPHS

010-5820004 550.00 

P21-00182 Robert W Blattner dba Blattner  & 

Associates

Legislative Advisory/Advocacy Svs. 010-5820004 9,000.00 

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

623 - Oak Park Unified School District Generated for Byron Jones (623BJONES), Oct  5 2020  2:14PM

Page 2 of 6



Board Report by Fund/ObjectReqPay211d

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/01/2020 - 09/30/2020

PO
Number Vendor Name Description

Fund
Object

Account
AmountLoc

P21-00186 VCOE Fees PERS GASB-68 Reports & 

Schedules 2020/2021

010-5820004 350.00 

P21-00189 Las Virgenes School Dist 2020/21 - SpEd / LVUSD DIS 

Services for OPUSD

010-5820000 130,000.00 

P21-00191 Greenacre Homes Inc Residential Placement (Apr 2020 - 

May 2020)

010-5820000 12,827.46 

P21-00194 CR Print Summer 2020 Reading Certs 010-5820005 259.55 

P21-00203 CA Scholarship Federation Inc. DON: CJSF Dues 010-5820012 35.00 

P21-00211 Drawing Board Printing Envelopes/Mat & Supp/Other 

Exp./Disc.

010-5820013 217.45 

P21-00212 Epstein Custom Media Inc dba L  A 

Parent

DOC Ad LA Parent Education LA 2020 010-5820001 1,900.00 

T21-00020 Blackboard Inc Blackboard Website Design Services 010-5820007 20,975.00 

TB21-00010 Laura Almada Laura Almada for CALPADS 

consulting

010-5820007 5,000.00 

254,602.76 Total:010-5820 Other Operating Expense

010-5900 Telephone and Communications

B21-00153 Federal Express Corp. Federal Express Shipping Charges 

2020-21

010-5900004 1,500.00 

B21-00170 AT & T Mobility Open PO for 2020/21 Cell Phones 

Svs

010-5900004 7,000.00 

B21-00171 AT&T-CalNet 3 Telephone services 010-5900009 850.00 

B21-00182 AT&T-CalNet 3 PO for AT&T Fax Lines 010-5900013 2,000.00 

B21-00183 AT&T PO for AT&T Elevator Phone 010-5900013 3,700.00 

TB21-00012 Cellco Partnership dba 
Verizon Wireless

COVID Verizon Jetpack Mobile 

Hotspot Devices

010-5900007 600.00 

15,650.00 Total:010-5900 Telephone and Communications

211-4330 Other Materials and Supplies N

TB21-00011 Monoprice Proj 20-19S Staff Laptop Peripherals 211-4330007 14,000.00 

14,000.00 Total:211-4330 Other Materials and Supplies N

211-4410 Equipment New Non-Capitalized

P21-00002 Uline Proj 20-21S Outdoor Furniture for 

MCMS

211-4410004 20,155.64 

P21-00003 Uline Proj 20-04S Collaborative Furniture 

for OPHS

211-4410004 22,408.67 

P21-00005 Uline Proj 20-04S Pro 20-04S Furniture for 

BES

211-4410004 6,635.45 

P21-00006 Natural Pod Services Inc. Proj 20-04S Collaborative 

Furn@OHES-Natural Pod

211-4410005 5,351.62 

P21-00007 Natural Pod Services Inc. Pro 20-04S Collaborative 

Furniture@ROES-Natural Pod

211-4410005 5,314.08 

P21-00015 Krueger International, Inc. Proj 20-04S Collaborative 

Furniture@OHES-KI

211-4410005 1,611.56 

P21-00112 Southwest School Supply Proj 20-21S Outdoor Furniture 

Assembly Only

211-4410004 3,075.00 

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

623 - Oak Park Unified School District Generated for Byron Jones (623BJONES), Oct  5 2020  2:14PM

Page 3 of 6



Board Report by Fund/ObjectReqPay211d

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/01/2020 - 09/30/2020

PO
Number Vendor Name Description

Fund
Object

Account
AmountLoc

P21-00197 Uline Proj 20-21S Outdoor Furniture for 

ROES

211-4410004 25,845.25 

P21-00209 Uline Proj 20-21S Outdoor Furniture @BES 211-4410000 14,564.55 

P21-00210 Uline Proj 20-21S Outdoor Furniture 

@OHES

211-4410000 13,642.24 

118,604.06 Total:211-4410 Equipment New Non-Capitalized

211-5820 Other Operating Expense

P21-00208 Colbi Technologies, Inc Measure S 2020/21 AccountAbility 

Software Renewal

211-5820004 15,000.00 

15,000.00 Total:211-5820 Other Operating Expense

211-6209 Main Construction-Buildings

P20-00583 Interstate Restoration, LLC Proj 20-10S Exterior Repairs to 

Portables at BES

211-6209004 41,040.63 

P21-00073 Richard Smith dba Conejo Emerg 

ency Plumbing

Proj 20-11S Plumbing Repairs 

Restrooms ROES

211-6209004 4,140.00 

P21-00167 Interstate Restoration, LLC Proj 20-10S Exterior Repairs 

Portables @BES/MCMS

211-6209004 47,380.05 

P21-00187 M/M Mechanical, Inc Proj 20-11S Restroom repairs 

@ROES

211-6209004 715.00 

93,275.68 Total:211-6209 Main Construction-Buildings

211-6256 Contracted Services

DIR21-00001 REC Solar Commercial Corp Proj 18-33S Solar Installation Monthly 

Maintenance

211-6256004 51,211.00 

51,211.00 Total:211-6256 Contracted Services

211-6274 Other Construction

P21-00183 Carlson's Building Materials Proj 20-17S Concrete for Portables at 

Brookside ES

211-6274000 418.28 

P21-00185 DIY Home Center Proj 20-11S Restroom toilet supplies 

ROES

211-6274004 47.01 

P21-00198 Hughes General Engineering Proj 18-21S Drain and curb @MCMS 

New Classrooms

211-6274004 24,675.00 

P21-00199 Cedar Valley Plumbing Supple Proj 20-11S Restroom Replacement 

parts for ROES

211-6274004 549.57 

P21-00200 Pierres Welding & Maint. Proj 20-11S Install air vents restroom 

doors ROES

211-6274004 1,710.00 

P21-00201 Lister Rents, Inc. Proj 20-22S Forklift Economizers 

@OPHS

211-6274004 321.53 

P21-00202 Signature Signs Proj 18-21S Plaque for New 

Classroom @MCMS

211-6274004 2,632.85 

30,354.24 Total:211-6274 Other Construction

667,927.26 Total85 Total Number of  POs

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

623 - Oak Park Unified School District Generated for Byron Jones (623BJONES), Oct  5 2020  2:14PM

Page 4 of 6



Board Report by Fund/ObjectReqPay211d

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/01/2020 - 09/30/2020

Fund Recap

Fund Description PO Count Amount

010 General Fund 61 345,482.28 

Total Fiscal Year 2021 345,482.28 

211 Measure S Facilities & Tech 24 322,444.98 

Total Fiscal Year 2021 322,444.98 

Total 667,927.26 

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

623 - Oak Park Unified School District Generated for Byron Jones (623BJONES), Oct  5 2020  2:14PM

Page 5 of 6



Board Report by Fund/ObjectReqPay211d

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/01/2020 - 09/30/2020

PO Changes 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

010-4200 Other Books and Reference Mate
P21-00135 1,297.52 010-4200 General Fund/Other Books and Reference Mate 179.70 

179.70 Total:010-4200 Other Books and Reference Mate

010-4330 Other Materials and Supplies N
B21-00053 1,132.49 010-4330 General Fund/Other Materials and Supplies N 632.49 

632.49 Total:010-4330 Other Materials and Supplies N

Total PO Changes 812.19 

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

623 - Oak Park Unified School District Generated for Byron Jones (623BJONES), Oct  5 2020  2:14PM

Page 6 of 6



TO:   BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM:  DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE:               OCTOBER 21, 2020 
 
SUBJECT         B.1.d.  APPROVE QUARTERLY REPORT ON WILLIAMS UNIFORM 
                                       COMPLAINTS – OCTOBER 2020 

          CONSENT    
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education Approve the Quarterly Williams Uniform Complaints 

- October 2020? 
 
BACKGROUND: As a result of a lawsuit filed against the State of California, the State Legislature 

passed several bills that codified the negotiated settlement to the suit.  One of the 
many requirements of this legislation is for school districts to establish a uniform 
complaint process to allow parents or members of the public to register written 
complaints regarding textbook/instructional materials sufficiency, teacher vacancy 
or missassignment, and hazardous conditions of school facilities.   

 
 Education Code 35186 requires the Superintendent or designee report to 

summarize data on the nature and resolution of all Williams Uniform Complaints 
on a quarterly basis to the Board of Education and the County Office of Education.  
The report shall include the number of complaints by general subject area with the 
number of resolved and unresolved complaints.  These summaries shall be publicly 
reported on a quarterly basis at a regularly scheduled Board meeting. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:      None   
 
ALTERNATIVES:  1.   Approve the Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints – October 

2020 
2. Do not approve the Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints – 

October 2020 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Alternative #1.  
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
  
 

     ______________________________________ 
      Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D.  

Superintendent 
 

 

Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE:    AYES     NOES     ABSTAIN     ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 



Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints 
[Education Code Section 35186] 

Fiscal Year 2020-21 

District: ________________________________ 

Person completing this form: ________________________________ 

Title:  ________________________________ 

Quarterly Report Submission Date:       October 2020 (7/1/20 to 9/30/20)  
(check one)             January 2021 (10/1/20 to 12/31/20) 

 April 2021 (1/1/21 to 3/31/21)  
 July 2021 (4/1/21 to 6/30/21) 

Date for information to be reported publicly at governing board meeting:  ____________ 

Please check the box that applies: 

 No complaints were filed with any school in the district during the quarter
indicated above.

 Complaints were filed with schools in the district during the quarter indicated
above.  The following chart summarizes the nature and resolution of these
complaints.

General Subject 
Area 

Total # of 
Complaints # Resolved # Unresolved 

Textbooks and 
Instructional 

Materials 

Teacher Vacancy or 
Misassignment 

Facilities Conditions 

Totals 

 ______________________________  _____________________________ 
Name of District Superintendent         Signature of District Superintendent 

Oak Park Unified School District

Dr. Jay Greenlinger

Director of Curriculum and Instruction

X

10/21/2020

X

0

0

0

0

Dr. Anthony W. Knight



  

TO:                         BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM:                  DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE:                   OCTOBER 21, 2020 
 
SUBJECT              B.1.e.    APPROVE DISPOSAL OF OBSOLETE OR SURPLUS INSTRUCTIONAL 
                                             MATERIALS, BOOKS, AND OR LIBRARY BOOKS   

CONSENT 
 
ISSUE:                                 Shall the Board approve the sale and/or disposal of obsolete or surplus instructional  
                                              materials, books, and/or library books per the provisions of Education Code Section  
                                                 60510? 

 
BACKGROUND: The District declares an inventory of library books, textbooks and/or instructional 

materials as obsolete, surplus, and no longer needed by teachers or students.  Education 
Code Section 60510 requires the Board to declare that these books and/or materials are 
obsolete or surplus authorizing staff to sell, distribute, or otherwise dispose of them. 
This is one measure of ensuring that students have the benefit of current quality 
materials that meet the specific rigorous criteria set by the Oak Park Unified School 
District. List of obsolete instructional materials follows for the board review. All books 
listed will need to be disposed.    

 
FISCAL IMPACT: The estimated cost of the destruction of the books which have zero resale value is $250. 

This cost is included in the 2020-2021 adopted budget. 
 

ALTERNATIVES:   1.   Approve a motion declaring the following inventory of instructional materials and  
         library books obsolete and/or surplus. 
    2.   Do not approve a motion declaring the following inventory of instructional  
                                                    materials and library books obsolete and/or surplus. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Dr. Jay Greenlinger, Director, Curriculum and Instruction  
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _________________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



SCHOOL SITE OPHS
Name of Person Completing Form Hannie Low

Title of Item to be Retired ISBN Publisher
Number of 
Books

Discovering French Blanc 0-618-03505-2 McDougal Littell 54
Discovering French Bleu 0-618-03504-4 McDougal Littell 73
I Love Learning Chinese - Volume 1 978-7-301-08002-3 Peking University Press 55
I Love Learning Chinese - Volume 2 978-7-301-12277-8 Peking University Press 97
I Love Learning Chinese - Volume 3 978-7-301-14391-9 Peking University Press 73
I Love Learning Chinese - Volume 4 978-7-301-17047-2 Peking University Press 29
Living in the Environment 978-0-495-01598-7 Jack Carey 46

SCHOOL SITE Brookside
Name of Person Completing Form Virginia Standring
Title of Item to be Retired ISBN Publisher

Number of 
Books

Motion and Matter 978-1-62571-312-4 Delta Education 84
Water and Climate 978-1-62571-3247 Delta Education 128

Obsolete Textbooks October 21, 2020 



 

 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 

DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020 

SUBJECT: B.2.a. APPROVE RESOLUTION #2020-20 AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE 
OF OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 2020 GENERAL 
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 

 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board Approve Resolution #2020-20, authorizing the issuance of Oak 

Park Unified School District (Ventura County, California) 2020 General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds? 
 

BACKGROUND: On June 6, 2006, the voters of the Oak Park Unified School District (the “District”) 
approved the issuance of not-to-exceed $17,500,000 of general obligation bonds 
(“Measure C6”).  Pursuant to Measure C6, the District previously issued $3,655,000 
of its General Obligation Bonds (Election of 2006) Series 2013A (the “2013A 
Bonds”). On November 4, 2008, the voters of the District approved the issuance of 
not-to-exceed $29,445,000 of general obligation bonds (“Measure R”).  Pursuant to 
Measure R, the District previously issued $5,644,564.25 of its General Obligation 
Bonds (Election of 2008) Series 2013B (the “2013B Bonds,” and together with the 
2013A Bonds, the “Prior Bonds”).  The District now desires to advance refund 
certain of the outstanding Prior Bonds (so refunded, the “Refunded Bonds”), thereby 
generating savings for District taxpayers, through the issuance of general obligation 
refunding bonds (the “Refunding Bonds”) pursuant to Government Code Section 
53550 et seq. 

All benefits from the refunding will be delivered to the property owners in the 
District.  The final maturity of the Refunding Bonds will not be later than the final 
maturity date of the Refunded Bonds (August 1, 2042).   

(a) Bond Resolution.  This Resolution authorizes the issuance of the Refunding 
Bonds, in one or more series of federally taxable bonds.  Further, the 
Refunding Bonds may be in any combination of current interest or capital 
appreciation bonds.  The Resolution authorizes the issuance of the Refunding 
Bonds, specifies the basic terms, parameters and forms of the Refunding 
Bonds, and approves the forms of the Purchase Contract, Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate, Escrow Agreement and Preliminary Official Statement 
described below.  In particular, Section 1 of the Resolution establishes the 
maximum aggregate principal amount of the Refunding Bonds to be issued 
($12,500,000).  Section 4 of the Resolution states the maximum underwriter’s 
discount (0.75%) with respect to the Refunding Bonds, the maximum legal 
interest rate on the Refunding Bonds, and authorizes the Refunding Bonds to 
be sold at a negotiated sale to Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (the 
“Underwriter”). The Resolution authorizes the issuance of current interest 
bonds and capital appreciation bonds. 

(b) Form of Purchase Contract.  Pursuant to the Purchase Contract, the 
Underwriter will agree to buy the Refunding Bonds from the District.  All the 
conditions of closing the transaction are set forth in this document, including 
the documentation to be provided at the closing by various parties.  Upon the 



 

 

pricing of the Refunding Bonds, the final execution copy of the Purchase 
Contract will be prepared following this form. 

(c) Form of Preliminary Official Statement.  The Resolution approves form of the 
Preliminary Official Statement, which is on file with the Secretary to the 
Board.  The Preliminary Official Statement (the “POS”) is the offering 
document describing the Refunding Bonds which may be distributed to 
prospective purchasers of the Refunding Bonds.  The POS discloses 
information with respect to, among other things, (i) the proposed uses of 
proceeds of the Refunding Bonds, (ii) the terms of the Refunding Bonds 
(interest rate, redemption terms, etc.), (iii) the bond insurance policy for the 
Refunding Bonds, if any, (iv) the security for repayment of the Refunding 
Bonds (the ad valorem property tax levy), (v) information with respect to the 
District’s tax base (upon which such ad valorem property taxes may be 
levied), (vi) District financial and operating data, (vii) continuing disclosure 
with respect to the Refunding Bonds and the District, and (viii) absence of 
litigation and other miscellaneous matters expected to be of interest to 
prospective purchasers of the Refunding Bonds.  Following the pricing of the 
Refunding Bonds, a final Official Statement for the Refunding Bonds will be 
prepared, substantially in the form of the POS. 

(d) Form of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate.  The form of the Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate can be found in APPENDIX C to the POS.  Effective 
July 3, 1995, all underwriters of municipal bonds are obligated to procure any 
public agency issuing debt a covenant that such public agency will annually 
file “material financial information and operating data” with respect to such 
public agency through the web-based Electronic Municipal Market Access 
(“EMMA”) system maintained by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 
Board (a federal agency that regulates “broker-dealers,” including investment 
bank firms that underwrite municipal obligations).  This requirement is 
expected to be satisfied by the filing of the District’s audited financial 
statements and other operating information about the District, in the same 
manner the District has filed in connection with prior bond issuances. 

(e) Escrow Agreement.  Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, proceeds from the 
sale of the Refunding Bonds in an amount sufficient to redeem the Refunded 
Bonds will be deposited in an escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund”) held by U.S. 
Bank National Association, as escrow Agent (the “Escrow Agent”).  The 
monies in the Escrow Fund will be used by the Escrow Agent to pay the 
interest due on the Refunded Bonds on and prior to the respective redemption 
dates therefor and the redemption price of the Refunded Bonds on such date.  
As a result of the deposit and application of funds so provided in the Escrow 
Agreement, the Refunded Bonds will be defeased, and the obligation of the 
counties to levy ad valorem property taxes for the payment thereof will cease. 
Resolution 2020-20, Purchase Contract, Escrow Agreement, and Preliminary 
Official Statement (POS) can be accessed at: https://bit.ly/34IoDsl    

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None 
 

  

October 21, 2020 Board of Education Meeting, Page 2  
Approve Resolution #2020-20, authorizing the issuance of OPUSD 2020 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
 

https://bit.ly/34IoDsl


 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 1. Adopt Resolution #2020-20, authorizing the issuance of Oak Park Unified 
School District (Ventura County, California) 2020 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds 
Do not adopt Resolution No. 20-20 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 

 
Prepared by: Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _________________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         

October 21, 2020 Board of Education Meeting, Page 3  
Approve Resolution #2020-20, authorizing the issuance of OPUSD 2020 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
 



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.b.1. Approve Resolution 2020-21 Matching Funds for ROES Modulars Coversheet_10_21_2020.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 

DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020 

SUBJECT: B.2.b. APPROVE RESOLUTION #2020-21, APPLYING FOR STATE GRANT 
FUNDING BEYOND STATE BOND AUTHORITY FOR MEASURE S 
MODERNIZATION PROJECTS 18-20S MODULAR CLASSROOMS AT 
RED OAK ELEMENTARY 

 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-21, applying for state grant funding 

beyond state bond authority for Measure S modernization projects, 18-20S 
Modular Classrooms at Red Oak Elementary.  
 

BACKGROUND: The $9 billion in bonds that came with the passing of Proposition 51 back in 
2016 to fund construction and improvement of K-12 and community 
college facilities are completely depleted. As a result, the District will need to get 
in line for the next state bond for modernization projects. As part of Assembly 
Bill 48 is an end to the first-come, first-served process of allocating state 
building assistance. In its place, will be a system that will push small districts 
needing financial help and low-income, low-property wealth districts farther 
ahead in line for a larger share of state dollars and give priority to districts with 
pressing facilities need. Due to these changes, the State is requiring a board 
resolution indicating that there is no guarantee of funds from the next state bond. 
This resolution must be approved by the Board and submitted with the funding 
applications for Measure S modernization project, 18-20S Modular Classrooms 
at Red Oak Elementary. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: No immediate fiscal impact. That said, because there is the potential of not 
receiving matching funds, projected matching fund revenue is not included in the 
Measure S Master Plan. 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 1. Adopt Resolution No. 2020-21, applying for state grant funding beyond state 
bond authority for Measure S modernization projects, 18-20S Modular 
Classrooms at Red Oak Elementary 

2. Do not adopt Resolution No. 2020-21. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 

Prepared by: Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 
 
 
 



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.b.1. Approve Resolution 2020-21 Matching Funds for ROES Modulars Coversheet_10_21_2020.docx 

Board of Education Meeting, October 21, 2020 
Adopt Resolution No. 2020-21, applying for state grant funding beyond  
state bond authority for Measure S modernization projects, 18-20S  
Modular Classrooms at Red Oak Elementary 
Page 2  
 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by _________________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



STATE REQUIREMENT TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 
ACKNOWLEDGING STATE IS NOT OBLIGATED TO PROVIDE 

FUNDING FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES BEYOND BOND AUTHORITY 
 

 
The Oak Park Unified School District (District) is required to adopt a 
resolution acknowledging State Bond funding limitations prior to filing 
Modernization funding applications to the State. These limitations would be 
applicable for the following school: 
  

• Red Oak Elementary Replacement/Modernization 
 

 
The current State Bond funds from Proposition 51 for Modernization projects 
are depleted. The State is accepting Modernization funding applications with 
certain limitations.  The State requires school boards to be knowledgeable of 
the fact that it has no obligation to provide funding for Modernization projects 
and that future State bond measures may not provide funds for these 
applications.  Submitting these funding applications currently provides no 
guarantee of funding under the next State Bond.    
 
Benefit: The benefit to the District is to be positioned to obtain maximum 
State funding from future State bonds if available, but no guarantee.     
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD RESOLUTION 2020-21 

 
 

Applying For State Grant Funding Beyond State Bond Authority for 
the Following Modernization Projects 

 
 

• Red Oak Elementary Replacement/Modernization 
 
  

 
WHEREAS the Board of Education of the Oak Park Unified School District 
(District), County of Ventura, State of California, has determined that school 
facilities need to be constructed;   
 
WHEREAS, the State Allocation Board (SAB) has established an 
“Application Received Beyond Bond Authorization List” for projects that 
have been received.  
 
Pursuant to Title 2, Code of California Regulations Section 1859.95.1, the 
School Board of the Oak Park Unified School District hereby acknowledges 
the following; 
 
WHEREAS, the school board acknowledges that the remaining School 
Facility Program bond authority is currently exhausted for the funds being 
requested for this application; 
 
WHEREAS, the school board acknowledges that the State of California is not 
expected nor obligated to provide funding for projects and the acceptance of 
the application does not provide a guarantee of future State funding; 
 
WHEREAS, the school board acknowledges that any potential future State 
bond measures for the School Facility Program may not provide funds for the 
application being submitted;  
  
WHEREAS, the school board acknowledges that criteria (including, but not 
limited to, funding, qualifications, and eligibility) under a future State school 
facilities program may be substantially different than the current School 
Facility Program. The District’s approved application may be returned; 
 



WHEREAS, the school board acknowledges that they are electing to 
commence any pre-construction or construction activities at the District’s 
discretion and that the State is not responsible for any pre-construction or 
construction activities; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the school board authorizes 
submittal of the funding application for the above listed project given the 
above acknowledgements. 
 
ADOPTED this 21st day of October 2020, by the governing board of the 
Oak Park Unified School District of Ventura County, California by the 
following vote:  
 
AYES:  
 
NOS:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the above resolution was adopted by the Board 
of Education at a regular meeting of the board. 
 

 
___________________________ 
Clerk/Secretary of the Board 
 



AdmSvs/Board/DRAFT 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.c. APPROVE SERVICE CONTRACT FOR DISTRICT’S SECURITY 

CAMERA SYSTEM 
ACTION 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve a 4-year maintenance and support contract with Blue 

Violet Networks for the district’s Avigilon security camera system? 
 
BACKGROUND:  The district has an extensive security camera system which was initially 

installed in 2014 and expanded upon in subsequent years and now has over 
160 cameras and six network video recording servers to cover all six 
campuses. The system was purchased from Blue Violet Networks with a 5-
year maintenance agreement which has since expired. The security camera 
system is currently outside of an active maintenance and support agreement 
which means the district is not able to obtain support with problematic 
cameras, nor access the latest software updates for the security camera 
controllers. The district needs to re-establish an ongoing maintenance 
agreement with an Avigilon service provider to provide such troubleshooting 
services and access to the latest software updates and patches. The 4-year 
maintenance agreement proposal from Blue Violet covers preventative 
maintenance and annual cleaning of all cameras and servers, remote 
monitoring of cameras and servers to ensure all equipment is up and running, 
access to remote support and on-site support and installation of software 
upgrades and patch management. All travel and labor costs are included in the 
maintenance contract.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT:             The annual cost of the 4-year maintenance agreement is $14,871.06. This cost 

is included in the 2020-2021 approved General Fund budget.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the 4-year maintenance and support contract with Blue Violet 

Networks.  
 2. Do not approve the maintenance and support contract.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Enoch Kwok, Director of Technology 
         Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
 
 
 



AdmSvs/Board/DRAFT 

 
Board of Education Meeting, October 21, 2020 
Approve the 4-year maintenance and support contract with Blue Violet Networks 
Page 2  
 
 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 



 

Avigilon System Maintenance and Support Services 
Get the most out of  your Avigilon system 

 
Let BlueViolet Networks maintain your Avigilon security system so that you can take care of what matters most: 

your business.  A support agreement protects your investment and gives you the peace of mind knowing that 

your system is being monitored, maintained, and supported. Customize your support options and ensure you 

get the perfect support package that fits your unique requirements and your budget.

 
Priority Service 

– Our service contract customers always have First Priority 

No Surprises 
– Never worry about receiving a high repair bill again 

Control Support Costs 
- Be in control of your annual costs with unlimited access to support resources 

 

What’s Included in a Support Contract? 
Remote Monitoring 

Have the confidence that your system is working for you. Know that a camera is offline or a harddrive is down before the 

situation becomes critical.  

 
Preventive Maintenance 

Following Avigilon’s best practice guidelines, BVN performs an on-site assessment that includes a thorough inspection of 
servers and cameras, and repairs or replaces any cameras that are not working properly with the Platinum plan.  

One time a year, a BVN technician will perform a thorough cleaning of all parts of your Avigilon system, including servers, 
hard drives, power supplies, camera casings, cameras, and camera lenses.  

 
ACC Software Upgrade 

Stay up-to-date with the latest Avigilon Artificial Intelligence (AI) technologies. BlueViolet will upgrade your system to the 
latest Avigilon ACC software release. Keeping your software at the current version protects your investment,  maintains 

your manufacturer support and adds new features (additional hardware, software, and licensing may apply): 

Appearance Search 
COVID Feature Suite  
Weapon Detection 

Focus Of Attention 
License Plate Recognition 

Facial Recognition 

Unusual Motion Detection 
Self-Learning Analytics 

Mobile Radio Integration 

 
Investigation and Admin Support 

Need help with an investigation?  
● With a support contract you gain access to a team of Avigilon experts who can greatly expedite your investigation 

by getting you the footage that you need quickly.  
Forget your password?  

● A quick call to BlueViolet will have your password updated and you back in your Avigilon system.  
Need a software patch? 

● BVN will update the software to resolve an issue. 

 
Jacob Sperling 

BlueViolet Networks 

17815 Newhope Street, Suite M 

 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

714.754.4000 

1 



 
 

Support Services 
 We provide the technical expertise, you get the peace of mind! 

 

Service Silver  Gold  Platinum 

Monday Through Friday, 8AM-5PM, Phone And Email Support √ √ √ 

Remote Support And Monitoring √ √ √ 

ACC Software Major Release Upgrade √ √ √ 

ACC Software Patch Updates And Password Management  √ √ √ 

Access To Client Portal √ √ √ 

Preventive Maintenance And Cleaning   √ √ 

On-Site Support And Priority Dispatch  √ √ 

Remote End User And System Admin Training  √ √ 

Emergency Support 24/7/365   √ 

Investigation and System Admin Support   √ 

Parts And Materials Replacement    √ 

Silver Support Includes: 
● Monday Through Friday, 8AM-5PM, Phone And Email Support 

○ Access to BVN’s Avigilon team during business hours for support and troubleshooting. 

● Remote Support And Monitoring 

○ BVN will monitor your entire Avigilon security system for failures and alarms.  

○ In the event of an issue, BVN will remotely access your system and address the issue. 

● ACC Upgrade 

○ Upgrade to the latest ACC software version - including new features 

■ Additional hardware, software, and licensing may be necessary to access all features 

○ Excludes Windows updates 

● Patch And Password Management  

○ Patch installation and management 

■ BlueViolets Network engineers will keep your video management system updated with the 

latest patches of your current ACC version 

○ BVN will maintain, store, change, and manage system passwords 

 
Jacob Sperling 

BlueViolet Networks 

17815 Newhope Street, Suite M 

 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

714.754.4000 

2 



 
■ BVN will reset passwords and set up new users 

● Access To Client Portal 

○ Track, open, manage your open service tickets with BVN through a convenient and intuitive online 

portal. 

 

Gold Support Includes: 
All services in Silver, plus: 

● Preventive Maintenance 

○ BVN performs quarterly maintenance on critical and peripheral equipment.  

■ Comprehensive checklist that ensures all parts of your Avigilon system are working as they 

should 

■ Maintenance conforms to manufacturer and industry standards 

○ Yearly server and camera cleaning 

■ Checklist includes lens, camera casings, harddrives, power supplies, and more. 

● On-Site Support And Priority Dispatch 

○ BVN provides on-site support for issues that cannot be addressed remotely. 

■ On-site support is during business hours. (M-F, 8AM-5PM) 

○ BVN provides next day dispatch to ensure that your system has the minimum amount of down time. 

● Remote End User Training And System Admin Training 

○ BVN will provide remote training on ACC. 

■ Training for using Avigilon’s AI features 

■ ACC management such as adding users, changing passwords, ect 

■ Training from a catalog of Avigilon courses  

● Labor to install Window Server OS upgrades 

○ Customer to provide the license 

● Changing of the default password of every camera and Avigilon server 

○ Network security best practice 

Platinum Support Includes: 
Includes all the services in Silver and Gold, plus: 

● Emergency Support 24/7/365 

○ 24/7/365 for system critical events - defined as safety or system effecting 

○ Remote and on-site support 

● Investigation and System Admin Support 

○ BVN will conduct investigations on your behalf using  your video management system and access control 

■ Be alerted when there is suspicious activity on one of your camera views 

○ Change camera views when necessary 

■ Existing mounts and cabling only 

○ Complete system check and inventory 

● Parts And Materials Replacement Coverage 

○ BlueViolet covers your entire Avigilon system including cameras, encoders, and POE injectors  

■ Does not include servers but covers server hard drives and power supplies 

Additions to be Included at the Gold and Platinum Level: 
● Coverage of cameras installed after contract is signed 

○ Coverage of the two cameras to be installed at MCMS 

 
Jacob Sperling 

BlueViolet Networks 

17815 Newhope Street, Suite M 

 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

714.754.4000 

3 



 
○ Coverage of any other cameras installed or added during contract period up to the amount of 100 total 

cameras 

 

(9/2020) 

Oak Park USD 

Proposal Pricing 

 

Package 1 Year Price 4 Year Price Signature 

Silver:  $8,391.54  

 

$7,552.39 Per Year 

 

 

___________________________ 

Gold:  $16,523.40  

 

$14,871.06  Per Year 

 

 

___________________________ 

Platinum:  $29,961.09  

 

$26,964.98 Per Year 

 

 

___________________________ 

Multiple year contracts are invoiced annually.  

Additional Options 

Options Annual Price Signature For Desired Option 

Camera And Lens Cleaning 
(included 1 time per year in Gold and Platinum 

coverage)  

$5,079.60  

 

 

_______________________________ 

Extend Dell Hardware Warranty - 

additional 2 years 
(3 year warranty included with initial purchase)  

NA 

 

 

_______________________________ 

 

 

CUSTOMER: BLUE VIOLET NETWORKS: 

  

_________________________________ ___________________________________ 

Signature   Signature 

 
Jacob Sperling 

BlueViolet Networks 

17815 Newhope Street, Suite M 

 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

714.754.4000 

4 



 
_________________________________ ___________________________________ 

 

 

(9/2020) 

Oak Park USD 
Schedule A 

Covered Equipement 

 

Location Type Quantity 

District Office   

 Server 1 

 5.0-H3-BO1-IR 7 

 2.0-H3-B1 2 

 9W-H3-3MH-DP1-B 2 

 2.0W-H3-BO1-IR 3 

 12W-H3-4MH-DP1-B 2 

 8.0MP-HD-DOME-180 1 

   

Oak Hill Elementary    

 Server 2 

 5.0-H3-BO1-IR 8 

 2.0-H3-B1 1 

 2.0-H3-DO1-IR 1 

 1.0W-H3-BO2-IR 1 

 3.0C-H4A-BO1-IR 2 

 5.0L-H4A-BO1-IR 3 

 
Jacob Sperling 

BlueViolet Networks 

17815 Newhope Street, Suite M 

 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

714.754.4000 

5 



 

 9W-H3-3MH-DP1-B 2 

   

Oak Park Highschool   

 Server 2 

 2.0-H3-B1 4 

 5.0-H3-BO1-IR 22 

 2.0-H3-DO1-IR 2 

 12W-H3-4MH-DP1-B 6 

 8L-H4PRO-B 2 

 9W-H3-3MH-DP1-B 7 

 1.0W-H3-BO2-IR 4 

 5.0L-H4A-BO1-IR 1 

 5.0-H3-BO2-IR 1 

 6.0L-H4F-DO1-IR 2 

   

Brookside Elementary   

 Server 1 

 2.0-H3-B1 2 

 5.0-H3-BO1-IR 11 

 2.0C-H3A-BO1-IR 1 

 3.0C-H3A-BO1-IR 1 

 2.0W-H3-BO1-IR 1 

 9W-H3-3MH-DP1-B 3 

 
Jacob Sperling 

BlueViolet Networks 

17815 Newhope Street, Suite M 

 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

714.754.4000 

6 



 

 5.0L-H4A-BO1-IR 3 

   

Read Oak Elementary   

 Server 1 

 5.0-H3-BO1-IR 7 

 2.0-H3-B1 2 

 2.0-H3-DO1-IR 1 

 2.0C-H4A-BO1-IR 1 

 1.0W-H3-BO1-IR 2 

 9W-H3-3MH-DP1-B 3 

 5.0-H3-BO2-IR 1 

 5.0L-H4A-BO1-IR 1 

 1.0W-H3-BO2-IR 1 

   

Medea Creek Middle School   

 Server 2 

 5.0-H3-BO1-IR 11 

 2.0-H3-B1 2 

 1.0W-H3-BO1-IR 3 

 2.0W-H3-BO1-IR 1 

 5.0-H3-BO2-IR 4 

 2.0W-H3-BO2-IR 1 

 9W-H3-3MH-DP1-B 4 

 
Jacob Sperling 

BlueViolet Networks 

17815 Newhope Street, Suite M 

 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

714.754.4000 

7 



 

 2.0-H3-DO1-IR 2 

 3.0C-H4A-BO1-IR 3 

 2.0C-H4A-BO1-IR 1 

 5.0L-H4A-D1-IR 1 

 3.0W-H3-DC1 1 

 5.0L-H4A-BO1-IR 3 

 12W-H3-4MH-DP1-B 1 

 2.0-H3-DC2 1 

 
  

 
Jacob Sperling 

BlueViolet Networks 

17815 Newhope Street, Suite M 

 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

714.754.4000 

8 



 
Terms and Conditions  

CUSTOMER named above hereby agrees to enter into this Support Agreement (the “Agreement”) with BLUE VIOLET                

NETWORKS effective upon payment, with respect to the equipment described on the attached Schedule “A” (the                

“Equipment”), which is incorporated herein by this reference, upon the terms and conditions set forth below: 

 TERM:  This Agreement shall be for a term of four (4) years (the “Term”), commencing upon payment. 

AGREEMENT: During the Term hereof, BLUE VIOLET NETWORKS agrees to provide service, maintenance and technical               

support on the equipment installed by BLUE VIOLET NETWORKS from defects in material and workmanship. BLUE VIOLET                 

NETWORKS shall have the option to repair the Equipment in place or to accept the return of the Equipment for repair or                      

replacement. All expenses incidental to such repair or replacement shall be borne by BLUE VIOLET NETWORKS. In                 

performance of its services to be rendered hereunder.  

This agreement is between CUSTOMER named above and Blue Violet Networks and shall include custom support for an 

Avigilon system and network, as well as some surrounding devices as listed on the schedule of equipment.  

 

Essential provision of this contract shall include offsite remote access to Customer’s Avigilon system. 

 

This contract specifically covers support and/or maintenance for any and all equipment and/or software, CCTV and Access 

Control Systems listed in the agreement, but it will not cover equipment additions or special projects for each property. 

Nor will it cover “out of warranty equipment” or manufacturer discontinued equipment.  

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: PURCHASER acknowledges and agrees that neither BLUE VIOLET NETWORKS, its agents or 

employees, shall be liable for any loss or damage to the Equipment or other CUSTOMER property or for the injury or death 

of the Customer's agents, employees, or customers, which result from the maintenance service provided hereunder by 

BLUE VIOLET NETWORKS, its employees or agents, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, unless such loss, damages, 

injury or death result from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of BLUE VIOLET NETWORKS, its agents or employees. 

 IN NO EVENT, HOWEVER, SHALL BLUE VIOLET NETWORKS, ITS AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES, BE LIABLE TO  PURCHASER FOR 

PURCHASER'S INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT  LIMITATION, ANY LOSS OF 

BUSINESS, DAMAGE, OR EXPENSE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING FROM PURCHASER'S INABILITY TO USE THE 

EQUIPMENT EITHER SEPARATELY OR IN COMBINATION WITH ANY OTHER EQUIPMENT OR FROM ANY OTHER CAUSE.) 

During the performance of services, Blue Violet Networks shall maintain the following minimum insurance coverage: 

Workers’ Compensation/Commercial Automobile Liability/Comprehensive General Liability all in the amount of $1,000,000 

per occurrence. 

 Blue Violet Networks  will perform its services in a timely, professional and workmanlike manner, and will provide 

sufficient qualified personnel who are capable of performing Blue Violet Networks’ duties, tasks and obligations under this 

Agreement and any Statements of Work. In the event that Purchaser informs Blue Violet Networks that any of the Blue 

Violet Networks personnel that are assigned to work with Purchaser are not properly qualified, are not performing in a 

competent manner or for other reasons are not approved, or later become disapproved by Purchaser, Blue Violet 

Networks shall promptly replace such personnel with other qualified, competent personnel acceptable to Purchaser. 

 

 
Jacob Sperling 

BlueViolet Networks 

17815 Newhope Street, Suite M 

 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

714.754.4000 

9 



 
This Agreement shall in all respects be governed by the laws of the State of California as if it were entered into by residents 

of the State of California and without reference to its principles of conflicts of laws.  The parties hereby agree that all 

disputes arising out of this Agreement shall be subject the Dispute Resolution provisions which follows:  that all requests 

by either party for injunctive or other provisional relief, shall be brought in, and be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction and 

venue of, the federal and state courts within Orange County, California.  Both parties hereby consent to the personal and 

exclusive jurisdiction and venue of these courts, and expressly waive any right to bring legal action in connection with this 

Agreement in any other jurisdiction or venue. 

 In the event a dispute arises between the parties, including but not limited to a dispute over the fees due to Blue Violet 

Networks, the parties agree to the following procedures: 

 Informal Attempt to Resolve: Within ten (10) days of either party notifying the other in writing of a dispute that has 

not been resolved, the parties agree to have an officer or other person with authority to settle the matter to meet 

and/or talk on an informal basis to determine if it can be resolved without need for further action; 

 Binding Arbitration: In the event that the parties’ effort to resolve the dispute between them pursuant to 

subsection (a), above, is not successful, either party may file an arbitration demand with JAMS to have the matter 

resolved through binding arbitration before a single arbitrator chosen in accordance with, and acting under the 

Commercial Rules of, JAMS, which Rules are expressly incorporated herein by reference.  Any such JAMS proceeding 

shall be commenced exclusively in Orange County, California.  The arbitrator shall have the authority to enter a 

written award, and the obligation to render such award within thirty (30) days of the close of the arbitration 

hearing.  

EXCLUSIONS:  Expressly excluded from this Agreement are damages to or failure of the Equipment which damage or failure 

is caused by other than normal use, including, but not limited to, (a) CUSTOMER'S employees or agents' misuse, 

negligence, accident, theft or unexplained loss, or abuse of the Equipment; (b) natural occurrences, (c) connection to 

existing electrical current, (d) improper wiring, (e) the installation, repair, or alteration by anyone other than BLUE VIOLET 

NETWORKS employees or authorized agents,or, (f) water damage or lightning damage.  This Agreement specifically 

excludes labor and material costs for additions to, rearrangements of, or relocation of the Equipment.  If the CUSTOMER 

requests service outside the scope of this Agreement, such repair or service will be furnished by BLUE VIOLET NETWORKS 

at its applicable rates for time and material then in effect.  If vendors other than BLUE VIOLET NETWORKS employees 

perform maintenance, repairs or alteration (additions or deletions) to the Equipment, this Agreement, by said acts shall be 

null and void.   UPS, batteries, PC’s, servers, hard drives, routers, switches,  software damage caused by viruses are not 

covered by the maintenance agreement and will be billed as time and materials unless specified. Any other Data services, 

IP network services or equipment, will be provided on a billable basis at the current hourly rates.   Also excluded are 

manufacturers discontinued hardware & software.  The CUSTOMER is responsible for manufacturer software 

assurance/upgrade coverage and all third-party network technical support and hardware costs, including Microsoft and 

antivirus software. 

ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS FOR ACCESS CONTROL: Does not cover door replacements and door adjustments that are 

outside the equipment that has been installed by  BLUE VIOLET NETWORKS. 

 
Jacob Sperling 

BlueViolet Networks 

17815 Newhope Street, Suite M 

 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

714.754.4000 

10 



TO:                 MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
  
FROM:           DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
  
DATE:            OCTOBER 21, 2020 
  
SUBJECT:     B.2.d.  APPROVE ACCEPTANCE OF DONATION 

                                                                                                                                                                                         
ACTION  

 
ISSUE:                      Shall the Board acknowledge and accept the donation made to the Oak Park 

Unified School District? 
  
BACKGROUND:    The following donation have been made to the District: 
  

  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Accept the donation with thanks. 
 
  
                                                                                          Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
  ______________________________________ 

                                                                             Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
                                                                                          Superintendent 
 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT 
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 

Site/Program Gift/Donor Gift 
Oak Park High School Brendon Anderson Bluetooth Speaker - $750 



  

TO: BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:                      B.3.a.   APPROVE REVISED GPA DESIGNATION ON THE OAK PAK HIGH    
                                                      SCHOOL TRANSCRIPT 
                     ACTION 
 
ISSUE:         Shall the Board approve Oak Park High School proposal to revise the GPA 

designation by removing the UC/CSU and Cal Grant GPA from transcripts? 
 

BACKGROUND:         With the addition of a Cumulative Weighted GPA on the OPHS Transcript in 
January 2020 and with the current uncapped UC/CSU GPA on the OPHS 
transcript being often inaccurate as most UC/CSU campus cap the number of 
Honors/AP classes at 8 except for UCLA and UC Berkeley we recommend its 
removal from the OPHS transcript. Additionally, we recommend the removal of 
the Cal Grant GPA as well since OPHS reports directly to the State on behalf of 
students and families. This GPA has only one purpose for this scholarship 
program and with students no longer needing to self-report, there is no need for 
the GPA to be present on the OPHS transcript. The proposed changes will make 
students’ transcripts easier to understand by all college admissions offices. The 
proposal from Oak Park High School and sample transcripts are included for the 
board’s review.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT:         None 

 
ALTERNATIVES:                     1.  Approve Oak Park High School proposal to revise the GPA designation by      
                                                           removing the UC/CSU and Cal Grant GPA from transcripts                                                    

2.  Do not approve Oak Park High School proposal to revise the GPA  
                                                           designation by removing the UC/CSU and Cal Grant GPA from transcripts 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by:  Natalie Smith, Assistant Principal, Curriculum and Instruction, Oak Park High School  
                       Kevin Buchanan, Principal Oak Park High School   
                       Dr. Jay Greenlinger, Director, Curriculum and Instruction  
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _____________________, seconded by ____________________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



 

 

Oak Park High School GPA Revision Proposal 
 

From: Counseling Department (10th-12th) - Julie Ross, Suzie Stasiefski, Jenny Charrett, Javier 
Licea 
College Advisor - Julie Prince 
Assistant Principal of Curriculum and Instruction - Natalie Smith 
 
To: Various OPHS stakeholders 
 
Proposal 
With the addition of a Cumulative Weighted GPA on the OPHS Transcript in January 2020 and 
with the current UC/CSU GPA on the OPHS transcript being often inaccurate as most UC/CSU 
campus cap the number of Honors/AP classes at 8 (the OPHS GPA is uncapped), we 
recommend its removal from the OPHS transcript as it often gives students an inflated sense of 
their UC/CSU GPA. 
 
Additionally, we recommend the removal of the Cal Grant GPA as well since OPHS reports 
directly to the State on behalf of students and families. This GPA has only one purpose for this 
scholarship program and with students no longer needing to self-report, there is no need for the 
GPA to be present on the OPHS transcript. 
 
Stakeholder Input 

Who When Feedback 

OPHS Leadership 
Team 

August 28, 2020 & 
September 25, 2020 

8/28: Leadership team discussed and didn't see 
any down side to the proposal. They will return 
at the next meeting with input from their 
teachers to ensure no other perspectives are 
missing that would suggest the proposal be 
denied. 
9/25: No negative feedback from departments. 
Voted unanimously to adopt the proposal. 

OPHS School Site 
Council 

September 22, 2020 Site Council supports the proposal but would 
like to discuss adding another type of GPA in a 
future discussion. 

OPUSD Curriculum 
Council 

October 6, 2020 The CC advised the HS to alert parents to this 
change prior to report cards/end of semester 
grades noting that this will not affect any 
ongoing applications for admission or 
scholarships. 

GOAL - Propose to the OPUSD Board of Education on October 21, 2020 

 



Personal info Removed 

Sample Transcript with the Proposed GPAs shown



Personal info Removed 

Sample Current Transcript with all GPAs shown



TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:       B.3.b.  APPROVE ADDENDUM TO THE CAREER TECHNICAL EDUCATION    
                                      INCENTIVE GRANT (CTEIG) MEMORANDUM OF   
                                      UNDERSTANDING(MOU) BETWEEN VENTURA COUNTY OFFICE OF  
                                      EDUCATION AND OAK PARK USD  
 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve the addendum to the CTEIG MOU between Ventura 

County Office of Education (VCOE) and Oak Park USD?  
 
BACKGROUND: Oak Park Unified School District participates as a consortium member in the 

CTEIG program. CTEIG is a program established as a state education economic 
and workforce development initiative to provide with the knowledge and skills 
necessary to transition to employment and postsecondary education. At the June 
30, 2020 meeting the Board approved the CTEIG MOU with VCOE which 
provides OPUSD with a funding source to support the classroom needs of courses 
in the areas of design, engineering, computer science, and digital media arts. 
VCOE has remaining CTEIG consortium funds from the CTEIG MOU, 2019-
2020, which are being distributed amongst districts in the county.  This addendum 
is for additional funds available to the District beyond the previously approved 
MOU amount of $107,686. The MOU approved at the June 30th meeting is 
available at this link: https://bit.ly/3fICFy2 for the board’s reference.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: OPUSD will receive an additional $6,976 in grant funds. OPUSD must expend 

funds in a 2:1 ratio in support of these programs.   
 
ALTERNATIVES:        1.  Approve the addendum to the CTEIG MOU between VCOE and Oak Park 
                                            USD. 
                                        2. Do not approve the addendum to the CTEIG MOU between VCOE and Oak    

       Park USD. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative #1 
 
Prepared by: Jay Greenlinger, Ed.D., Director of Curriculum and Instruction 
  
 Respectfully submitted, 

   
  ___________________________ 

  Anthony W. Knight Ed.D.,  
  Superintendent 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of ______________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep.         

https://bit.ly/3fICFy2


Addendum to:
Memorandum of Understanding

OAKPARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
And

VENTURA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

February,2019 

Addendum October 2020

This addendum provides for updates to the Memorandum of Understanding, headingdate February 
2019. through which VCOEand Oak Park Unified School District will worktogetherto meetthe 
deliverables of the California Department of Education (CDE) CareerTechnical Education Incentive Grant 
(CTEIG).
This addendum provides:

a. Term of the service contract extends to December 31, 2020.
b. Clarification on spending deadline, CTEIG resource 6387 funds to be expended by December31, 
2020
c. Additional funds, resource 6387. Currently these are established as peridentified on "2019- 
2020 VCOE Consortium CTE Budget-Oak Park Unified School District." For CTEIG Resource 6387:
$29,000.00. Proposed additional funds in the amount of $6,976.00.

This addendum must be returnedtoVCOEwith district signatures no laterthan November30,2020 to 
be considered fully executed.
IN WITNESS WHERE OF the parties hereto have executed this agreement.

SIGNATURES

Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D., Superintendent Date
Oak Park Unified School District

Lisa Cline, Executive Director, Internal Business Services 
VENTURA COUNTYOFFICE OF EDUCATION

Date



2019 - 2020
VCOE Consortium CTE Budget 

Oak Park Unified School District

ROP Courses (CTEIG 6387} $27,000.00

CTSO Funds (CTEIG 6387) $2,000.00

Pathways/District (SWP 6388) $74,686.00

Middle School Career
Exploration Activities (SWP 6388)

$4,000.00

DISTRICT TOTAL $107,686.00

CTEIG 6387 Additional updated Oct 2020 $6,976.00



 

 

 
TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 

DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020 

SUBJECT: B.4.a. APPROVE REVISED MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH 
OAK PARK TEACHERS ASSOCIATION REGARDING INSTRUCTION 
IN THE HYBRID LEARNING MODEL FOR ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 

 
ACTION 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve the revised Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between 

Oak Park Unified School District (OPUSD) and the Oak Park Teachers Association 
(OPTA) regarding instruction in the Hybrid Learning Model for Elementary 
Schools? 
 

BACKGROUND: At its September 15, 2020 Meeting the Board approved MOU with OPTA regarding 
the Return to Instruction in the Hybrid Model for Elementary Schools. The OPTA 
and OPUSD negotiation teams met on October 16, 2020 and revised the 
elementary Hybrid Learning MOU to modify the language regarding 
requirements for re-opening of schools in the Hybrid Learning/Blended Learning 
which would consist of a combination of in-person and at-home learning.  The 
proposed MOU is included for the Board’s review.  
 

ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the revised Memorandum of Understanding between OPUSD and 
OPTA regarding instruction for secondary schools in the Hybrid Learning 
Model  

2. Do not approve the revised Memorandum of Understanding. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 

Prepared by: Stew McGugan, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Memorandum of Understanding 
Between 

Oak Park Unified School District 
And 

Oak Park Teachers Association 
October 16, 2020 

HYBRID Elementary Model 
  

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") between the Oak Park Unified School District 
("District") and the Oak Park Teachers Association ("OPTA") (referred to collectively as "the 
Parties") on October 16, 2020 regarding instruction in the Hybrid Learning Model.  
  

INTRODUCTION 
The Parties have a shared commitment in providing an educational program that supports the 
needs of all students while ensuring a safe learning environment for students and staff by 
following the guidelines established by both state and county health departments. 
Continued education of our students during the 2020-2021 year will require collaboration among 
the Parties given the impact of COVID-19 and the possible need to fluctuate between 
instructional models of instruction (at-school learning Hybrid/Blended and Distance Learning). 
  
To support this, an instructional delivery model has been developed with input being gathered 
from the association, educators, administrators, and parents. The instructional model put into 
practice at individual sites and/or district-wide shall be triggered based on the needs of the 
district, the direction and guidance from the State of California, Ventura County Department of 
Public Health and the Ventura County Office of Education.  
  
The Parties recognize there is a need to address the learning environment and instructional 
model of schools in the Novel Coronavirus environment. Due to the safety guidelines issued by 
the California Department of Public Health, the District had to start the school year in the 
Distance Learning Model.  It is the mutual interest of both parties to address the 
recommendations of public health officials in order to prevent the spread of illness arising from 
the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19). 
 
ADHERENCE TO HEALTH GUIDELINES: 
The District shall adhere to the COVID-19 guidelines issued by the Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention (“CDC”), California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”), California 
Department of Education (“CDE”), the California Department of Industrial Relations Division of 
Occupational Safety and Health ("Cal/OSHA"), the Ventura County Department of Health, and 
the Ventura County Office of Education. The parties agree to meet as soon as possible to 
negotiate the impact and effects of any revisions or updates to those guidelines set forth by the 
above agencies. 
 
The 2020-2021 school year the District may operate under three (3) instructional models: a 
Hybrid/Blended Model, a Distance Learning Model, and the current Oak Park Independent  
School (OPIS) model while in the Hybrid model.  

1 



 
The District shall immediately notify the Association if it becomes necessary to transition from 
one instructional model to another; e.g., to and/or from a Distance Learning model or traditional, 
full capacity model or hybrid/blended model. The District shall contact the local public health 
departments to determine if schools and worksites should be reopened in hybrid or full capacity 
in-person models.  At any point in the future that closure is recommended by the local public 
health department, the District and OPTA shall immediately bargain the impact and effects of 
the closure. 
 
The parties agree that in-person instruction, via the Hybrid/Blended Model, will begin for 
elementary students, grades DK-5, on January 5, 2021, provided that Ventura County has met 
the then existing requirements for reopening in-person instruction.  Currently, per California’s 
Blueprint for a Safer Economy, Ventura County must remain in the Red (Substantial) Tier for, at 
least, two consecutive weeks prior to in-person instruction beginning.  Elementary bargaining 
unit members shall work the following three (3) consecutive days using the Friday Distance 
Learning Model Schedule to prepare for Hybrid/Blended teaching:  December 16, 17, and 18, 
2020. 
 
If Ventura County does not meet State and/or local guidelines for reopening in-person 
instruction on January 5, 2021, the Parties agree to re-open as soon as State and local 
reopening guidelines are met.  
 
The Certificated Salary Schedule (Appendix A) shall be increased by one percent (1%), 
retroactive to July 1, 2020.  
 
The Parties agree to the following Hybrid/Blended Learning model schedule: 

Brookside, Oak Hills, Red Oak Elementary School Schedules 

Day In Class At Home 

Monday A B 

Tuesday A B 

Wednesday B A 

Thursday B A 

Friday NONE AB 
 

Brookside, Red Oak, Oak Hills BELL  Schedule M-TH 

Grade Time 

DK 8:15 - 12:15 

K 8:15 - 1:15 

1-3 8:20 - 2:30 

4-5 8:20 - 2:56 
 **Friday will be a work day for students off campus 

2 



 
Hybrid /Blended Model 
 
For the 2020–21 school year, the minimum instructional minutes each school day per Ed Code               
43501 is as follows: 
(a) 180 instructional minutes in kindergarten; 
(b) 230 instructional minutes in grades 1 to 3, inclusive; and 
(c) 240 instructional minutes in grades 4 to 5, inclusive. 
 
This model consists of in-person and at-home learning (Hybrid/Blended Model). Students in all 
grades will be assigned to a cohort (A or B). Each cohort will have 2 days of on-campus 
learning, 2 days of at-home learning, and 1 day (Friday) of 45 minutes of Distance Learning.  All 
at-home days will consist of daily live interactions with students and Certificated teachers. 
 
The District will use the Transfers and Reassignments language (page 6 below) to assign 
teachers to the Distance Learning Model based on students who have elected to participate and 
continue in the Distance Learning Model.  Teachers assigned only to the Distance Learning 
model, following the return to Hybrid/Blended Learning Model, will abide by the Distance 
Learning MOU dated July 29, 2020.  
 
If it is necessary to transition from the Hybrid/Blended Model to Distance Learning Model, 
students will remain with their new Hybrid/Blended or Distance Learning Model teacher.  
  
Grades DK-5 
General education teachers shall provide both daily live interaction and the daily instructional 
minutes to both cohorts to satisfy the legally mandated number of “daily instructional minutes,” 
per Ed Code 43501.  For off-campus students in the cohort, the daily instructional minutes must 
satisfy the Distance Learning Model MOU.  Daily instructional minutes can include live direct 
interaction/instruction, small group meetings, asynchronous instruction, independent work, 
engaging students in social-emotional learning, and school connectedness activities.  

 
Brookside, Red Oak, Oak Hills Window for School Activities M-TH 

Grade Time 

DK  8:15 - 12:15 

K 8:15 - 1:15 

1-3 8:20 - 2:30 

4-5 8:20 - 2:56 

The subsequent week’s meeting times shall be shared with students and parents no later than 
Sunday at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Special Education teachers shall follow these guidelines when appropriate and applicable.  
 
 
 

3 



 
Monday - Thursday the daily instructional minutes shall be broken down in the following 
way: 
 
100 minutes of direct instruction will include a minimum of 40 minutes of live interaction:  

1. 10 minutes of live morning connection time each day. (10 minutes) 
2. At least 1 x 30-minute lesson must be taught live daily. (30 minutes)  

a. 40 minutes of required live instruction each day are met through the 10 minute 
morning connection and 30-minute live lesson as listed above.  

3. 2 x 30-minute lessons daily (can be live, pre-recorded, or 3rd party) (60 minutes) can 
include mini-lesson, independent assessment, independent practice, and small group 
instruction. 

4. The remainder of the daily instructional minutes will comprise of daily independent work 
provided for review/practice (teachers will recommend non-screen activities) will be as 
follow: 

a. DK- Kindergarten - 80 minutes 
b. Grades 1-3 - 130 minutes 
c. Grades 4-5 - 140 minutes  

5. The minimum live interactions for Fridays will be 45 minutes from 9:15 am  - 10:00 am. 
Teachers shall assign the following remaining minutes to independent or regular 
assignments, with the intent for students to continue/complete on Friday.  

 

● DK-K 135 minutes 
● Grades 1-3  - 185 minutes 
● Grades 4-5 - 195 minutes 

 
Elementary PE teachers will provide help to lead organized activities for students before school 
on the playground as well as during the scheduled recess and lunch times, when social 
distancing is required or recommended.  Elementary PE teachers will have a separate recess 
and lunch break. In addition, Elementary PE teachers will collaborate with principals to schedule 
PE classes during the regular school hours.  If elementary PE teachers are needed to work 20 
minutes before school hours, they shall be allowed to leave campus 20 minutes earlier than 
usual.  On Fridays, Elementary PE teachers will be encouraged to help direct PE enrichment 
activities from 12:00 - 3:00 pm.   Elementary PE teachers must attend staff meetings.  
 
The Parties agree for Friday Work/Preparation Days to the following schedule:  

Grades DK-5 Friday Hybrid Learning Model Teacher Work/Preparation Schedule 

Time Topic 

8:00 - 9:00 Department, Leadership, Staff, Grade Level Meetings 

9:15 - 10:00 Live Classroom Meeting 

10:00 - 11:30 
IEP, SST, 504/ Parent Meeting/Flexible Office Hours/Professional 
Development Opportunities 

11:30 - 12:15 Lunch 

12:15 - 3:00 Preparation (protected teacher time) 

4 



 
a. 8:00 am - 9:00 am may consist of department, grade level, Distance Learning 

teacher groups, Leadership, and/or Staff meetings. Each site principal will set a 
schedule and present the staff meeting schedule to staff prior to the school year 
starting.  

b. 9:15 - 10:00 am will be for Live Classroom meetings. *Live classroom meetings 
are required for all students.  Teachers are required to take attendance and 
send absences to the school office by 10:30 am. Live classroom meetings are 
between the teachers and students for the purposes of instruction, progress 
monitoring, and maintaining school connectedness, which shall include 
instruction, school announcements, online ASB activities, advisory activities, and 
academic support.   

c. 10:00 am - 11:30 am may be used for IEP, 504, and SST meetings, parent 
meetings, office hours, and professional development. IEP, 504, and SST 
meetings are not limited to the Friday Preparation Day schedule.  

d. 11:30 am - 12:15 pm will be a designated lunch time.  
e. 12:15 pm - 3:00 pm will be for bargaining unit members to use as undisturbed 

preparation time. 
f. All bargaining unit members are encouraged to work from home on Friday 

Work/Preparation Days and shall be available for virtual meetings as applicable.  
 
Site principals and Director of Curriculum and Instruction will provide examples/samples of 
Hybrid Off-Campus learning days.  Teachers will be responsible for developing and 
implementing their instructional schedule.  
   
Transition from Distance Learning to Hybrid/Blended Learning Model -  
Due to determinations by state and local departments of public health, the 2020-2021 school 
year began using the Distance Learning Model.  As a result, bargaining unit members are 
following the Distance Learning Model.  Once the Ventura County Office of Education, the 
Ventura County Department of Public Health, California Department of Education, and/or the 
Oak Park Unified School District determine that it is safe to start the Hybrid/Blended Model, and 
bargaining unit members are notified by authorities or the District of this determination, 
bargaining unit members shall work three (3) consecutive school days using the Friday Distance 
Learning Model Schedule to organize and prepare for hybrid teaching. If the three (3) school 
days include a Friday, staff meetings will not be held, and, if possible, previously scheduled 
meetings, including IEPs and SSTs will be postponed or rescheduled.  
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING MODIFICATIONS 
The Parties recognize that the instructional models identified herein may have negotiable 
impacts. As such, the Parties agree, that due to the COVID-19 pandemic and social distancing 
guidelines, it is necessary to temporarily make the following modifications to the current 
contract.  All other current CBA language remains applicable. 
 
Work Year and Working Hours   
The teacher workday will be revised to meet the instructional days as set forth in the 
instructional models, described above.  Bargaining unit members under the Distance Learning 

5 



 
model may work from home or from their classroom. During the Hybrid/Blended Learning model 
bargaining unit members are required to be present at their school site.  
Administrator Viewing Live Lessons   
Bargaining unit members shall provide access for administration to join all requested virtual 
sessions with students. 
 
Staff Meetings  
Principals will schedule all staff meetings virtually unless they are safely able to have the 
meeting in person.  
  
IEP/504/SST Meetings  
IEP/504/SST meetings should be scheduled from 10:00 am -11:30 am on Fridays when 
possible.  However, these meetings may also be before, after, or during the school day per site 
and at the teacher’s discretion. Priority shall be given to hold these meetings virtually.  
  
Parent/Teacher Conferences (DK-5)  
Parent-teacher conferences (November and March) will be held virtually unless both the teacher 
and the parent(s) agree to an in-person conference.  
  
Evaluations  
During the 2020-21 school year, only probationary and temporary employees will be evaluated. 
Permanent employee evaluations will be postponed for the 2020-2021 school year and will 
resume according to the current evaluation schedule in the 2021-2022 school year; i.e., 
permanent employees scheduled for evaluation in the 2020-2021 school year will be evaluated 
in the 2021-2022 school year; permanent employees scheduled for evaluation in the 2021-2022 
school year will be evaluated in the 2022-2023 school year. 
  
Transfers and Reassignments  
The Parties recognize the need for accommodations of teaching assignments and parent 
election of the proffered learning models for their student(s) during this unprecedented time 
given individual circumstances. To support this, transfer/reassignment may be initiated by the 
District to accommodate staffing needs.  Any transfer/reassignment will not be made in an 
arbitrary or capricious manner.  Transfers/reassignments made during the term of the MOU are 
temporary; the bargaining unit member will be returned to their previous position upon 
termination of the MOU.  If a transfer/reassignment becomes necessary, transfers will be filled 
based on staffing changes and prioritized as follows:  (1) bargaining unit members with 
underlying medical conditions as confirmed by a physician note. (2) at-risk teachers due to 
caring for an individual who is impacted by other medical conditions as confirmed by a physician 
note (3) teachers who have expressed an interest in transfer; and (4) involuntary 
transfers/reassignments, based on seniority.  If a teacher is involuntarily transferred/reassigned, 
they will receive a $200/day stipend, up to $600, for training, as deemed necessary by the 
District.  
 
Safety Conditions of Employment 

6 



 
Employees shall check-in through the front office each day. Staff will be screened for 
temperature, symptoms, and asked to complete a brief health survey by designated staff daily 
upon arrival.  
 
The current CBA addresses the safety of employees. Specific processes and procedures will be 
implemented as appropriate under the guidance of the State of California, Ventura County 
Department of Public Health, and the Ventura County Office of Education as it relates to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. All bargaining unit members shall be provided with proper PPE as 
needed, including face shields for bargaining unit members that request it.  Bargaining unit 
members shall be provided with all necessary cleaning supplies, hand sanitizer, soaps, paper 
towels, and any other protective equipment deemed necessary to each individual Bargaining 
unit member. The District shall ensure the circulation of air in classrooms and offices and use 
recommended air filters for HVAC units.  
 
Upon notification that an employee or student has been infected with COVID-19, the District 
shall initiate contact tracing in conjunction with local health department officials. All persons who 
may have come in contact with the infected individual shall be notified. The District shall notify 
the Association of the location(s) where the infected individual was present on the school 
premises during the suspected incubation/active infection period. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
Pay/Benefits 
Working in any of the learning models, bargaining unit members shall continue to receive their 
full compensation and benefits. If extracurricular duties are performed, bargaining unit members 
shall receive stipends and/or additional pay, as provided for under the CBA.  
 
Leaves of Absence  
Bargaining unit members who are exposed to or test positive for coronavirus, and are required 
to be quarantined, shall first use Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) leave days 
and provided leave set forth in the CBA.  
 
At-Risk Members 
The District shall engage in a dialogue, with the goal of providing an accommodation, with any 
bargaining unit member who provides documentation of an underlying high-risk condition or 
resides with someone with documentation of an underlying high-risk condition.  When 
reasonably possible, accommodations may include a distance learning position not requiring 
that bargaining unit member to provide in-person instruction or providing an alternate work 
assignment.  

Daily Cleaning and Disinfecting 
The District shall ensure that all in use classrooms, restrooms, workspaces are cleaned and 
disinfected daily, including but not limited to desks, doorknobs, light switches, faucets, and other 
high touch fixtures, using the safest and most effective disinfectant necessary, as recommended 
by federal, state, and/or local health officials. This cleaning is in addition to the daily cleaning 
that will be done by custodial staff. Bargaining unit members are not required to clean offices or 
classrooms.  

7 





 

 

 
TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 

DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020 

SUBJECT: B.4.b. APPROVE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH OAK PARK 
TEACHERS ASSOCIATION REGARDING INSTRUCTION IN THE 
HYBRID LEARNING MODEL FOR SECONDARY SCHOOLS 

 
ACTION 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Oak Park 

Unified School District (OPUSD) and the Oak Park Teachers Association (OPTA) 
regarding instruction in the Hybrid Learning Model for Secondary Schools? 
 

BACKGROUND: At the its July 14, 2020 Meeting the Board approved that the District will start the 
school year in the Distance Learning Model and at the August 5, 2020 Meeting the 
Board approved the MOU for instruction in the Distance Learning Model for all 
grades.  The OPTA and OPUSD negotiation teams met on October 9, 2020 and 
October 16, 2020 and worked on a Secondary Hybrid Learning MOU to plan for 
potential opening of secondary schools in the Hybrid Learning/Blended Learning 
which would consist of a combination of in-person and at-home learning.  The 
proposed MOU is included for the Board’s review.  
 

ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the Memorandum of Understanding between OPUSD and OPTA 
regarding instruction for secondary schools in the Hybrid Learning Model  

2. Do not approve the Memorandum of Understanding. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 

Prepared by: Stew McGugan, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Memorandum of Understanding 
Between 

Oak Park Unified School District 
And 

Oak Park Teachers Association 
October 16, 2020 

HYBRID SECONDARY Model 
  

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") between the Oak Park Unified School District 
("District") and the Oak Park Teachers Association ("OPTA") (referred to collectively as "the 
Parties") onOctober 16, 2020 regarding instruction in the Hybrid Learning Model.  
  
 

INTRODUCTION 
  
The Parties have a shared commitment in providing an educational program that supports the 
needs of all students while ensuring a safe learning environment for students and staff by 
following the guidelines established by both state and county health departments. 
Continued education of our students during the 2020-2021 year will require collaboration among 
the Parties given the impact of COVID-19 and the possible need to fluctuate between 
instructional models of instruction (at-school learning Hybrid/Blended and Distance Learning). 
  
To support this, an instructional delivery model has been developed with input being gathered 
from the association, educators, administrators, and parents. The instructional model put into 
practice at individual sites and/or district-wide shall be triggered based on the needs of the 
district, the direction and guidance from the State of California, Ventura County Department of 
Public Health and the Ventura County Office of Education.  
  
The Parties recognize there is a need to address the learning environment and instructional 
model of schools in the Novel Coronavirus environment. Due to the safety guidelines issued by 
the California Department of Public Health, the District had to start the school year in the 
Distance Learning Model.  It is the mutual interest of both parties to address the 
recommendations of public health officials in order to prevent the spread of illness arising from 
the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19). 
  
ADHERENCE TO HEALTH GUIDELINES: 
The District shall adhere to the COVID-19 guidelines issued by the Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention (“CDC”), California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”), California 
Department of Education (“CDE”), the California Department of Industrial Relations Division of 
Occupational Safety and Health ("Cal/OSHA"), the Ventura County Department of Health, and 
the Ventura County Office of Education. The parties agree to meet as soon as possible to 
negotiate the impact and effects of any revisions or updates to those guidelines set forth by the 
above agencies. 

1 



 
 
The 2020-2021 school year the District may operate under three (3) instructional models: a  
Hybrid/Blended Model, a Distance Learning Model, and the current Oak Park Independent 
School (OPIS) model while in the Hybrid model.  
  
The District shall immediately  notify the Association if it becomes necessary to transition from 
one instructional model to another; e.g., to and/or from a Distance Learning model, 
Hybrid/Blended Learning Model or traditional, full capacity model. The District shall contact the 
local public health departments to determine if schools and worksites should be reopened in 
hybrid or full capacity in-person models.  At any point in the future that closure is recommended 
by the local public health department, the District and OPTA shall immediately bargain the 
impact and effects of the closure. 
 
The parties agree that in-person instruction, via the Hybrid/Blended Model, will begin for 
secondary students, grades 6-12, on January 11, 2021, provided that Ventura County has met 
the then existing requirements for reopening in-person instruction.  Currently, per California’s 
Blueprint for a Safer Economy, Ventura County must remain in the Red (Substantial) Tier for, at 
least, two consecutive weeks prior to in-person instruction beginning.  Secondary bargaining 
unit members shall work the following three (3) consecutive days using the Friday Distance 
Learning Model Schedule to prepare for Hybrid/Blended teaching:  January 6, 7, and 8, 2021. 
 
If Ventura County does not meet State and/or local guidelines for reopening in-person 
instruction on January 11, 2021, the Parties agree to re-open as soon as State and local 
reopening guidelines are met.  
 
The Certificated Salary Schedule (Appendix A) shall be increased by one percent (1%), 
retroactive to July 1, 2020. 
  
The Parties agree to the following reentry schedule: 
 

Oak Park High School Hybrid Blended Learning Schedule 

Day Periods In Class At Home 

Monday 0, 1, 3, 5, 7B* A B / DL 

Tuesday 0, 2, 4, 6, 7A* A B / DL 

Wednesday 0, 1, 3, 5, 7A* B A / DL 

Thursday 0, 2, 4, 6, 7B* B A / DL 

Friday** 1-6 (A/B/DL) None A/B / DL 
 
*7th period held by Google for students At Home that day 
**Friday will be a single period each Friday rotating 6 times (1-6) 
DL - Distance Learning 
Schedule subject to change to accommodate holidays  

2 



 

Medea Creek Middle School Hybrid Blended Learning Schedule 
Day  Periods  In Class Cohort  At Home 

Monday 
 6th:         1, 3, 6, Ad 
7th/8th:   1, 3, 6, Ad  A  B / DL 

Tuesday 
6th:         2, 5, 7, Ad 
7th/8th:   2, 4, 7, Ad  A  B / DL 

Wednesday 
 6th:         1, 3, 6, Ad 
7th/8th:   1, 3, 6, Ad  B  A / DL 

Thursday 
6th:         2, 5, 7, Ad 
7th/8th:   2, 4, 7, Ad  B  A / DL 

Friday**  1-7 (A/B/DL)  None  A/B / DL 
Ad= Advisory Period held by Google for students At Home that day 
**Friday will be a single period each Friday rotating 6 times (1-7) 
DL - Distance Learning 
Schedule subject to change to accommodate holidays  
 

Medea Creek HYBRID/BLENDED LEARNING School 6th Grade BELL Schedule 
M-TH 

Period Time Minutes 

Block 1 (1/2) 8:30 to 10:05 95 

Nutrition 10:05 to 10:25 20 

Passing 10:25 to 10:30 5 

Period 3 10:30 to 11:15 45 

Lunch (Period 4) 11:15 to 11:55 40 

Passing 11:55 to 12:00 5 

Period 5 12:00 to 12:45 45 

Passing 12:45 to 12:50 5 

Block 2 (6/7) 12:50 to 2:20 90 

Advisory (7) 2:20 to 2:45 25 
 

Medea Creek HYBRID/BLENDED LEARNING School 7/8th Grade BELL Schedule 
M-TH 

Period Time Minutes 

Block 1 (1/2) 8:30 to 10:05 95 

Nutrition 10:05 to 10:25 20 

Passing 10:25 to 10:30 5 

Block 2 (3/4) 10:30 to 12:05 95 

3 



 

Lunch (Period 5) 12:05 to 12:45 40 

Passing 12:45 to 12:50 5 

Block 3 (6/7) 12:50 to 2:20 90 

Advisory (7) 2:20 to 2:45 25 
  

Oak Park High School BELL Schedule M-TH 

Period Time Minutes 

Period 0 7:20 to 8:20 60 

Passing 8:20 to 8:30 10 

Block 1 (1/2) 8:30 to 10:05 95 

Nutrition 10:05 to 10:15 10 

Passing 10:15 to 10:25 10 

Block 2 (3/4) 10:25 to 12:05 100 

Lunch 12:05 to 1240 35 

Passing 12:40 to 12:50 10 

Block 3 (5/6) 12:50 to 2:25 95 

Support (7) 2:25 to 3:10 45 
 
Hybrid /Blended Model 
For the 2020–21 school year, the minimum instructional minutes each school day per Ed Code               
43501 is as follows: 
(c) 240 instructional minutes in grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 
 
This model consists of in-person and at-home learning (Hybrid/Blended Model). Students in all 
grades will be assigned to a cohort (A or B). Each cohort will have 2 days of on-campus 
learning, 2 days of at home learning, and 1 day (Friday) of 45 minutes of Distance Learning.  All 
at home days will consist of live daily interactions with students and Certificated teachers. 
The District will attempt to keep students who choose to remain in the Distance Learning Model 
for the 2020-2021 school year in their current classes for the remainder of the school year.    
  
Grades 6-12 
Teachers in grades 6-12 shall provide both daily live interaction and the daily instructional 
minutes to all cohorts to satisfy the legally mandated number of “daily instructional minutes,” per 
Ed Code 43501. The live instruction will be streamed through Google Meets or other District 
approved technology- based platforms.  The live instruction shall allow for students to interact 
with their peers and teachers daily.  The live instruction will include materials or information that 
meet adopted standards and/or objectives of the subject/course that have not been previously 
taught.  New instruction can be shared by department or grade level. Students who are in the 
off-campus cohort shall receive a total of 240 of daily instructional minutes and live interactions. 

4 



 
Special Education teachers shall follow these guidelines when appropriate and applicable.  
 
Grades 6-8 Distance Learning and at home cohort: 

1. Class periods of 90-95 minutes (A minimum of 80 minutes of daily instruction per class 
period) 

a. Start class live together  
b. Start should include attendance and agenda 

2. Synchronous academic instruction -  20-60 minutes live 
a. A teacher is responsible for 80 minutes of daily instruction per class period. 

Within the 80 minutes, a minimum of 20 minutes each day needs to be live.  The 
remaining 60 minutes can be live, pre-recorded, 3rd party, independent practice, 
etc. 

3. Hold students accountable to material covered during each class period.  
4. The minimum instructional time for Fridays is 240 minutes. Teachers shall assign an 

extra 40 minutes of independent or regular assignments each week, with the intent for 
students to continue/complete on Friday. 
  

Grades 9-12 Distance Learning and at home cohort 
1. Class periods of 95-100 minutes  (A minimum of 80 minutes of daily instruction per class 

period, 40 minutes zero period) 
a. Start class live together  
b. Start should include attendance and agenda 

2. Synchronous academic instruction 30-60 minutes live, 15-30 minutes zero period. 
a. A Teacher is responsible for 80 minutes of daily instruction per class period. 

Within the 80 minutes, a minimum of 30 minutes each day needs to be live.  The 
remaining 50 minutes can be live, pre-recorded, 3rd party, independent practice, 
etc. 

3. Hold students accountable to material covered during each class period.  
4. The minimum daily instructional time for Fridays is 240 minutes. Teachers shall assign 

an extra 40 minutes of independent or regular assignments each week, with the intent 
for students to continue/complete on Friday. 
 

The Parties agree for Friday Work/Preparation Days to the following schedule:  
Grades 6-12 Friday Hybrid Learning Model Teacher Work/Preparation Schedule 

Time Topic 

8:00 - 9:00 Department, Leadership, Staff, Grade Level Meetings 

9:15 - 10:00 Live Classroom Meeting (Alternating Period Each Week/One period per day)* 

10:00 - 11:30 
IEP, SST, 504/ Parent Meeting/Flexible Office Hours/Professional 
Development Opportunities 

11:30 - 12:15 Lunch 

12:15 - 3:00 Preparation (protected teacher time) 
 

5 



 
a. 8:00 am - 9:00 am may consist of department, grade level, Distance Learning 

teacher groups, Leadership, and/or Staff meetings. Each site principal will set a 
schedule and present the staff meeting schedule to staff prior to the school year 
starting.  

b. 9:15 - 10:00 am will be for Live Classroom meetings. *Live classroom meetings 
are required for all students.  Teachers are required to take attendance and 
send absences to the school office by 10:30 am. Live classroom meetings are 
between the teachers and students for the purposes of instruction, progress 
monitoring, and maintaining school connectedness, which shall include 
instruction, school announcements, online ASB activities, advisory activities, and 
academic support.  

c. 10:00 am - 11:30 am may be used for IEP, 504, and SST meetings, parent 
meetings, office hours, and professional development. IEP, 504, and SST 
meetings are not limited to the Friday Preparation Day schedule.  

d. 11:30 am - 12:15 pm will be a designated lunch time.  
e. 12:15 pm - 3:00 pm will be for bargaining unit members to use as undisturbed 

preparation time. 
f. All bargaining unit members are encouraged to work from home on Friday 

Work/Preparation Days and shall be available for virtual meetings as applicable.  
  
Transition from Distance Learning to Hybrid/Blended Learning Model  
Due to determinations by state and local departments of public health, the 2020-2021 school 
year began using the Distance Learning Model.  As a result, bargaining unit members are 
following the Distance Learning Model.  Once the Ventura County Office of Education, the 
Ventura County Department of Public Health, California Department of Education, and/or the 
Oak Park Unified School District determine that it is safe to start the Hybrid/Blended Model, and 
bargaining unit members are notified by authorities or the District of this determination, 
bargaining unit members shall work three (3) consecutive school days using the Friday Distance 
Learning Model Schedule to organize and prepare for hybrid teaching. If the three (3) school 
days include a Friday, staff meetings will not be held, and, if possible, previously scheduled 
meetings, including IEPs and SSTs will be postponed or rescheduled.  
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING MODIFICATIONS 
The Parties recognize that the instructional models identified herein may have negotiable 
impacts. As such, the Parties agree, that due to the COVID-19 pandemic and social distancing 
guidelines, it is necessary to temporarily make the following modifications to the current 
contract.  All other current CBA language remain applicable. 
 
Work Year and Working Hours   
The teacher workday will be revised to meet the instructional days as set forth in the 
instructional models, described above.  Bargaining unit members under the Distance Learning 
model may work from home or from their classroom.  During the Hybrid model bargaining unit 
members are required to be on campus Monday - Thursday unless previously approved by the 
District. 
 

6 



 
 
Administrator Viewing Live Lessons   
Bargaining unit members shall provide access for administration to join all requested virtual 
sessions with students. 
 
Staff Meetings  
Principals will schedule all staff meetings virtually unless they are safely able to have the 
meeting in person. 
  
IEP/504/SST Meetings  
IEP/504/SST meetings should be scheduled from 10:00 am -11:30 am on Fridays when 
possible.  However, these meetings may also be before, after, or during the school day per site 
and at the teacher’s discretion. Priority shall be given to hold these meetings virtually.  
  
Evaluations  
During the 2020-21 school year, only probationary and temporary employees will be evaluated. 
Permanent employee evaluations will be postponed for the 2020-2021 school year and will 
resume according to the current evaluation schedule in the 2021-2022 school year; i.e., 
permanent employees scheduled for evaluation in the 2020-2021 school year will be evaluated 
in the 2021-2022 school year; permanent employees scheduled for evaluation in the 2021-2022 
school year will be evaluated in the 2022-2023 school year. 
  
Transfers and Reassignments  
The Parties recognize the need for accommodations of teaching assignments and parent 
election of the proffered learning models for their student(s) during this unprecedented time 
given individual circumstances. To support this, transfer/reassignment may be initiated by the 
District to accommodate staffing needs.  Any transfer/reassignment will not be made in an 
arbitrary or capricious manner.  Transfers/reassignments made during the term of the MOU are 
temporary; the bargaining unit member will be returned to their previous position upon 
termination of the MOU.  If a transfer/reassignment becomes necessary, transfers will be filled 
based on staffing changes and prioritized as follows:  (1) bargaining unit members with 
underlying medical conditions as confirmed by a physician note. (2) at-risk teachers due to 
caring for an individual who is impacted by other medical conditions as confirmed by a physician 
note (3) teachers who have expressed an interest in transfer; and (4) involuntary 
transfers/reassignments, based on seniority.  If a teacher is involuntarily transferred/reassigned, 
they will receive a $200/day stipend, up to $600, for training, as deemed necessary by the 
District.  
 
Safety Conditions of Employment 
Employees shall check-in through the front office each day. Staff will be screened for 
temperature, symptoms, and asked to complete a brief health survey by designated staff daily 
upon arrival.  
 
The current CBA addresses the safety of employees. Specific processes and procedures will be 
implemented as appropriate under the guidance of the State of California, Ventura County 

7 



 
Department of Public Health, and the Ventura County Office of Education as it relates to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. All bargaining unit members shall be provided with proper PPE as 
needed, including face shields for bargaining unit members that request it.  Bargaining unit 
members shall be provided with all necessary cleaning supplies, hand sanitizer, soaps, paper 
towels, and any other protective equipment deemed necessary to each individual Bargaining 
unit member. The District shall ensure the circulation of air in classrooms and offices and use 
recommended air filters for HVAC units.  
 
Upon notification that an employee or student has been infected with COVID-19, the District 
shall initiate contact tracing in conjunction with local health department officials. All persons who 
may have come in contact with the infected individual shall be notified. The District shall notify 
the Association of the location(s) where the infected individual was present on the school 
premises during the suspected incubation/active infection period. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
Pay/Benefits 
Working in any of the learning models, bargaining unit members shall continue to receive their 
full compensation and benefits. If extracurricular duties are performed, bargaining unit members 
shall receive stipends and/or additional pay, as provided for under the CBA.  
 
Leaves of Absence  
Bargaining unit members who are exposed to or test positive for coronavirus, and are required 
to be quarantined, shall first use Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) leave days 
and provided leave set forth in the CBA.  
 
At-Risk Members 
The District shall engage in a dialogue, with the goal of providing an accommodation, with any 
bargaining unit member who provides documentation of an underlying high-risk condition or 
resides with someone with documentation of an underlying high-risk condition.  When 
reasonably possible, accommodations may include a distance learning position not requiring 
that bargaining unit member to provide in-person instruction or providing an alternate work 
assignment.  

Daily Cleaning and Disinfecting 
The District shall ensure that all in use classrooms, restrooms, workspaces are cleaned and 
disinfected daily, including but not limited to desks, doorknobs, light switches, faucets, and other 
high touch fixtures, using the safest and most effective disinfectant necessary, as recommended 
by federal, state, and/or local health officials. This cleaning is in addition to the daily cleaning 
that will be done by custodial staff. Bargaining unit members are not required to clean offices or 
classrooms.  

Lesson Plans/Instruction  
The lesson design, type of instruction, and curriculum shall be aligned with the school board 
adopted curriculum.  All content, including Distance Learning, shall be aligned to content 
standards, in an attempt to provide a level of quality and intellectual challenge substantially 

8 





TO:  BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE:  OCTOBER 21, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: B.5.a.   APPROVE 2020-2021 BOARD GOALS 
                    ACTION  
 
ISSUE:  Shall the Board approve 2020-2021 Board Goals? 
 
BACKGROUND: The Board held a Board Retreat on October 4, 2020 and reviewed and revised the 

Board Goals for 2020-2021.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve the 2020-21 Board Goals. 

2. Do not approve the 2020-21 Board Goals 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  At Board’s discretion. 
 
 
 
    Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
    ______________________ 
    Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
    Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
Board Action:  On motion of_______________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          
 
 
 



 

 

 
OPUSD BOARD OF EDUCATION GOALS 

2020-2021  
  

1. The Board will provide a monthly report of Board meetings, developed by the Board President and/or 
Superintendent, which shall be widely distributed consistent with the District’s communication plan.   

 
2. The Board, in conjunction with the Superintendent, will solicit all stakeholders for feedback on the development 

of the District’s Moral Imperatives and Goals, Local Control and Accountability Plan, and Annual Budget.  
 

3. The Board, in conjunction with the Superintendent, will maintain and continue to develop relationships with local, 
state, and Federal representatives. 

 
4. The Board will ensure that the governance handbook is reviewed and updated, as needed, and used as a tool to 

train new Board members. 
 

5. The Board will provide an orientation and work towards a smooth transition with the newly elected governing 
board member, including an onboarding process that incorporates BB 9230 - Orientation. The Board will 
welcome the newly elected member to the Governance Team and model agreed upon Governance skills from 
which to learn.  
 

6. The Board will engage in learning together about goal setting and the format of our annual retreat.  
 

7. The Board will conduct a Board self-evaluation at least every other year.  
 

8. The Board will honor students, staff, parents, and community members at Board meetings. 
 

9. The Board will create opportunities to collaborate with and attain direct feedback from students, staff, parents, 
PTOs, OPEF, and community members. 
 

10. The Board will continue to electronically stream school board meetings to govern in a transparent, open, and 
accessible manner.  
 

11. Board members will visit District and school sites to view on-site preparations for return to school.  
 

12. The Board will work with the contracted diversity and equity consultant to further its commitment to equity 
driven governance. 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE:  

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, 

SUPERINTENDENT OCTOBER 21, 2020 

SUBJECT: B.5.b.   REVIEW, AMEND, APPROVE GOVERNANCE HANDBOOK
ACTION 

ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education review, amend and approve the 2020 Governance 
Handbook?   

BACKGROUND: The Board reviewed the Governance Handbooks at their Board Retreat on 
October 4, 2020. At this meeting the Board may review and amend as required. 
The 2020 Governance Handbook follows for the board’s review.  

ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve the amended 2020 Governance Handbook 
2. Do not approve the amended 2020 Governance Handbook

RECOMMENDATION:  At Board’s discretion. 

Respectfully submitted, 

______________________ 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

Board Action:  On motion of_______________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Hazelton 
Helfstein 
Laifman 
Rosen 
Ross 
Student Rep 



1 

 
 

 
Oak Park Unified School District Board of Education 

GOVERNANCE HANDBOOK 

 

Board of Trustees  
Barbara Laifman, President 
Allen Rosen, Vice President 

Drew Hazelton, Clerk 
Derek Ross, Member 

Denise Helfstein, Member  
 

Superintendent 
Dr. Anthony Knight 

 
 
 
 
 

Approved October 16, 2012 
 

Amended 7-21-14, 8-18-15, 8-15-17,8-21-18, 8-20-19, 10-21-20 
 
 

 



2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  

 

SCHOOLS 3 

DISTRICT AT A GLANCE 5 

DISTRICT HISTORY 5 

DISTRICT STAFF 7 

WHO’S WHO IN OPUSD 8 

WHO’S WHO IN OAK PARK AND VENTURA COUNTY 9 

SCHOOL BOND PROGRAMS 10 

EFFECTIVE GOVERNANCE 10 

BOARD MEETING AGENDAS 13 

SCHOOL VISITS 13 

BOARD MEETING MANAGEMENT 15 

BOARD ROLES 15 

GOVERNANCE CALENDAR 16 

 

	

	
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

	

SCHOOLS	
Oak Park Neighborhood School 
Director: Kim Gregorchuk - kgregorchuk@opusd.org 
Office Manager: Jane Straughan - JStraughan@opusd.org 
1010 North Kanan Road 
Oak Park, CA  91377 
(818) 707-7742 
Enrollment:  32 
 
Brookside Elementary School 
Principal:  Erin Vranesh - evranesh@opusd.org 
Office Manager: Virginia Standring - vstandring@opusd.org 
165 North Satinwood Ave 
Oak Park, CA  91377 
(818) 597-4200 
Enrollment:  512 
 
Oak Hills Elementary School 
Principal: Erik Warren - ewarren@opusd.org 
Office Manager: Maureen Frey - MFrey@opusd.org 
1010 North Kanan Road 
Oak Park, CA  91377 
(818) 707-4224 
Enrollment:  491 
 
Red Oak Elementary School  
Principal: Stacy LaFrenz - slafrenz@opusd.org 
Office Manager: Susan Crumpley - SCrumpley@opusd.org 
4857 Rockfield Street 
Oak Park, CA  91377 
(818) 707-7972 
Enrollment:  589 
 
Medea Creek Middle School 
Principal: Brad Benioff - bbenioff@opusd.org 
Office Manager: Debbie Church - DChurch@opusd.org 
1002 Doubletree Road 
Oak Park, CA  91377 
(818) 707-7922 
Enrollment:  1022 
 

mailto:kgregorchuk@opusd.org
mailto:JStraughan@opusd.org
mailto:evranesh@opusd.org
mailto:vstandring@opusd.org
mailto:ewarren@opusd.org
mailto:MFrey@opusd.org
mailto:slafrenz@opusd.org
mailto:SCrumpley@opusd.org
mailto:bbenioff@opusd.org
mailto:DChurch@opusd.org


4 

 

Oak Park High School 
Principal: Kevin Buchanan - kbuchanan@opusd.org 
Office Manager: Michelle DiCamillo - MDicamillo@opusd.org 
899 North Kanan Road 
Oak Park, CA  91377 
(818) 735-3300 
Enrollment: 1418 
 
Oak View High School 
Principal:  Kent Cromwell kcromwell@opusd.org 
Office Manager: Linda Roberts LRoberts@opusd.org 
5701 Conifer Street 
Oak Park, CA  91377 
(818) 735-3217 
Enrollment: 31 
 
Oak Park Independent School 
Principal:  Kent Cromwell - kcromwell@opusd.org 
Office Manager: Susan Meskis - SMeskis@opusd.org 
5701 Conifer Street  
Oak Park, CA  91377 
(818) 735-3200 
Enrollment: 288 
 
Oak Park Extended Care - Club Oak Park  
Director: Sara Ahl - sahl@opusd.org 
Department Secretary: Soraya Farhadi - sfarhadi@opusd.org 
cluboakpark@opusd.org  
(818) 735-3280 
Enrollment: Currently not operational due to schools being in Distance Learning.  
 
Individual Oak Park Extended Care school site phone numbers: 
Brookside Elementary School - 818-597-4219 
Oak Hills Elementary School - 818-707-4227 
Red Oak Elementary School - 818-707-7979 
Medea Creek Middle School - 818-707-7924 

	
 

 

 

mailto:kbuchanan@opusd.org
mailto:MDicamillo@opusd.org
mailto:kcromwell@opusd.org
mailto:LRoberts@opusd.org
mailto:kcromwell@opusd.org
mailto:SMeskis@opusd.org
mailto:sahl@opusd.org
mailto:sfarhadi@opusd.org
mailto:cluboakpark@opusd.org


5 

 

					DISTRICT	AT	A	GLANCE	
District Vision 

The mission of the Oak Park Unified School District is to provide students with a strong foundation for 
learning which meets the challenge of the present and of the future through a balanced education which 
includes academic achievement, personal growth, and social responsibility. 

District Motto  
  

"Educating Compassionate and Creative Global Citizens" 
  
When we talk about compassion, we understand the literal meaning of the word, which is co-suffering. 
Compassionate people understand the plight and difficulties of others and work to alleviate suffering 
wherever it exists.  We can demonstrate and practice compassion to others, to animals, to the 
environment. Children learn about compassion by observing adults practice it and by what they hear 
adults say.  Schools can teach students about compassion in many ways, through literature, history, 
discussion, and by providing opportunities to do good.   
 
Creativity is the spark that makes life interesting.  We all possess it and it is important that a school 
system help students to discover it within themselves and nurture it. Creative people are interesting, 
solve problems, have open minds, and see the world in new ways.  Creativity is probably the most 
important '21st century skill.'   
 
We are citizens of our locality, of our state, and of our nation. We are also citizens of the world.  When 
we look at the Earth from space we do not see borders and boundaries.  We are part of a web of people 
who share this place. Being a good global citizen means participating in our own democracy, having a 
sense of social responsibility for the people around us, of our nation, and of the world, and caring for the 
environment we all share and will pass on to our posterity.    
 

DISTRICT	HISTORY		
The Oak Park Unified School District is located in the southeast corner of Ventura County, immediately 
adjacent to the Los Angeles County line. Prior to 1977, the area served by the District had been included 
in the Simi Valley Unified School District, which was formed in 1936.  
 
Although the first school was built in Simi Valley in 1890, the Oak Park area experienced no growth until 
1967 when 160 homes were built. Additional homes were constructed subsequent to 1967, and in 1968, 
Brookside Elementary School was completed to house the elementary students living in those homes.  
 
Beginning in 1970, Oak Park residents made a formal request to the Las Virgenes Unified School 
District Governing Board for annexation to that District. Three denials of this request prompted District 
residents to begin the process of forming their own school district.  

On January 13, 1977, the State Board of Education approved the proposed Oak Park Unified School 
District, and an election was held in Oak Park on May 31, 1977. Seventy-seven percent of the eligible 



6 

 

Oak Park electorate voted in that election and unification was approved with a ninety-three percent 
affirmative vote. A five-member Board of Education was elected at the same time, and their first 
business meeting was held on June 14, 1977.  

In the year of 1998, there were approximately 4,700 residential addresses in Oak Park based on Oak 
Park Water Service hook-ups. Based on housing units completed, as of 12/01/98 there were homes built 
for a population of 17,500. According to the 2010 census the community of Oak Park had approximately 
13,811 residents living in over 5,000 homes, apartments, and condominiums. The book Images of 
America – Oak Park is a great resource for learning more about the history of Oak Park.  
 

Oak Park, California - Overview 2010 Census 2000 Census 
  Counts Percentages Counts Percentages 
Total Population 13,811 100.00% 14,215 100.00% 
          
Population by Gender         
Female 7,170 51.92% 7,319 51.49% 
Male 6,641 48.08% 6,896 48.51% 
          
Population by Age         
Persons 0 to 4 years 604 4.37% 1,040 7.32% 
Persons 5 to 17 years 3,018 21.85% 3,688 25.94% 
Persons 18 to 64 years 9,016 65.28% 8,759 61.62% 
Persons 65 years and over 1,173 8.49% 728 5.12% 

 

In 1991, the Agoura Hills Postmaster gave the community of Oak Park permission to use Oak Park, CA 
91301 instead of using the previously assigned Agoura zip code. And as of January 1, 1999, Oak Park 
now has its own Zip Code – 91377. Residents are happy with this, as it is one more step in identifying this 
unique community.   

The source for the above data table is http://censusviewer.com/city/CA/Oak%20Park 

NOTE: The 2020 Census data is expected to be released by the end of March 2021.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://censusviewer.com/city/CA/Oak%20Park


7 

 

DISTRICT	STAFF		
Staff  2020 2019 2018 

Certificated 
Teachers 

252 256 246 

School 
Psychologists  

6 6 6 

Certificated 
Management 

#16 
6 Principals  
3 Assistant Principals 
1 Superintendent 
1 Assistant 
Superintendent  
4 Directors 
1 Program Specialist 

#18 
6 Principals  
3 Assistant Principals 
1 Dean of Students  
1 Superintendent 
1 Assistant 
Superintendent  
5 Directors 
1 Program Specialist 

#18 
6 Principals  
3 Assistant Principals 
1 Dean of Students  
1 Superintendent 
1 Assistant 
Superintendent  
5 Directors 
1 Program Specialist 

TOSA/COSA 2 Tech TOSA 
1 COSA (Coordinator 
Safety and Equity) 

2 Tech TOSA 2 Tech TOSA 

Classified Staff 213 275 272 

Classified 
Management 

# 7 
1 Assistant 
Superintendent 
3 Directors 
3 Confidential  
 

# 7 
1 Assistant 
Superintendent 
3 Directors 
3 Confidential  
 

# 8 
1 Assistant 
Superintendent 
3 Directors  
1 Construction Manager 
3 Confidential 

English Language 
Learners 

4.8% (CALPADS 
October 2019) 

5.39% (CALPADS - 
October 2018) 

5.84% (CALPADS - 
October 2017) 

Students Receiving 
Free and Reduced 
Lunch 

6.9% (CALPADS 
October 2019)  

7.64% (CALPADS - 
October 2018) 

7.35% 

Primary Languages 
spoken at home 
other than English 

Mandarin, Telugu, 
Tamil, Hebrew, 
Spanish, Farsi, 
Russian, Hindi, Korean, 
Kannada, Marathi, and 
as well as 26 other 
languages 

Hebrew, Mandarin, 
Spanish, Russian, Hindi 
and Farsi, as well as 
more than 29 other 
languages 

Hebrew, Mandarin, 
Spanish, Russian, Hindi 
and Farsi, as well as 
more than 29 other 
languages 

 
 



8 

 

WHO’S	WHO	IN	OPUSD	
Superintendent        Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Executive Assistant         Ragini Aggarwal 
Assistant Superintendent - Business Services     Adam Rauch 
Assistant Superintendent - Human Resources    Stewart McGugan 
Director, Educational Technology      Enoch Kwok 
Director, Curriculum & Instruction      Jay Greenlinger, Ed.D. 
Director, Child Nutrition       Carole Ly 
Director, Extended Care Programs      Sara Ahl 
Director, Bond Programs Sustainability Maintenance & Operations       Brendan Callahan     
Director, Fiscal Services        Byron Jones 
Director, Pupil Services        Susan Roberts 
Director, Preschool Education       Kim Gregorchuk 
Program Specialist         Jennifer Golden, Ed.S.  
Lead Tech TOSA (Teacher on Special Assignment)    Ellen Chevalier 
TOSA (Teacher on Special Assignment)     Ericka Jauchen 
COSA (Counselor on Special Assignment)                     Holly Baxter 
Senior Accountant          Lynn Framer 
High School Counselors        Javier Licea 
          Janet Svoboda 

Julie Ross 
Jenny Charrett 
Suzanne Stasiefski 

Middle School Counselors        Dianne Large 
          Stephanie Perez 
          Cyndi Smilor  
Jeremy Rogers        OVHS, OPIS Counselor  
Elementary Counselors        Valeria Fuentes 
          Samantha King Eglit 
          Alana Schulman 
District Nurse                     Allie LeVine 
Oak Park Teachers Association(OPTA), President    Russ Peters 
Oak Park Classified Association(OPCA), President    Virginia Standring 
Legal Counsel         Fagen Friedman & Fulfrost 

6300 Wilshire Blvd. Suite 
1700, LA, CA 90048 
(323) 330-6300 
James Fernow, Partner 

Auditor          Christy White Accountancy 
2727 Camino Del Rio South 
Suite 219, San Diego, CA 
92108 

            (619) 270-8222 
                    Christy White, CPA, President      



9 

 

WHO’S	WHO	IN	OAK	PARK	AND	VENTURA	COUNTY	
 
Supervisor Linda Parks 
Ventura County District 2 
625 W. Hillcrest Drive, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360, 
805-214-2510 
linda.parks@ventura.org 
  
Assemblywoman Jacqui Irwin 
44th Assembly District 
2301 E. Daily Drive, Suite 200, Camarillo, CA 93010 
805-482-1904 
assemblymember.irwin@assembly.ca.gov 
  
Senator Henry Stern 
27th Senate District 
5016 N. Parkway Calabasas, Suite 222, Calabasas, CA 91302 
818-876-3352 
  
U.S. Representative Julia Brownley 
26th Congressional District 
223 E. Thousand Oaks Boulevard, Suite 411, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360 
805-379-1799 
  
Rancho Simi Recreation and Park District 
1692 Sycamore Drive, Simi Valley, CA 93065 
818-865-9304 
Lisa Weagley, Oak Park Community Center 
Dan Paranick, General Manager 
  
Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council 
Seema Chandra, Chair,Jane Nye, Vice Chair 
Contact Jane Osterhaven -  Jan.Osterhaven@ventura.org 
  
Oak Park Education Foundation 
Vicki Raven, Executive Director 
Scott Star, Chair 
info@oakparkeducationfoundation.org 

Community Foundation of Oak Park 
Alon Glickstein, Chair, Jerry Clebanoff, Vice-Chair 
info@OakParkFoundation.org 

mailto:linda.parks@ventura.org
mailto:assemblymember.irwin@assembly.ca.gov
mailto:Jan.Osterhaven@ventura.org
mailto:info@oakparkeducationfoundation.org
mailto:info@OakParkFoundation.org


10 

 

SCHOOL	BOND	PROGRAMS	
Measure S  

Measure S was passed in November 2016 and is a $60 million bond limited in scope to pay for facilities, 
technology, and equipment. The tax rate is projected as $60 per $100K of assessed valuation.  

Measure R 

Measure R was passed by Oak Park voters in 2008 and was a $29.5 million facilities repair and 
modernization program.  The proceeds from this bond have been used to replace roofs, paint, repair, 
and generally upgrade the existing facilities to ensure that they are safe and modern.  The tax is $52.90 
per $100K of assessed valuation.   

Measure C6 

Measure C6 was passed in 2006 and was a $17.5 million bond limited in scope to pay for technology 
and equipment.  It funded one of the most comprehensive programs in educational technology 
innovation in any California school system.  The tax is $20.30 per $100K of assessed valuation.   
 

EFFECTIVE	GOVERNANCE	
 
School district governance creates and maintains the framework through which high-quality leadership 
can be exercised throughout the educational system.  An effective governance team is one that 
transforms the beliefs and values of the community into goals and policies that direct the community’s 
schools. 
 
The board and superintendent working together as a governance team, serve to lead the district to 
achieve the desired goals. Their actions embody the basic characteristics and behaviors that enable 
each governance team member to work with the others to effectively create a climate for excellence in 
the school district and maintain a focus on student learning and achievement. This is accomplished 
by: 
 

● Maintaining a unity of purpose 
● Agreeing upon and governing within appropriate roles 
● Creating and sustaining a positive governance culture 
● Creating a supportive structure for effective governance 
● Ensuring accountability to the students, parents, teachers, staff and community 

 
Responsibilities of the Board 

Set the direction for the community’s schools  

● Keep the District focused on learning, achievement and wellbeing for all students  
● Generate, review and revise direction setting documents (moral imperatives, vision, priorities, 

strategic goals, success indicators, budget and LCAP)  
● Ensure that the established direction and goals are the driving force for all district efforts  



11 

 

 
Establish an effective and efficient structure for the school district  

● Employ, support and work collaboratively with the Superintendent and recognize the distinct 
roles of each 

● Establish a human resources framework that includes policies for hiring and evaluating 
personnel  

● Establish a framework for the district’s collective bargaining process and adopt responsible 
agreements 

● Oversee the development of and adopt district policies and keep them up to date 
● Set the direction for and adopt the curriculum  
● Establish budget priorities that reflect the district’s vision and goals, adopt a fiscally responsible 

annual budget that supports the LCAP, and regularly monitor the fiscal health of the District  
● Oversee facilities issues and ensure that a safe and appropriate educational environment is 

provided to all students  
 

Provide support through our behavior and actions  
● Operate openly, with trust and integrity 
● Govern within Board adopted policies, procedures and norms 
● Act with professional demeanor that models the district’s beliefs and vision, treating everyone 

with civility and respect  
● Support staff implementation of Board direction and policy 
● Ensure a positive working climate exists  
● Be knowledgeable about district efforts and issues  
● Keep private information private, and stay within accordance of the Brown Act 
● Conduct announced school site visits and attend special events 
 

Ensure accountability  
● Hire, support and collaborate with the superintendent so that the vision, goals, and policies of the 

district can be implemented. 
● Conduct regular and timely evaluations of the superintendent based on the vision, goals, and 

performance of the district, and ensure that the superintendent holds district personnel 
accountable 

● Monitor, review and revise policies to ensure consistency with the law and the District’s vision 
and goals 

● Serve as a judicial and appeals body or appoint others to serve in that capacity 
● Monitor student achievement and program effectiveness  
● Monitor and adjust district finances  
● Monitor the collective bargaining process  
● Take collective responsibility for the Board’s performance and periodically evaluate its own 

effectiveness 
● Take collective responsibility for all board actions 

 
 



12 

 

Act as community leaders  

● Speak with a common voice about the district vision, direction, priorities, goals and issues  
● Engage and involve the community in district schools and activities  
● Ensure opportunities for the diverse range of views in the community to inform board 

deliberations. 
● Communicate clear information about policies, programs and fiscal condition of the district  
● Work with individuals and groups within our community to maintain the common good 
● Educate the community and the media about the issues facing students, the district and public 

education  
● Advocate for children, district programs and public education to the general public, key 

community members and local, state and national leaders  
 
Responsibilities of Individual Trustees 

Authority is granted to the board as a whole, not each trustee individually; therefore, the board along 
with the superintendent must work together to make decisions that best serve all students.   As such, 
each Trustee must: 
 

● Keep learning and achievement for all students as the primary focus 
● Value, support and advocate for public education 
● Recognize and respect differences of perspective and style on the board and among staff, 

students, parents, and community 
● Act with dignity, and understand the implications of demeanor and behavior 
● Keep confidential matters confidential 
● Commit the time and energy necessary to be an informed and effective leader.  
● Understand the role and responsibility of the Board  
● Understand that authority rests with the board as a whole and not with individual Trustees 
● Work to build and sustain an effective governance team 

 
Recommended Reading 
Davis Campbell and Michael Fullan, The Governance Core, School Boards, Superintendents and 
Schools Working Together (2019)  

 

Structure, Protocols and Norms 

The Board’s effectiveness is enhanced through the establishment of structure, protocols and norms that 
define how board members and the Superintendent will operate within the governance team. This 
section will explicitly define governance principles, mutually agreed upon expectations, and specific 
processes under which the team will operate. 
 



13 

 

BOARD	MEETING	AGENDAS	
 

Agendas for all regularly scheduled board meetings will be available to the board 10 days prior to the 
board meeting and to the public 72 hours before a meeting (as required by law). 

Agendas for other meetings will be distributed as required by law and board policy. 
 
Supporting materials should be distributed in conjunction with the agenda, or as soon as practical. 
 
Trustee Requests for Agenda Items 

Trustees should send requests for agenda items to the Board President and copy the Superintendent. 
 
Trustee Requests for Information 

All requests for information should be directed to the Superintendent. The Superintendent will then 
forward that request to the appropriate staff member.  The staff member will then respond to the 
Superintendent, and the Superintendent will determine whether the response (and the initial request) 
should be sent out to all Trustees. 
 
If the request is overly time consuming or inappropriate, the Superintendent and Board President will 
discuss the issue with the requesting Trustee and they will jointly determine whether to move forward 
with the request. 
 
If a Trustee contacts a staff member directly, the staff has been instructed to route all such requests 
back to the Superintendent. 
 
If a Trustee is working directly with a staff member as part of a committee or special project, then 
requests for information pertaining to the committee or project can be sent directly to the staff member, 
with notification to the superintendent, taking special care to stay within the bounds of an individual 
trustee. 

SCHOOL	VISITS	
 

Visiting schools is a reminder to trustees that students and their learning are the primary focus of a 
trustee’s work. These visits provide invaluable insight into how Board policy is implemented at the 
school site level.  Each trustee should have knowledge of each school site and its programs through 
visits and other forms of communication to ensure that progress towards district goals is being made.  
School visits also show appreciation and support for the staff’s work. 
 
To visit a school, Trustees should contact the individual school’s principal, and give notice to the 
Superintendent, ahead of time to arrange a visit.  If possible, trustees will visit sites together to reduce 
the amount of disruption in the classroom.  Trustees should always be cautious about interrupting the 



14 

 

learning environment. Teachers will understand that they do not need to interrupt a lesson when a 
trustee visits a classroom. 
 
Trustees should avoid showing up at a school site unplanned and unannounced. 
 
Attending School Events and District Functions 

Trustees should strive to attend school events and district functions whenever possible.  Being present 
at events is an easy way to lend support to the district, administrators, staff and students.  It also allows 
a Trustee to see first-hand what is happening at the schools and to observe how the programs that have 
been implemented are supporting district goals.  Finally, it is a great way to keep in touch with the Oak 
Park community. 
 
Badges 

● Badges should be worn by school board members whenever on school site campuses and 
should at all times be readily available to school board members, as this will provide access to 
school sites in the event of an emergency 

Responding to Community Concerns 

Whether responding to a complaint from a parent, a concern from a community member or an issue 
from a teacher or student, it is critically important that a Trustee keep these items in mind: 

● An individual trustee has no authority.  All decision-making authority rests with the board as a 
whole.  

● A Trustee has no operational role in the school district 
● Confidential matters must be kept confidential (by law)  

 
With these three items in mind, a Trustee must respond to questions from the community with 
understanding, honesty and integrity.   
 
When someone brings a concern to the Board, we will listen carefully without jumping to any conclusion, 
and will then direct that individual to the employee in the district most appropriate and able to help them 
resolve their concern. We will make sure they understand the appropriate order of who to contact (i.e., 
teacher, then principal, then district staff) and are aware of any formal forms or policies that might assist 
them.  The Superintendent and principal(s) will be copied on correspondence. 
 
This will ensure everyone is treated fairly, equally and expeditiously and that the processes and 
procedures of the district are upheld. It will also clarify that one Board member has no individual 
authority to fix a problem. As a representative of the public, it is important that the Board member invite 
the person with the complaint to ultimately get back to him or her if the issue is not resolved. 
 
Responding to Email 

If an email is sent to all board members and the superintendent, the Superintendent or Board President 
will respond to the sender within 24 hours, when possible 



15 

 

 
If an email is sent to all board members and not the superintendent, the board president will forward to 
the superintendent and notify the sender that this has been done. The Superintendent or Board 
President will then respond to the email within 24 hours, when possible 
 
If an email is sent to some board members but not all, the superintendent will forward the email to the 
missing trustee(s).  
 
Serving on Committees 

Each Trustee is required to sit as a member (or act as an alternate) on any number of school or 
community committees.  The assignment to these committees will occur at the annual organizational 
meeting in December.  Serving on committees shall always comply with Board Policy BB-9130. 
 

BOARD	MEETING	MANAGEMENT	
 

We understand that Board meetings are meetings of the Board held in public, not open forum town hall 
meetings. We will keep this in mind as we conduct our meetings, allowing the public to provide input at 
the time allotted to ensure the multiple voices of the community inform Board deliberations. 
 
However, when the Board deliberates, it will be a time for the Board to listen and learn from each other, 
taking public input into consideration, not a time to re-engage with the public.  
 
We will consistently abide by our formal processes relating to this issue so that all persons are treated 
fairly and equally. We will review our policies, bylaws and protocols relating to Board meeting 
management (e.g., time limits on input from members of the public), revising or reaffirming them as 
appropriate. 

BOARD	ROLES	
Board President 

● Fosters an environment of communication by promoting a culture of open, transparent 
communication.  

● Prepares the Board agendas with the Superintendent.  
● Chairs the Board meetings ensuring that the community members as well as all board 

members have opportunities to participate, and facilitates effective deliberation.  
● Serves, in collaboration with the superintendent, as the official media contact for the Board.  
● Serves as a negotiator for the Superintendent contract. 
 

Board Vice-President 

● Chairs the Board Meeting if the President is not available. 
● Will assume the role of President should the Board President not be able to continue their 

term. 



16 

 

 
The Board Clerk 

● When required by law:  
o Certifies actions taken by the Board 
o Signs approved Board meeting minutes 
o Signs documents on behalf of the Board 

 
All Trustees 

● Make a concerted effort to attend and be prepared for all regular and special board meetings 
● Understand and provide support for district goals 
● Maintain a working knowledge of board policies 
● Strive to keep current with 

o Local, State and Federal issues dealing with Public Education 
o Issues, processes and legislation relating to the education system 
o The processes of funding for Public Schools 

● Attend and/or Complete the following (when applicable and funding allows)  
o New Board Member Workshop 
o CSBA’s Masters in Governance Program 
o Board President’s Workshop 
o Annual CSBA conferences 
o Take advantage of any free seminars or webinars that are offered 

GOVERNANCE	CALENDAR		
Bold Items are legal timelines 

July 
● Board Retreat (Review Moral Imperatives and District Goals, Governance Handbook or Board 

Self Evaluation, Board Goals)  
 
August 

● School Begins 
● Student Board Representative starts 
● Report from Facilities - Summer Work Update 
● Approve Board Meeting Schedule for School Year 
● Approve Quarterly Williams Report 
● Deadline to file for School Board candidacy (even years only) 
● Approve Moral Imperatives, Goals & Action Plans 
● Approve Board Governance Handbook and Board Goals 
● Set/Review Superintendent goals 
● Extended Care Presentation 
● Summer layoff deadline Aug 15 
● Attend Back to School Nights 



17 

 

 
September 

● Report from Technology – Summer Work Update 
● Approve Unaudited Actual Revenues and Expenditures  
● Receive and approve Special Education NPS/NPA contracts 
● Approve resolution regarding sufficiency of textbooks 
● Approve District of Choice Annual Report  

 
October 

● Hold a Special Board Meeting 
● Receive CAASPP Testing Results and Dashboard Local Indicator Update  
● Review Math Placement Data 
● Approve Quarterly Williams Report 
● Review annually policies Per Ed Code 35160.5  

o BP 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities  
o BP 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment  

 
November 

● Approve DOC Resolution  
● Approve School Calendar 
● Approve Classified Holiday Calendar 
● Select Date of Annual Organization Meeting 
● Facilities Status Report - to be provided in Friday Notes 

 
December 

● Hold Board Organizational Meeting (must be held within 15 days after the second Friday) 
● Approve Board Meeting schedule for fiscal year 
● Approve certification of signatures 
● First Interim Financial Report & Budget Update 
● District of Choice applications due by December 31 
● Approve District of Choice Enrollment Capacity 

 
January 

● Approve District of Choice Resolution Space Availability Resolution  
● Conduct District of Choice Lottery if needed  
● Approve External Auditors Reports 
● Approve Quarterly Williams Report 
● Mid-year review of Moral Imperatives and Goals & Superintendent goals 

 
February 

● Receive Physical Fitness Results 
● Approve SARCs 
● Nominate CSBA Delegate Assembly candidates 
● RWW Presentation 



18 

 

● Approve Safe School Plans  
● Reduction or Discontinuing Particular Kinds of Services (RIF) Notices due by March 15 

 
March 

● Special Board Meeting  
● Approve Single Plan for Student Achievement 
● Second Interim Financial Report & Budget Update 
● BrightBytes Data and Technology Update 

 
April 

● Superintendent Evaluation - Board Discussion 
● Presentation on Safe Kids Trask Force Data and Social Emotional Wellness  
● Approve Quarterly Williams Report 

 
May 

● Special Board Meeting  
● Present Superintendent Evaluation 
● Approve Instructional Minutes / Bell Schedule 
● Approve School Handbooks & Disciplinary Plans 
● Final layoff deadline May 15 
● Receive Annual District of Choice Report  
● Receive LCAP for next school year 
● School Ends/Attend Graduations 

 
June 

● Budget and LCAP Study Session and Hearings 
● Adopt the budget and LCAP (prior to June 30) 
● Rescind RIFs 
● Receive OPCOC Report 
● Renew Superintendent's contract (if needed) 
● Approve Certification of Signatures 
● Approve CSBA Membership 
● Extended Care Presentation with Financials  
● Food Service Report - In Friday Notes   

 
 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE:  

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, 

SUPERINTENDENT OCTOBER 21, 2020

SUBJECT: B.5.c.   REVIEW, AMEND, AND APPROVE 2020-2021 MORAL IMPERATIVES
          AND GOALS 

ACTION 

ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education review, amend and approve the 2020-2021 Moral 
Imperatives, Goals and Action Plans?   

BACKGROUND: On October 4, 2020 at the Board Retreat, the Board of Education reviewed and 
amended the 2020-2021 Moral Imperatives and Goals.  The Leadership Team has 
reviewed them and at this time, the Board will review and revise as needed.  The 
Moral Imperatives and Goals are included for the Board review.    

ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve the amended 2020-2021 Moral Imperatives, Goals and Action 
Plans. 

2. Do not approve the amended 2020-2021 Moral Imperatives, Goals and
Action Plans.

RECOMMENDATION:  At Board’s discretion. 

Respectfully submitted, 

______________________ 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

Board Action:  On motion of_______________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Hazelton 
Helfstein 
Laifman 
Rosen 
Ross 
Student Rep 



 

 

 
    OPUSD MISSION AND MORAL IMPERATIVES  

 
The mission of OPUSD is to provide students with a strong foundation for learning which meets the challenge of the present 
and future through quality education which includes academic achievement, personal growth, and social responsibility.  By 
continuously collaborating with students, parents, staff, and the broader community, OPUSD is committed to the following 
Moral Imperatives, whether in a traditional setting or through distance learning, to achieve our mission:   
 

1. TEACHING AND LEARNING: All students can exceed California State Standards, become lifelong learners, 
and reach their potential.  

● We provide learning opportunities that are authentic, personally meaningful, and incorporate critical 
thinking, communication, creativity, and collaboration.  

● We encourage students to be independent thinkers, producers, and innovative problem solvers who explore, 
create, discover, and reflect.   

● We ensure that our programs address the well-being of the whole child, including nutrition, physical fitness, 
stress management, and mental health.  

● We utilize technology in a well-thought-out manner so that students learn to be responsible, judicious, and 
effective users of information, media, and technology.   

● We create a diverse and equitable environment for student learning that is safe, balanced, and nurturing.  
● We are inclusive of all students’ strengths and abilities, encouraging a growth mindset and recognizing 

progress as well as achievement.  
● We encourage our learning community to embrace new ideas, continue to innovate, try new things, and learn 

from our mistakes.   
 

2. MORAL CHARACTER:  All students can grow to be compassionate and creative global citizens. 
● We recognize, embrace, and learn from the diversity, perspectives, and abilities that students and staff bring 

to our learning community.  
● We foster character development, model ethical and compassionate behavior, and encourage social and 

environmental responsibility, civility, service, and global stewardship. 
● We support and promote students’ uniqueness, helping build confidence and cooperation. 
● We require that our learning community acts with integrity, respects their own intellectual and creative work 

as well as that of others, and demonstrates honesty in their academic endeavors. 
 

3. ORGANIZATION AND SHARED LEADERSHIP:  OPUSD’s success depends on the support of all of our 
stakeholders, self-reflection, and a culture of continuous improvement.  

● We encourage teachers to be leaders and support their innovation.  
● We cultivate a work environment where the skills, expertise, commitment, and morale of all staff is valued 

and recognized.   
● We empower all OPUSD staff members to accept personal responsibility for student success. 
● We work with employee organizations to promote positive morale, to jointly and respectfully solve 

problems, and to be a model of a professional and collaborative working relationship. 
● We actively engage parent organizations, the Oak Park Education Foundation, and community stakeholders 

in ongoing and dynamic communication.  
 

4. FINANCE, BUDGET, AND FACILITIES:  OPUSD must conduct school district business with integrity. 
● We operate efficiently, effectively, and with transparency.   
● We maximize the safety and security of all those within our facilities and on our grounds.  
● We maintain a balanced budget that supports our values, mission, Moral Imperatives, LCAP, bond master 

plan, and reflects our goals. 
● We ensure that our resources are thoughtfully utilized to support our priorities and long-term infrastructure 

needs.      



 

 

OAK PARK USD GOALS 2020-21 
These goals have been developed taking into consideration the following sources of input: 2020 LCAP, 2019 Challenge 
Success recommendations and survey results, 2018 Healthy Kids Survey results, 2019 Bright Bytes survey results, 2020 
Learning Continuity Plan, staff and parent survey results, high school WASC Action Plans, Measure S Plan, District 
committee work, and PTO Council discussions, and are aligned with the District‘s mission and Moral Imperatives. 
 

1. Adapt the school system to educate students during the pandemic.   
a. Move towards a full in-person educational model as soon as possible while adhering to state and county 

guidelines and providing a safe environment for all students and staff. 
b. Build and deliver a strong and reliable Distance Learning model that will allow all students to continue to 

learn from home as necessary. This includes sufficient technology for teachers and students, technology 
support that enables all students to effectively participate in the educational program, and a continual 
improvement of our delivery model so that it is effectively supported by the district technology platform. 

c. Provide ongoing professional development and support for teachers and support staff that will allow for 
engaging and innovative learning, including authentic experiences while in Distance Learning.    

d. Work collaboratively with staff to design and support a hybrid model that combines in-person learning 
with Distance Learning that can be implemented when conditions allow. 

e. Support student and family connectivity and engagement with their teachers, classmates, and schools.   
f. Implement strategies to identify, connect, and serve students and families who may be experiencing crisis 

or mental health concerns due to the pandemic and the inability to be on campus in a normal school 
setting.  

g. Ensure we meet the needs of students who have special needs, are English Learners, lower 
socioeconomic, or require other accommodations. 

h. Recognizing that varying degrees of learning loss will occur, develop means to identify, address, and 
communicate gaps in learning for each student. Design teaching strategies that minimize learning loss as 
much as possible.   

i. Be sensitive, supportive, and recognize the challenges of teaching and learning during the pandemic. 
 

2. Strengthen the Climate of Care by developing and promoting the factors that distinguish Oak Park’s 
model of educating the whole child.   

a. Examine the ways in which all students are recognized and awarded to ensure that all students feel 
connected to their school, valued, and honored and that are more inclusive showing that in Oak Park, 
EVERY student is honored and valued.  

b. Engage the staff, students, and families in exploring ways to strengthen student engagement and 
connectedness to our schools.   

c. Maintain our relationship with Challenge Success and explore possibilities for adapting the program to 
the present environment. 

d.   Continue the work at OPHS related to alternative credits, summer school expansion, scheduling, 
availability and accessibility of advanced placement classes, and dual enrollment opportunities while 
maintaining the integrity of the instructional program, and investigate internships and other programs that 
provide additional opportunities for students.   

e.   Explore Hybrid OPIS/OPHS model that would allow for a true blended program between the 
comprehensive high school and independent school programs.  

f.    Ensure that our schools encourage diversity and are places of acceptance, appreciation, and celebration for 
our learning community. Develop and support an equity action plan, and the necessary tools to implement 
it based on the recommendations of the Diversity and Equity Task Force and our Equity Consultant.  

 
3. Continue to ensure that District-wide athletics, arts, enrichment, and extracurricular activities complement 

the academic mission of our schools.   
a. Offer programs of which all its participants, students, parents, coaches, and administrators can be proud 

and where lifelong personal and community wellness and contributing productive citizens is promoted. 
b. Ensure that each student-athlete receives the best educational opportunity. 



 

 

c. Provide an environment that supports physical, mental, and social development by encouraging student-
athletes to practice and compete to their full potential. 

d. Afford opportunities for participation to a wide segment of the school population with the goal of meeting 
gender equity guidelines. 

 
4. Engage staff more deeply in shared-decision making and improve communication with staff, parents, 

students, and the community. 
a. Build out a completely new website and explore a process for continuous updating, and alternatives for 

ongoing overall website maintenance  
b. Develop regular communication pieces from the District for parents and the community using a variety of 

platforms. 
c. Strengthen teacher leadership and support models in the following areas:  NGSS, Sustainability, Reading 

and Writing Workshop, Math, STEAM, Technology.   
d. Reimagine a process to effectively invite and utilize feedback through a wide range of modalities from 

stakeholders including staff, parents, students, and the community, and communicate what is being done 
in response to feedback.  

e. Examine and codify an application process for selecting participants of District wide committees.  
 

5. Continue to expand school safety and student/staff well-being initiatives. 
a. Focus on student well-being in areas noted above and ensure that there are avenues for all students to feel 

comfortable, secure, and safe in communicating with their teachers, counselors, and administrators. 
b. Find ways to integrate our progressive child nutrition program with the instructional program. 
c. Continue to collaborate with staff to provide opportunities for their self-care especially during this 

extraordinary year. 
d. Continue to work on physical safety issues such as surveillance, preparation for earthquakes, fire, 

evacuation, etc.   
e. Update our PE programs to ensure an inclusive program that fosters a life-long commitment to physical 

fitness, a love of the outdoors, and encourages healthy, active lifestyles that include activities, such as 
walking, hiking, biking, etc.  
 

6. Deepen student learning through Nature-based Experiences and Environmental Stewardship in all areas of 
the instructional program and foster creativity, play, experiential, and inquiry-based learning.   

a. Promote project and nature-based learning and environmental stewardship.  
b. Increase structured and unstructured activities in nature during distant learning as well as on campus 

learning and on field trips (upon return to in person learning). 
a. Embed the state Environmental Principles and Concepts and the U.N. Sustainable Development Goals 

into the curriculum at all levels.  
b. Design new outdoor learning spaces, including playgrounds and outdoor classrooms, for students of all 

ages to learn, explore, and discover. 
c. Provide and promote professional development for staff, parents, and the community in these areas.   

 
7. Use resources responsibly to maintain a balanced budget this year and in subsequent years.  

a. Balance an increase to our reserves for economic uncertainties with the need to provide a high quality 
education for our current students. 

b. Assess the District’s technology plan to project the ability to continually fund a district wide refresh and 
1:1 Chromebook/device program in subsequent years. 

c. Study trends for declining enrollment and devise plans to address and possibly reverse it. 
 
 

 
 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 

DATE:  OCTOBER 21, 2020 

SUBJECT: B.6.a. APPROVE AMENDMENT TO BOARD POLICY AND EXHIBIT 3555 
NUTRITIONAL PROGRAM COMPLIANCE – First Reading 

ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve the amendment to Board Policy and 

Exhibit 3555 Nutritional Program Compliance? 
 
BACKGROUND: Board Policy 3555 updated to reflect NEW STATE REGULATIONS (Register 

2020, No. 21) which provide that complaints regarding meal counting and 
claiming, reimbursable meals, eligibility of children or adults, or use of cafeteria 
funds and allowable expenses should be submitted directly to the California 
Department of Education (CDE), and complaints alleging discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability should be submitted to 
the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA). Complaints regarding other 
program requirements or other bases for discrimination are to be investigated and 
resolved at the district level. Policy also deletes the USDA nondiscrimination 
statement that must be included on all forms of communication regarding 
program availability, which is now presented in the accompanying exhibit. New 
exhibit presents the USDA statement, formerly in BP 3555, which must be 
included on all forms of communication available to the public regarding the 
availability of child nutrition programs in order to advise the public of the 
district's status as an equal opportunity provider and the address of the agency 
with responsibility to handle complaints against the district. Board Policy 3555 is 
being submitted with recommended language from CSBA.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve amendment to Board Policy and Exhibit 3555 Nutritional Program 

Compliance. 
 2.    Do not approve amendment to Board Policy and Exhibit 3555 Nutritional 

Program Compliance. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Alternative #1. 
 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
            
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 

Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-Instructional Operations           BP 3555(a) 
 
Nutrition Program Compliance 
 
The Governing Board recognizes the district's responsibility to comply with state and federal 
nondiscrimination laws as they apply to the district's nutrition programs. The district shall not 
deny any individual the benefits or service of any nutrition program or discriminate against 
him/her on any basis prohibited by law. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
 
Compliance Coordinator 
 
The Board designatesshall designate a compliance coordinator for nutrition programs, who may 
also be the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as the 
district's civil rights coordinator , to ensure compliance with the laws governing itsthe district's 
nutrition programs and to investigate any related complaints..  
 
The responsibilities of the compliance officer/coordinator include, but are not limited to: 
 

1. Providing the name of the civil rightscompliance coordinator, and the Section 504 
coordinator, and Title IX coordinator, if different from the civil rightscompliance 
coordinator, to the California Department of Education (CDE) and other interested parties 

 
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 
 

2. Annually providing mandatory civil rights training to all frontline staff who interact with 
program applicants or participants and to those who supervise frontline staff 

 
The subject matter of such training shall include, but not be limited to, collection and use 
of data, effective public notification systems, complaint procedures, compliance review 
techniques, resolution of noncompliance, requirements for reasonable accommodation of 
persons with disabilities, requirements for language assistance, conflict resolution, and 
customer service. 

 
3. Establishing admission and enrollment procedures that do not restrict enrollment of 

students on the basis of race, ethnicity, national origin, or disability, including preventing 
staff from incorrectly denying applications and ensuring that such persons have equal 
access to all programs 

 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-Instructional Operations           BP 3555(b) 
 

4. Sending a public release announcing the availability of the child nutrition programs 
and/or changes in the programs to public media and to community and grassroots 
organizations that interact directly with eligible or potentially eligible participants 

 
5. Communicating the program's nondiscrimination policy and applicable complaint 

procedures, as provided in the section "Notifications" below 
 

6. Providing appropriate translation services when a significant number of persons in the 
surrounding population have limited English proficiency 

 
7. Ensuring that every part of a facility is accessible to and usable by persons with 

disabilities and that participants with disabilities are not excluded from the benefits or 
services due to inaccessibility of facilities 

 
8. Ensuring that special meals are made available to participants with disabilities who have 

a medical statement on file documenting that their disability restricts their diet 
 
(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs) 
 

9. Implementing procedures to process and resolve civil rights (discrimination) complaints 
and program-related complaints, including maintaining a complaint log and, working 
with the appropriate person to resolve any complaint, and referring the complainant to the 
appropriate state or federal agency when necessary 
 

10. Developing a method, which preferably uses self-identification or self-reporting, to 
collect racial and ethnic data for potentially eligible populations, applicants, and 
participants 

 
(cf. 5022 - Students and Family Privacy Rights) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement) 
 
Notifications 
 
The compliance coordinator shall ensure that the U.S. Department of Agriculture's (USDA) 
"And Justice for All" civil rights poster or a substitute poster approved by the USDA's Food and 
Nutrition Service shall beis displayed in areas visible to the district's nutrition program 
participants, such as food service areas and school offices. 
 
The compliance coordinator shall notify the public, all program applicants, participants, and 
potentially eligible persons of their program rights and responsibilities and steps necessary for 
participationto participate in the nutrition programs. Applicants, participants, and the public also 
shall be advised of their right to file a complaint, how to file a complaint, the complaint  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-Instructional Operations           BP 3555(c) 
 
procedures, and that a complaint may be file anonymously or by a third party. 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
In addition, the compliance coordinator shall ensure that all forms of communication available to 
the public regarding program availability shall contain, in a prominent location, the following 
statement:a statement provided by USDA about the district's status as an equal opportunity 
provider and the address of the agency with responsibility to handle complaints made against the 
district. 
 
"In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil 
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and institutions 
participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based on 
race, color, national origin, sex, disability, age, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights 
activity in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA. 
 
Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program 
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.), should contact 
the Agency (State or local) where they applied for benefits. Individuals who are deaf, hard of 
hearing or have speech disabilities may contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at 
(800) 877-8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in languages other 
than English. 
 
To file a program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program Discrimination 
Complaint Form, (AD-3027) found online at: 
http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html, and at any USDA office, or write a letter 
addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To 
request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter 
to USDA by: 
 
(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture 
 Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights 
 1400 Independence Avenue, SW 
 Washington, D.C. 20250-9410; 
 
(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or 
 
(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov. 
 
This institution is an equal opportunity provider." 
 
 

http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html
mailto:program.intake@usda.gov


OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-Instructional Operations           BP 3555(d) 
 
Forms of communication requiring this nondiscrimination statement include, but are not limited 
to, web sites, public information releases, publications, and posters, but exclude menus.items 
such as cups, buttons, magnets, and pens that identify the program when the size or configuration 
makes it impractical. The nondiscrimination statement need not be included on every page of 
program information on the district's or school's web site, but the statement or a link to the 
statement shall be included on the home page of the program information. 
 
A short version of the nondiscrimination statement, stating "This institution is an equal 
opportunity provider,"as provided by USDA, may be used on pamphlets, brochures, and flyers in 
the same print size as the rest of the text. 
 
Complaints of Discrimination 
 
AnyA complaint concerningalleging discrimination in the district's nutrition program(s) on the 
basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability shall, within 180 days of the alleged 
discriminatory act, be filed or referred to USDA at:  (5 CCR 15582) 
 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, 1400 
Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, (866) 632-9992, (800) 877-8339 
(Federal Relay Service - English, deaf, hard of hearing, or speech disabilities), (800) 845-6136 
(Federal Relay Service - Spanish), fax (202) 690-7442, or email program.intake.usda.gov 
 
Complaints of discrimination on any other basis shall be investigated by the district using the 
process identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
When a complaint alleging discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or 
disability is unresolved at the district level, the coordinator shall notify the complainant of the 
option to contact and/or forward his/her complaint to one of the following agencies: 
 
1. Child Nutrition Program Civil Rights and Program Complaint Coordinator, California 
Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division, 1430 N Street, Room 4503, Sacramento, 
CA 95814-2342 or call (916) 323-8531 or (800) 952-5609 
 
2. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, 1400 
Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, (866) 632-9992, (800) 877-8339 
(Federal Relay Service - English), (800) 845-6136 (Federal Relay Service - Spanish), fax (202) 
690-7442, or email program.intake.usda.gov. 
 
 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-Instructional Operations           BP 3555(e) 
 
Complaints Regarding Noncompliance with Program Requirements 
 
Any complaint alleging that the district has not complied with program requirements pertaining 
to meal counting and claiming, reimbursable meals, eligibility of a child or adult, use of cafeteria 
funds and allowable expenses shall be filed with or referred to CDE. (Education Code 49556; 5 
CCR 15584) 
 
Complaints of noncompliance with any other nutrition program requirements shall be submitted 
to and investigated by the district using the following procedures. 
 
Complaints may be filed by a student or the student's parent/guardian by phone, email, or letter. 
The complaint shall be submitted within one year from the date of the alleged violation and shall 
include the following: (5 CCR 15581) 
 

1. A statement that the district has violated a law or regulation relating to its child nutrition 
program 

 
2. The facts on which the statement is based 

 
3. The name of the district or the school against which the allegations are made 

 
4. The complainant's contact information 

 
5. The name of the student if alleging violations regarding a specific student 

 
The district shall investigate and prepare a written report pursuant to 5 CCR 4631. (5 CCR 
15583) 
 
Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the district's compliance 
coordinator shall investigate the complaint and prepare a written report to be sent to the 
complainant within 30 calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint. If the complainant 
is dissatisfied with the compliance coordinator's decision, the complainant may, within five 
business days, file the complaint in writing with the Board. 
 
The Board shall consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board 
meeting convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be 
answered pursuant to 5 CCR 4631.  When required by law, the matter shall be considered in 
closed session. The Board may decide not to consider the complaint, in which case the 
coordinator's decision shall be final.   
 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session) 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-Instructional Operations           BP 3555(f) 
 
If the Board considers the complaint, the Board's decision shall be sent to the complainant within 
60 calendar days of the district's initial receipt of the complaint or within the time period that has 
been specified in a written agreement with the complainant. (5 CCR 4631) 
 
If the complainant is not satisfied with the findings in the district's report, the complainant may 
appeal the decision to CDE by filing a written appeal within 30 days of receiving the decision.  
(5 CCR 4632) 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination 
42238.01 Definitions for purposes of funding 
48985 Notices to parents in language other than English 
49060-49079 Student records 
49490-49590 Child nutrition programs 
PENAL CODE 
422.6 Interference with constitutional right or privilege 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
3080 Application of section 
4600-46874670 Uniform complaint procedures 
4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 
15580-15584 Child nutrition programs complaint procedures 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act 
1681-1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 
2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 
2000h-2000h-6 Title IX 
12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.19 National School Lunch Program, additional responsibilities 
210.23 National School Lunch Program, district responsibilities 
215.7 Special Milk Program, requirements for participation 
215.14 Special Milk Program, nondiscrimination 
220.7 School Breakfast Program, requirements for participation 
220.13 School Breakfast Program, special responsibilities of state agencies 
225.3 Summer Food Service Program, administration 
225.7 Summer Food Service Program, program monitoring and assistance 
225.11 Summer Food Service Program, corrective action procedures 
226.6 Child and Adult Care Food Program, state agency administrative responsibilities 
250.15 Out-of-condition donated foods, food recalls, and complaints 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act 
36.303 Auxiliary Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability, public accommodations, auxiliary aids and 
services 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-Instructional Operations           BP 3555(g) 

 
100.1-100.13 Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI 
104.1-104.39 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
106.1-106.61 Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially: 
106.9 Dissemination of policy 

Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Civil Rights and Complaint Procedures for the U.S. Department of Agriculture Child Nutrition Programs, 
rev. November 2015June 2018 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICE PUBLICATIONS 
Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement - Nutrition Programs and Activities, FNS Instruction 113-1, 
November 2005 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Notice of Non-Discrimination, August 2010 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Services:  http://www.fns.usda.gov 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ascr.usda.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www2.ed.gov/ocr 

 
Adopted: 9-20-2016 
Amended: 10-21-20 

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu
http://www.fns.usda.gov
http://www.ascr.usda.gov
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr


OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-Instructional Operations             E 3555(a) 
 
Nutrition Program Compliance 
 
NONDISCRIMINATION STATEMENT FOR NUTRITION PROGRAMS 
 
The following statement shall be included, in a prominent location, on all forms available to the 
public regarding the availability of the district's child nutrition programs: 
 
"In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil 
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and institutions 
participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based on 
race, color, national origin, sex, disability, age, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights 
activity in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA. 
 
Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program 
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.), should contact 
the Agency (State or local) where they applied for benefits. Individuals who are deaf, hard of 
hearing or have speech disabilities may contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at 
(800) 877-8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in languages other 
than English. 
 
To file a program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program Discrimination 
Complaint Form, (AD-3027) found online at: http://www.ascr.usda.gov/filing-program-
discrimination-complaint-usda-customer, and at any USDA office, or write a letter addressed to 
USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of 
the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by: 
 
(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture 
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights 
1400 Independence Avenue, SW 
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410; 
 
(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or 
 
(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov 
 
This institution is an equal opportunity provider." 
 
On pamphlets, brochures, and flyers, in the same print size as the rest of the text, the district may 
print a short version of the nondiscrimination statement, as follows: 
 
"This institution is an equal opportunity provider." 
 
Adopted: 10-21-20 

http://www.ascr.usda.gov/filing-program-discrimination-complaint-usda-customer
http://www.ascr.usda.gov/filing-program-discrimination-complaint-usda-customer
http://www.ascr.usda.gov/filing-program-discrimination-complaint-usda-customer
mailto:program.intake@usda.gov


TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 

DATE:  OCTOBER 21, 2020 

SUBJECT: B.6.b. APPROVE AMENDMENT TO BOARD POLICY AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 5144.1 SUSPENSION AND 
EXPULSION DUE PROCESS – First Reading 

ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve the amendment to Board Policy and 

Administrative Regulation 5144.1 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process? 
 
BACKGROUND: Board Policy 5144.1 and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 419) 

which prohibits districts from suspending students in grades 4-8 for disrupting 
school activities or willfully defying the authority of school personnel. Policy 
also references NEW LAW (AB 982) which requires a district to provide a 
student who is suspended for two or more days with the homework assigned 
during the period of suspension. Regulation adds new section on "Additional 
Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 9-12" reflecting the option to 
suspend, but not expel, a student in grades 9-12 for disruption or willful defiance. 
Board Policy 5144.1 is being submitted with recommended language from 
CSBA.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5144.1 

Suspension and Expulsion Due Process. 
 2.    Do not approve amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 

5144.1 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Alternative #1. 
 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
            
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
 

Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



 OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000             Students           BP 5144.1(a) 
 
Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process 
 
The Governing Board desires to provide district students access to educational opportunities in 
an orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and 
well-being, and promotes their learning and development.  The Board shall develop rules and 
regulations setting the standards of behavior expected of district students and the disciplinary 
processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension 
and/or expulsion. 
 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
 
The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending, 
and/or implementing suspension and expulsion shall be only those specified in law, in this 
policy, and in the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 
Except when otherwise permitted by law, a student may be suspended or expelled only when 
his/herthe behavior is related to a school activity or school attendance occurring within any 
district school or another school district, regardless of when it occurs, including, but not limited 
to, the following:  (Education Code 48900(s)) 
 

1. While on school grounds 
 

2. While going to or coming from school 
 

3. During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus 
 
(cf. 5112.5 – Open/Closed Campus) 
 

4. During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity 
 
District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly, 
consistently, equally, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 
Appropriate Use of Suspension Authority 
 
Except when a student's act violates Education Code 48900(a)-(e), as listed in items #1-5 under 
"Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" of the accompanying administrative 
regulation, or when his/herthe student's presence causes a danger to others, suspension shall be 
used only when other means of correction have failed to bring about proper conduct. (Education 
Code 48900.5, 48900.6) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000             Students           BP 5144.1(b) 
 
(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 
 
A student's parents/guardians shall be notified as soon as possible when there is an escalating 
pattern of misbehavior that could lead to on-campus or off-campus suspension. 
 
NOTE:  Staff is recommending OPTION 1. This was changed in order to provide the high 
school flexibility and leverage for foreseen and unforeseen behavioral issues and circumstances. 
Education Code 48900.5 still applies as documented AR 5144.1(g) under the section Suspension 
by Superintendent, Principal or Principal’s Designee where other means of correction need to be 
administered prior to all suspensions for disruption or willful defiance. 
 
OPTION 1:  No student in grades K-8 may be suspended for disruption or willful defiance, 
except by a teacher pursuant to Education Code 48910. (Education Code 48900) 
 
OPTION 2:  No student may be suspended for disruption or willful defiance, except by a teacher 
pursuant to Education Code 48910. (Education Code 48900)  
 
Students shall not be suspended or expelled for truancy, tardiness, or absenteeism from assigned 
school activities. 
 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
 
On-Campus Suspension 
 
To ensure the proper supervision and ongoing learning of students who are suspended for any of  
the reasons enumerated in Education Code 48900 and 48900.2, but who pose no imminent 
danger or threat to anyone at school and for whom expulsion proceedings have not bebeen 
initiated, the Superintendent or designee shall establish a supervised suspension classroom 
program which meets the requirements of law.  
 
Except where a supervised suspension is permitted by law for a student's first offense, supervised 
suspension shall be imposed only when other means of correction have failed to bring about 
proper conduct.  (Education Code 48900.5) 
 
Authority to Expel 
 
A student may be expelled only by the Board.  (Education Code 48918(j)) 
 
As required by law, the Superintendent or principal shall recommend expulsion and the Board 
shall expel any student found to have committed any of the following "mandatory  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000             Students           BP 5144.1(c) 
 
recommendation and mandatory expulsion" acts at school or at a school activity off school 
grounds: (Education Code 48915) 
 

1. Possessing a firearm which is not an imitation firearm, as verified by a certificated 
employee, unless the student had obtained prior written permission to possess the item 
from a certificated school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence 

 
(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments) 
 

2. Selling or otherwise furnishing a firearm 
 

3. Brandishing a knife at another person 
 

4. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058 
 

5. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 
286, 288, 288a, or 289, or committing a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4 

 
6. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921 

 
For all other violations listed in the accompanying administrative regulation under “Grounds for 
Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12” and “Additional Grounds for Suspension and 
Expulsion: Grades 4-12,”, the Superintendent or principal shall have the discretion to 
recommend expulsion of a student. If expulsion is recommended, the Board shall order the 
student expelled only if it makes a finding of either or both of the following: (Education Code 
48915(b) and (e)) 
 

1. That other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about 
proper conduct 

 
2. That due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the student causes a continuing 

danger to the physical safety of the student or others 
 
A vote to expel a student shall be taken in an open session of a Board meeting. 
 
The Board may vote to suspend the enforcement of the expulsion order pursuant to the 
requirements of law and the accompanying administrative regulation. (Education Code 48917) 
 
No student shall be expelled for disruption or willful defiance. (Education Code 48900) 
 
No child enrolled in a preschool program shall be expelled except under limited circumstances as 
specified in AR 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education. 
 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000             Students           BP 5144.1(d) 
 
Due Process 
 
The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension and/or 
expulsion by affording them their due process rights under the law.  The Superintendent or 
designee shall comply with procedures for notices, hearings, and appeals as specified in law and  
administrative regulation. (Education Code 48911, 48915, 48915.5, 48918) 
 
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (IndividualsStudents with Disabilities)) 
 
Maintenance and Monitoring of Outcome Data 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually maintain outcome data related to student 
suspensions and expulsions in accordance with Education Code 48900.8 and 48916.1, including, 
but not limited to, the number of students recommended for expulsion, the grounds offor each 
recommended expulsion, the actions taken by the Board, the types of referral made after each 
expulsion, and the disposition of the students after the expulsion period. For any expulsion that 
involves the possession of a firearm, such data shall include the name of the school and the type 
of firearm involved, as required pursuant to 20 USC 7961. Suspension and expulsion data shall 
be reported to the Board annually and to the California Department of Education when so 
required. 
 
In presenting the report to the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall disaggregate data on 
suspensions and expulsions by school and by numerically significant student subgroups, 
including, but not limited to, ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, 
English learners, foster youth, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students.  
Based on the data, the Board shall address any identified disparities in the imposition of student 
discipline and shall determine whether and how the district is meeting its goals for improving 
school climate as specified in its local control and accountability plan. 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
212.5 Sexual harassment 
233 Hate violence 
1981-1981.5 Enrollment of students in community school 
8239.1 Prohibition against expulsion of preschool student 
17292.5 Program for expelled students 
32261 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985 
35145 Open board meetings 
35146 Closed sessions (reregarding suspensions) 
35291 Rules (for government and discipline of schools) 
35291.5 Rules and procedures on school discipline 
48645.5 Readmission; contact with juvenile justice system 
48660-48666 Community day schools 
48853.5 Foster youth 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000             Students           BP 5144.1(e) 
 

48900-48927 Suspension and expulsion 
48950 Speech and other communication 
48980 Parental notifications 
49073-49079 Privacy of student records 
52052 Numerically significant student subgroups 
52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan 
64000-64001 Consolidated application 
CIVIL CODE 
47 Privileged communication 
48.8 Defamation liability 
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 
1985-1997 Subpoenas; means of production 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
11455.20 Contempt 
54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act (re closed sessions) 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
11014.5 Drug paraphernalia 
11053-11058 Standards and schedules 
LABOR CODE 
230.7 Employee time off to appear in school on behalf of a child 
PENAL CODE 
31 Principal of a crime, defined 
240 Assault defined 
241.2 Assault fines 
242 Battery defined 
243.2 Battery on school property 
243.4 Sexual battery 
245 Assault with deadly weapon 
245.6 Hazing 
261 Rape defined 
266c Unlawful sexual intercourse 
286 Sodomy defined 
288 Lewd or lascivious acts with child under age 14 
288a Oral copulation 
289 Penetration of genital or anal openings 
417.27 Laser pointers 
422.55 Hate crime defined 
422.6 Interference with exercise of civil rights 
422.7 Aggravating factors for punishment 
422.75 Enhanced penalties for hate crimes 
626.2 Entry upon campus after written notice of suspension or dismissal without permission 
626.9 Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995 
626.10 Dirks, daggers, knives, razors, or stun guns 
868.5 Supporting person; attendance during testimony of witness 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
729.6 Counseling 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18 
921 Definitions, firearm 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1415(K) Placement in alternative educational setting 
71517961 Gun -free schools 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
11432-11435 Education of homeless children and youths 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000             Students           BP 5144.1(f) 
 

COURT DECISIONS 
T.H. v. San Diego Unified School District (2004) 122 Cal. App. 4th 1267 
Woodbury v. Dempsey (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4th 421 
Board of Education of Sacramento City Unified School District v. Sacramento County Board of Education 
and Kenneth H.  (2001) 85 Cal.App.4th 1321 
Fremont Union High School District v. Santa Clara County Board (1991) 235 Cal. App. 3d 118  
Garcia v. Los Angeles Board of Education (1991) 123 Cal. App. 3d 807 
Fremont Union High School District v. Santa Clara County Board (1991) 235 Cal. App. 3d 118 
John A. v. San Bernardino School District (1982) 33 Cal. 3d 301, 308 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 146 (2001) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 348 (1997) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 91 (1997) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85 (1997) 

Management Resources: 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School Discipline, January 2014 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Attorney General's Office: http://www.caag.state.ca.us http://www.oag.ca.gov 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-
2012-data-summary.pdf 
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Safe and Safe and Healthy Students:  
http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/oshs 

 
Adopted:  5-24-78 
Amended: 10-15-80; 5-15-84; 5-2-95; 2-2-99; 2-20-01; 9-17-02; 6-17-03, 6-15-04, 3-22-05,  

    9-18-12, 2-19-13, 8-19-14, 4-21-15, 4-17-18, 2-19-19, 10-21-20 

http://www.csba.org
http://www.caag.state.ca.us
http://www.oag.ca.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-2012-data-summary.pdf
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-2012-data-summary.pdf
http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/oshs


OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(a) 
 
Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process 
 
Definitions 
 
Suspension means removal of a student from ongoing instruction for adjustment purposes.  
However, suspension does not mean any of the following: (Education Code 48925) 
 
1. Reassignment to another education program or class at the same school where the student will 

receive continuing instruction for the length of day prescribed by the Governing Board for 
students of the same grade level 

 
2. Referral to a certificated employee designated by the principal to advise students 
 
3. Removal from the class, but without reassignment to another class or program, for the 

remainder of the class period without sending the student to the principal or designee as 
provided in Education Code 48910.   

 
Expulsion means removal of a student from the immediate supervision and control or the general 
supervision of school personnel.  (Education Code 48925) 
 
Notice of Regulations 
 
At the beginning of each school year, the principal of each school shall ensure that all students 
and parents/guardians are notified in writing of all school rules related to discipline, including 
suspension and expulsion.  (Education Code 35291, 48900.1, 48980) 
 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12 
 
Acts for which a student, including a student with disabilities, may be suspended or expelled shall 
be only those specified as follows and in the sections "Additional Grounds for Suspension and 
Expulsion: Grades 4-12" and "Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 9-12" 
below: 
 
(cf. 5144.2 -– Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
 
1. Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person; willfully 

used force or violence upon another person, except in self-defense; or committed as an aider 
or abettor, as adjudged by a juvenile court, a crime of physical violence in which the victim 
suffered great or serious bodily injury  (Education Code 48900(a) and (t)) 

 
 



 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 
 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(b) 
 
2. Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other dangerous 

object, unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the student had obtained 
written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the principal  

 or designee's concurrence.  (Education Code 48900(b)) 
 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments) 
 
3. Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any 

controlled substance as defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, 
or intoxicant of any kind.  (Education Code 48900(c)) 

 
(cf. 3513.4 - Drug and Alcohol Free Schools) 
(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 
 
4. Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in 

Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any kind, and then 
sold, delivered, or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid, substance, or material and 
represented same as such controlled substance, alcohol beverage or intoxicant.  (Education 
Code 48900(d)) 

 
5.   Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.  (Education Code 48900(e)) 
 
6.  Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property . (Education Code   
      48900(f)) 
 
7. Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property.  (Education Code 48900(g)) 
 
8. Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including, but 

not limited to, cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, 
chew packets, and betel, except that this restriction shall not prohibit a student from using or 
possessing prescription products.  (Education Code 48900(h)) 

 
For purposes of this section, “products containing tobacco or nicotine products” means a product 
or device as defined in subdivision (d) of Section 22950.5 of the Business and Professions Code 
and include electronic cigarettes that can deliver nicotine and non-nicotine vaporized solutions.  

“Possessed or used” means inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying of any lighted or heated 
cigar, cigarette, pipe, tobacco, or plant product intended for inhalation, whether natural or 
synthetic, in any manner or form, and includes the use of an electronic smoking device that 
creates aerosol or vapor or of any oral smoking device for the purpose of circumventing the 
prohibition of smoking. (Business and Professions Code 22950.5; Education Code 48901) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(c) 
 
(cf. 5131.62 -– Tobacco) 
 
9. Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.  (Education Code 

48900(i)) 
 
10. Unlawfully possessed, offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as        
 defined in Health and Safety Code 11014.5.  (Education Code 48900(j)) 
 
11. Knowingly received stolen school property or private property.  (Education Code 48900(l)) 
 
12. Possessed an imitation firearm . (Education Code 48900(m)) 
 

Imitation firearm means a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical 
properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a 
firearm.  (Education Code 48900(m)) 

 
13. Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286, 

288, 288a or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4.  (Education 
Code 48900(n)) 

 
14. Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a 

school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness 
and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness.  (Education Code 48900(o)) 

 
15. Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma.  

(Education Code 48900(p)) 

16. Engaged in, or attempted to engage in, hazing. (Education Code 48900(q)) 

Hazing means a method of initiation or pre-initiation into a student organization or body, 
whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution, 
which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in 
physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective student.  Hazing does not include 
athletic events or school-sanctioned events.  (Education Code 48900(q)) 

 
17. Engaged in an act of bullying. (Education Code 48900(r)) 
 

Bullying means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including 
communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, directed toward one or 
more students that has or can reasonably be predicted to have the effect of placing a ability to 
participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.   
reasonable student in fear of harm to himself/herself self or his/her property; cause the student 
to experience a substantially detrimental effect on his/her physical or mental health; or cause  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(d) 
 

the student to experience substantial interferences with his/her academic performance or 
ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a 
school. (Education Code 48900(r)) 

 
Bullying includes any act of sexual harassment, hate violence, or harassment, threat, or  
intimidation, as defined in Education Code 48900.2, 48900.3, or 48900.4 and below in the section 
“Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12” that has any of the effects 
described above on a reasonable student.  
 
Bullying also includes an act of cyber sexual bullying by a student through the dissemination of, 
or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate, a photograph or other visual recording that depicts 
a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit photograph or other visual recording of an identifiable 
minor, when such dissemination is to another student or to school personnel by means of an 
electronic act and has or can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the effects of 
bullying described above. Cyber sexual bullying does not include a depiction, portrayal, or image 
that has any serious literary, artistic, educational, political, or scientific value or that involves 
athletic events or school-sanctioned activities.  
 
Electronic act means the creation or transmission originated on or off the school site by means of 
an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other 
wireless communication device, computer, or pager, of a communication including, but not 
limited to:  (Education Code 48900(r)) 
 
a. A message, text, sound, video, or image 
 
b. A post on a social network Internet web site, including, but not limited to, posting to or 

creating a burn page or creating a credible impersonation or false profile for the purpose of 
causing a reasonable student any of the effects of bullying described above. 

 
Reasonable student means a student, including, but not limited to, a student who has been 
identified as a student with a disability, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in 
conduct for a person of the student's his/her age, or for a person of the student's his/her age and 
with his/her disability.  (Education Code 48900(r)) 
  
(cf. 1114 – District-Sponsored Social Media) 
(cf. 5131.2 – Bullying) 
(cf. 6163.4 – Student Use of Technology) 
(cf. 6164.4 – Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
(cf. 6164.6 – Identification and Education under Section 504) 
 
18. Aided or abetted the infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury on another person, as 
defined in Penal Code 31 . (Education Code 48900(t)) 
 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(e) 
 
19. Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property.  (Education Code 
48900.7) 
 
A terrorist threat includes any written or oral statement by a person who willfully threatens to 
commit a crime which will result in death or great bodily injury to another person, or property  
damage in excess of $1,000, with the specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat, 
even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out. (Education Code 48900.7) 
 
Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12 
Any student in grades 4 -12 may be suspended, but not expelled, for disrupting school activities 
or otherwise willfully defying the valid authority of supervisors, teachers, administrators, other 
school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their duties. (Education 
Code 48900(k)) 
 
(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 
 
A student in grades 4-12 shall be subject to suspension or recommendation for expulsion when it 
is determined that the student the/she: 
 
a.    Committed sexual harassment as defined in Education Code 212.5. (Education Code  

   48900.2) 
 
         Sexual harassment means conduct which, when considered from the perspective of a 

reasonable person of the same gender as the victim, is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to 
have a negative impact upon the victim’s academic performance or to create an intimidating, 
hostile, or offensive educational environment.  (Education Code 212.5, 48900.2) 

 
 (cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 
2.    Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause, or participated in an act of hate violence as 

defined in Education Code 233 . (Education Code 48900.3) 
 

Hate violence means any act punishable under Penal Code 422.6, 422.7, or 422.75.  Such 
acts include injuring or intimidating a victim, interfering with the exercise of a victim’s  
civil rights, or damaging a victim’s property because of the victim’s race, ethnicity, religion,  
nationality, disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation; a 
perception of the presence of any of those characteristics in the victim; or the victim’s 
association with a person or group with one or more of those actual or perceived 
characteristics. (Education Code 233; Penal Code 422.55) 

 
(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 
 
3.  Intentionally engaged in harassment, threats, or intimidation against district personnel or  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(f) 
 

students that is sufficiently severe or pervasive to have the actual and reasonably expected 
effect of materially disrupting classwork, creating substantial disorder, and invading the 
rights of school personnel or students by creating an intimidating or hostile educational 
environment . (Education Code 48900.4) 

 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
 
Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion:  Grades 9-12 
 
Any student in grades 9-12 may be suspended, but not expelled, for disrupting school activities or 
otherwise willfully defying the valid authority of supervisors, teachers, administrators, other 
school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their duties.   
 
(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 
 
Suspension from Class by a Teacher 
 
A teacher may suspend a student, including a grade K-3 student, from class for the remainder of 
the day and the following day for disruption, willful defiance, or any of the other acts specified in 
Education Code 48900 and listed as items #1-18 under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion:  
Grades K-12" above or for disruption or willful defiance at any grade level, including grades K-8.  
(Education Code 48910) 
 
When suspending a student from class, the teacher shall immediately report this action to the 
principal or designee and send the student to the principal or designee for appropriate action.  If 
that action requires the continuing presence of the student at school, the student he/she shall be 
appropriately supervised during the class periods from which the student he/she has been 
suspended. (Education Code 48910) 
 
As soon as possible after the teacher decides to suspend the student, the teacher he/she shall ask 
the student's parent/guardian to attend a parent-teacher conference regarding the suspension.  A 
counselor or psychologist may attend the conference if it is practicable, and a school administrator 
shall attend if either the parent/guardian or teacher so requests. (Education Code 48910) 
 
A student suspended from class shall not be returned to class during the period of the suspension 
without the approval of the teacher of the class and the principal or designee.  (Education Code 
48910) 
 
A student suspended from class shall not be placed in another regular class during the period of  
suspension.  However, a student assigned to more than one class per day may continue to attend 
other regular classes except those held at the same time as the class from which the student he/she 
was suspended.  (Education Code 48910) 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(g) 
 
The teacher of any class from which a student is suspended may require the student to complete 
any assignments and tests missed during the removal.  (Education Code 48913) 
 
Suspension by Superintendent, Principal or Principal’s Designee 
 
To implement disciplinary procedures at a school site, the principal may, in writing, designate as 
the principal’s designee another administrator or, if the principal is the only administrator at the 
school site, a certificated employee.  As necessary, the principal may, in writing, also designate 
another administrator or certificated employee as the secondary designee to assist with 
disciplinary procedures when the principal and the principal’s primary designee are absent from 
the school site. 
 
The Superintendent, principal or designee shall immediately suspend any student found at school 
or at a school activity to have committed any of the acts listed in the Board policy under 
“Authority to Expel” and for which he/she is required to a recommendation of expulsion required. 
(Education Code 48915 (c)) 
 
The Superintendent, principal, or designee may impose a suspension for a first offense if he/she it 
is determineds that the student violated any of items #1-5 listed under “Grounds for Suspension 
and Expulsion: Grades K-12” above or if the student’s presence causes a danger to persons.   
(Education Code 48900.5) 
 
For all other offenses, a student may be suspended only when the Superintendent or principal has 
determined that other means of correction have failed to bring about proper conduct.  (Education 
Code 48900.5) 
 
When other means of correction are implemented prior to imposing suspension or supervised 
suspension upon a student, the Superintendent, principal, or designee shall document the other 
means of correction used and retain the documentation in the student’s record (Education Code 
48900.5) 
 
(cf. 5125 – Student Records) 
 
Length of Suspension 
 
The Superintendent, principal, or designee may suspend a student from school for not more than 
five consecutive school days.  (Education Code 48911) 
 
A student may be suspended from school for not more than 20 school days in any school year.   
However, if a student enrolls in or is transferred to another regular school, an opportunity school, 
or continuation school or class for the purpose of adjustment, the student he/she may be 
suspended for not more than 30 school days in a school year.  The district may count suspensions 
that occur while a student is enrolled in another school district toward the maximum number of  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(h) 
 
days for which the student may be suspended in any school year.  (Education Code 48903, 48911, 
48912) 
 
(cf. 6184 – Continuation Education) 
 
These restrictions on the number of days of suspension shall not apply when the suspension is 
extended pending an expulsion.  (Education Code 48911)  
 
Due Process Procedures for Suspension 
 
Suspensions shall be imposed in accordance with the following procedures:  
 
1.  Informal Conference:  Suspension shall be preceded by an informal conference conducted 

by the Superintendent, principal, or designee with the student and, whenever practicable, the 
teacher, supervisor, or school employee who referred the student to the principal.  At the 
conference, the student shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action, including 
the other means of correction that were attempted before the suspension as required pursuant 
to Education Code 48900.5, and the evidence against the student him/her, and shall be given 
the opportunity to present the student his/her version and evidence.  (Education Code 48911) 

 
       This conference may be omitted if the Superintendent, principal, or designee determines that 

an emergency situation exists involving a clear and present danger to the lives, safety, or 
health of students or school personnel.  If a student is suspended without this conference, 
both the parent/guardian and student shall be notified of the student's right to return to school  
for the purpose of the conference. and the conference shall be held within two school days, 
unless the student waives the his/her right to it or is physically unable to attend for any 
reason.  In such a case, the conference shall be held as soon as the student is physically able 
to return to school.  (Education Code 48911) 

 
2.  Administrative Actions:  All requests for student suspension are to be processed by the  
  principal or designee. A school employee shall report the suspension, including the name of 

the student and the cause for the suspension, to the Superintendent or designee.  (Education 
Code 48911) 

 
3.  Notice to Parents/Guardians:  At the time of the suspension, a school employee shall  
  make a reasonable effort to contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever 

a student is suspended, the parent/guardian shall also be notified in writing of the suspension.  
(Education Code 48911) 

 
This notice shall state the specific offense committed by the student.  (Education Code 
48900.8) 
 

 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(i) 
 

In addition, the notice may state the date and time when the student may return to school. 
 

4. Parent/Guardian Conference:  Whenever a student is suspended, school officials may 
request a meeting with the parent/guardian to discuss the cause(s) and duration of the 
suspension, the school policy involved and any other pertinent matter.  (Education Code 
48914) 

 
 If school officials request to meet with the parent/guardian, the notice may state that the law 

requires the parent/guardian to respond to such requests without delay. However, no penalties 
may be imposed on the student for the failure of the parent/guardian to attend such a 
conference.  The student may not be denied reinstatement readmission solely because the 
parent/guardian failed to attend the conference.  (Education Code 48911) 

 
5. Extension of Suspension:  If the Board is considering the expulsion of a suspended student 

from any school or the suspension of a student for the balance of the semester from 
continuation school, the Superintendent or designee may, in writing, extend the suspension 
until such time as the Board has made a decision, provided the following requirements are 
followed:  (Education Code 48911) 
 
a. The extension of the original period of suspension is preceded by notice of such  

extension with an offer to hold a conference concerning the extension, giving the student 
an opportunity to be heard.  This conference may be held in conjunction with a meeting 
requested by the student or parent/guardian to challenge the original suspension. 

 
b. The Superintendent or designee determines, following a meeting in which the student and  

the student's parent/guardian were invited to participate, that the student's presence at the 
school or at an alternative school would endanger persons or property or threaten to 
disrupt the instructional process.  (Education Code 48911)  

 
c. If the student involved is a foster youth, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the 

district liaison for foster youth of the need to invite the student’s attorney and a 
representative of the appropriate county child welfare agency to attend the meeting.  
(Education Code 48853.5, 48911, 48918.1) 

 
 (cf. 6173.1 – Education for Foster Youth) 
 

d. If the student involved is a homeless child or youth, the Superintendent or designee shall 
notify the district liaison for homeless students.  (Education Code 48918.1) 

 
(cf. 6173 – Education for Homeless Children) 
 
In lieu of or in addition to suspending a student, the Superintendent, principal, or designee may  
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(j) 
 
provide services or require the student to participate in an alternative disciplinary program 
designed to correct the his/her behavior and keep the student him/her in school. 
 
Suspension by the Board 
 
The Board may suspend a student for any of the acts listed under "Grounds for Suspension and  
Expulsion: Grades K-12,” “Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12," and 
"Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 9-12" above and within the limits 
specified under "Suspension by Superintendent, Principal, or Designee" above.  (Education Code 
48912) 
 
The Board may suspend a student enrolled in a continuation school or class for a period not 
longer than the remainder of the semester. The suspension shall meet the requirements of 
Education Code 48915.  (Education Code 48912.5) 
 
When the Board is considering a suspension, disciplinary action, or any other action (except 
expulsion) against any student, it shall hold a closed session if a public hearing would lead to 
disclosure of information that would violate a student's right to privacy under Education Code 
49073-49079.  (Education Code 35146, 48912) 
 
 (cf. 9321 - Closed Session) 
 
The Board shall provide the student and his/her parent/guardian with written notice of the closed  
session by registered or certified mail or personal service.  Upon receiving this notice, the student 
or parent/guardian may request a public meeting, and this request shall be granted if made in 
writing within 48 hours after receipt of the Board's notice.  However, any discussion that conflicts 
with any other student's right to privacy still shall be held in closed session.  (Education Code 
35146, 48912) 
 
On-Campus Suspension  
 
A student for whom an expulsion action has not been initiated and who poses no imminent danger 
or threat to the school, students, or staff may be assigned to on-campus suspension in a  
separate classroom, building, or site for the entire period of suspension.  The following conditions 
shall apply:  (Education Code 48911.1) 
 
1. The on-campus suspension classroom shall be staffed in accordance with law. 
 
2. The student shall have access to appropriate counseling services. 
 
3. The on-campus suspension classroom shall promote completion of schoolwork and tests 

missed by the student during the suspension. 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(k) 
 
4. The student shall be responsible for contacting the student’s his/her teacher(s) to receive 

assignments to be completed in the supervised suspension classroom.  The teacher(s) shall 
provide all assignments and tests that the student will miss while suspended.  If no such work 
is assigned, the person supervising the suspension classroom shall assign schoolwork. 

 
At the time a student is assigned to an on-campus suspension classroom, the principal or designee 
shall notify the student's parent/guardian in person or by telephone.  When the assignment is for 
longer than one class period, this notification may be made in writing.  (Education Code 48911.1) 
 
Superintendent or, Principal’s Authority to Recommend Expulsion 
 
Unless the Superintendent, or principal determines that expulsion should not be recommended 
under the circumstances or that an alternative means of correction would address the conduct, the 
Superintendent or principal he/she shall recommend a student's expulsion for any of the following 
acts: (Education Code 48915) 

 
1. Causing serious physical injury to another person, except in self-defense 
 
2. Possession of any knife or other dangerous object of no reasonable use to the student 
 
3. Unlawful possession of any controlled substance, as listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-

11058, except for (a) the first offense for the possession of not more than one ounce of 
marijuana, other than concentrated cannabis, or (b) the student’s possession of over-the-
counter medication for his/her use or other medication prescribed for him/her by a physician 

 
4. Robbery or extortion 
 
5. Assault or battery, as defined in Penal Code 240 and 242, upon any school employee 
 
In determining whether or not to recommend the expulsion of a student, the Superintendent, 
principal, or designee shall act as quickly as possible to ensure that the student does not lose 
instructional time.  (Education Code 48915) 
 
Student's Right to Expulsion Hearing 
 
Any student recommend for expulsion shall be entitled to a hearing to determine whether the 
student he/she should be expelled. The hearing shall be held within 30 school days after the 
Superintendent, principal, or designee determines that the student has committed the act(s) that 
form the basis for the expulsion recommendation.  (Education Code 48918(a)) 
 
The student is entitled to at least one postponement of an expulsion hearing for a period of not  
more than 30 calendar days.  The request for postponement shall be in writing.  Any subsequent  
postponement may be granted at the Board's discretion.  (Education Code 48918(a)) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(l) 
 
If the Board finds it impractical during the regular school year to comply with these time 
requirements for conducting an expulsion hearing, the Superintendent or designee may, for good 
cause, extend the time period by an additional five school days.  Reasons for the extension shall 
be included as a part of the record when the expulsion hearing is held.  (Education Code 
48918(a)) 
 
If the Board finds it impractical to comply with the time requirements of the expulsion hearing 
due to a summer recess of Board meetings of more than two weeks, the days during the recess 
shall not be counted as school days. The days not counted during the recess may not exceed 20 
school days, as defined in Education Code 48925.  Unless the student requests in writing that the  
expulsion hearing be postponed, the hearing shall be held not later than 20 calendar days prior to 
the first day of the next school year.  (Education Code 48918(a)) 

 
Once the hearing starts, all matters shall be pursued with reasonable diligence and concluded 
without unnecessary delay.  (Education Code 48918(a)) 
 
Stipulated Expulsion 
 
After a determination that a student has committed an expellable offense, the Superintendent, 
principal, or designee shall offer the student and theirparent/guardian the option to waive a 
hearing and stipulate to the expulsion or to a suspension of the expulsion under certain conditions.  
The offer shall be made only after the student or his/her parent/guardian has been given written 
notice of the expulsion hearing pursuant to Education Code 48918. 
 
The stipulation agreement shall be in writing and shall be signed by the student and their 
parent/guardian.  The stipulation agreement shall include notice of all the rights that the student is  
waiving, including the waiving of the his/her right to have a full hearing, to appeal the expulsion 
to the County Board of Education, and to consult legal counsel. 
 
A stipulated expulsion agreed to by the student and their parent/guardian shall be effective upon 
approval by the Board.  
 
Rights of Complaining Witness 
 
An expulsion hearing involving allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery may be postponed 
for one school day in order to accommodate the special physical, mental or emotional needs of a 
student who is the complaining witness.  (Education Code 48918.5) 
 
Whenever the Superintendent or designee recommends an expulsion hearing that addresses  
allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery, the superintendent or designee he/she shall give the 
complaining witness a copy of the district's suspension and expulsion policy and regulation and 
shall advise the witness of the right to his/her right to: (Education Code 48918.5) 

 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(m) 
 
1. Receive five days' notice of the his/her scheduled testimony at the hearing 
 
2. Have up to two adult support persons of their choosing present at the hearing at the time the 

witness he/she testifies 
 
3. Have a closed hearing during the time the witness testifies 
 
Whenever any allegation of sexual assault or sexual battery is made, the Superintendent or 
designee shall immediately advise complaining witnesses and accused students to refrain from 
personal or telephone contact with each other during the time when an expulsion process is 
pending.  (Education Code 48918.5) 
 
Written Notice of the Expulsion Hearing 
 
Written notice of the expulsion hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student's 
parent/guardian at least 10 calendar days before the date of the hearing.  The notice shall include:  
(Education Code 48900.8, 48918(b)) 
 

1.  The date and place of the hearing. 
 

2. A statement of the specific facts, charges, and offense upon which the proposed expulsion 
is based. 
 

3. A copy of district disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation. 
 

4. Notification of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation, pursuant to Education Code 
48915.1, to provide information about the student's status in the district to any other 
district in which the student seeks enrollment.   

 
      This obligation applies when a student is expelled for acts other than those described in 

Education Code 48915(a) or (c). 
 
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 
 

5. The opportunity for the student or the student's parent/guardian to appear in person or be  
       represented by legal counsel or by a nonattorney adviser. 

 
Legal counsel means an attorney or lawyer who is admitted to the practice of law in California 
and is an active member of the State Bar of California. 
 
Nonattorney adviser means an individual who is not an attorney or lawyer, but who is familiar 
with the facts of the case and has been selected by the student or student's parent/guardian to 
provide assistance at the hearing. 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(n) 
 
6. The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing 
 
7. The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing 
 
8. The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary  
       evidence on the student's behalf, including witnesses. 
 
Additional Notice of Expulsion Hearing for Foster Youth and Homeless Students 
 
If the student facing expulsion is a foster student, the Superintendent or designee shall also send 
notice of the hearing to the student’s attorney and a representative of an appropriate child welfare 
agency at least 10 days prior to the a hearing.  (Education Code 48918.1) 
 
If the student facing expulsion is a homeless student, the Superintendent or designee shall also 
send notice of the hearing to the district liaison for homeless students at least 10 days prior to the 
hearing. (Education Code 48918.1) 
 
Any notice for these purposes may be provided by the most cost-effective method possible, 
including by email or a telephone call.  (Education Code 48918.1) 
 
Conduct of Expulsion Hearing 
 
1. Closed Session:  Notwithstanding Education Code 35145, the Board shall conduct a hearing 

to consider the expulsion of the student in a session closed to the public unless the student 
requests in writing at least five days prior to the hearing that the hearing be a public meeting.  
If such a request is made, the meeting shall be public to the extent that privacy rights of other 
students are not violated.  (Education Code 48918) 

 
Whether the expulsion hearing is held in closed or public session, the Board may meet in 
closed session to deliberate and determine whether or not the student should be expelled.  If 
the Board admits any other person to this closed session, the parent/guardian, the student, and 
the counsel of the student also shall be allowed to attend the closed session.  (Education Code 
48918(c)) 

 
If a hearing that involves a charge of sexual assault or sexual battery is to be conducted in 
public, a complaining witness shall have the right to testify have his/her testimony heard in 
closed session when testifying in public would threaten serious psychological harm to the 
witness and when there are no alternative procedures to avoid the threatened harm, including, 
but not limited to, a videotaped deposition or contemporaneous examination in another place  
communicated to the hearing room by closed-circuit television.  (Education Code 48918(c)) 

 
 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(o) 
 
2. Record of Hearing:  A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any 

means, including electronic recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written 
transcription of the proceedings can be made.  (Education Code 48918(g)) 

 
3. Subpoenas:  Before commencing a student expulsion hearing, the Board may issue 

subpoenas, at the request of either the student or the Superintendent or designee, for the 
personal appearance at the hearing of any person who actually witnessed the action that gave 
rise to the recommendation for expulsion.  After the hearing has commenced, the Board or the 
hearing officer or administrative panel may issue such subpoenas at the request of the student 
or the County Superintendent of Schools or designee.  All subpoenas shall be issued in 
accordance with Code of Civil Procedure 1985-1985.2 and enforced in accordance with 
Government Code 11455.20.  (Education Code 48918(i)) 

 
Any objection raised by the student or the Superintendent or designee to the issuance of 
subpoenas may be considered by the Board in closed session, or in open session if so   
requested by the student, before the meeting.  The Board's decision in response to such an 
objection shall be final and binding.  (Education Code 48918(i)) 

 
If the Board determines, or if the hearing officer or administrative panel finds and submits to 
the Board, that a witness would be subject to unreasonable risk of harm by testifying at the 
hearing, a subpoena shall not be issued to compel the personal attendance of that witness at 
the hearing.  However, that witness may be compelled to testify by means of a sworn 
declaration as described in item #4 below.  (Education Code 48918(i)) 

 
4. Presentation of Evidence:  Technical rules of evidence shall not apply to the expulsion 

hearing, but relevant evidence may be admitted and used as proof only if it is the kind of 
evidence on which reasonable persons can rely in the conduct of serious affairs.  The decision 
of the Board to expel shall be supported by substantial evidence that the student committed 
any of the acts pursuant to Education Code 48900 and listed in "Grounds for Suspension and 
Expulsion: Grades K-12," and“Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-
12," and "Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 9-12" above.  (Education 
Code 48918(h)) (Education Code 48918(h)) 

 
Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing. Although no finding shall 
be based solely on hearsay, sworn declarations may be admitted as testimony from witnesses  
whose disclosure of their identity or testimony at the hearing may subject them to an 
unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm.  (Education Code 48918(f)) 

 
In cases where a search of a student's person or property has occurred, evidence describing the  
reasonableness of the search shall be included in the hearing record. 

 
 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(p) 
 
5. Testimony by Complaining Witnesses:  The following procedures shall be observed when a 

hearing involves allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery by a student:  (Education Code 
48918, 48918.5) 
 
a. Any complaining witness shall be given five days' notice before being called to testify. 

 
b. Any complaining witness shall be entitled to have up to two adult support persons, 

including, but not limited to, a parent/guardian or legal counsel, present during the his/her 
testimony. 

 
c. Before a complaining witness testifies, support persons shall be admonished that the 

hearing is confidential. 
 

d. The person presiding over the hearing may remove a support person whom they finds is 
disrupting the hearing. 

 
e. If one or both support persons are also witnesses, the hearing shall be conducted in 

accordance with Penal Code 868.5. 
 

 f. Evidence of specific instances of prior sexual conduct of a complaining witness shall be  
            presumed inadmissible and shall not be heard unless the person conducting the hearing 

determines that extraordinary circumstances require the evidence to be heard.  Before such 
a determination is made, the complaining witness shall be given notice and an opportunity 
to oppose the introduction of this evidence.  In the hearing on the admissibility of this 
evidence, the complaining witness shall be entitled to be represented by a parent/guardian, 
legal counsel, or other support person.  Reputation or opinion evidence regarding the 
sexual behavior of a complaining witness shall not be admissible for any purpose. 

 
g. In order to facilitate a free and accurate statement of the experiences of the complaining 

witness and to prevent discouragement of complaints, the district shall provide a 
nonthreatening environment. 

 
 (1) The district shall provide a room separate from the hearing room for the use of the 

complaining witness before and during breaks in testimony. 
 
 (2) At the discretion of the person conducting the hearing, the complaining witness shall  
  be allowed reasonable periods of relief from examination and cross-examination  
   during which they may leave the hearing room. 
 
  (3) The person conducting the hearing may: 
 

(a) Arrange the seating within the hearing room so as to facilitate a less intimidating 
environment for the complaining witness 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(q) 
 

 (b) Limit the time for taking the testimony of a complaining witness to the hours they 
are normally in school hours, if there is no good cause to take the testimony during 
other hours 

 
 (c) Permit one of the support persons to accompany the complaining witness to the 

witness stand 
 
6. Decision:  The Board's decision as to whether to expel a student shall be made within 40 
school days after the student is removed from his/her school of attendance, unless the student 
requests in writing that the decision be postponed.  (Education Code 48918(a))  
 
Alternative Expulsion Hearing:  Hearing Officer or Administrative Panel 
 
Instead of conducting an expulsion hearing itself, the Board may contract with the county  
hearing officer or with the Office of Administrative Hearings of the State of California for a 
hearing officer. The Board may also appoint an impartial administrative panel composed of three  
or more certificated personnel, none of whom shall be members of the Board or on the staff of the 
school in which the student is enrolled.  (Education Code 48918) 
 
A hearing conducted by the hearing officer or administrative panel shall conform to the same 
procedures applicable to a hearing conducted by the Board as specified above in "Conduct of 
Expulsion Hearing," including the requirement to issue a decision within 40 school days of the 
student’s removal from school, unless the student requests that the decision be postponed.  
(Education Code 48918 (a) and (d)) 
 
The hearing officer or administrative panel shall, within three school days after the hearing, 
determine whether to recommend expulsion of the student to the Board.  If expulsion is not 
recommended, the expulsion proceeding shall be terminated and the student shall be immediately 
reinstated and permitted to return to the classroom instructional program from which the referral 
was made, unless another placement is requested in writing by the student’s parent/guardian.  
Before the student’s placement decision is made by the student’s his/her parent/guardian, the 
Superintendent or designee shall consult with the parent/guardian and district staff, including the 
student’s teachers, regarding other placement options for the student in addition to the option to 
return to the classroom instructional program from which the student’s expulsion referral was 
made. The decision to not recommend expulsion shall be final. (Education Code 48918(e)) 
 
If expulsion is recommended, findings of fact in support of the recommendation shall be  
prepared and submitted to the Board.  All findings of fact and recommendations shall be based 
solely on the evidence presented at the hearing.  The Board may accept the recommendation  
based either upon a review of the findings of fact and recommendations submitted or upon the 
results of any supplementary hearing the Board may order.  (Education Code 48918(f)) 
 
In accordance with Board policy, the hearing officer or administrative panel may recommend that  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(r) 
 
the Board suspend the enforcement of the expulsion. If the hearing officer or administrative  
panel recommends that the Board expel a student but suspend the enforcement of the expulsion, 
the student shall not be reinstated and permitted to return to the classroom instructional program 
from which the referral was made until the Board has ruled on the recommendation.  (Education 
Code 48917, 48918) 
 
Final Action by the Board 
 
Whether the expulsion hearing is conducted in closed or open session by the Board, a hearing 
officer, or an administrative panel or is waived through the signing of a stipulated expulsion 
agreement, the final action to expel shall be taken by the Board in public.  (Education Code 
48918(j)) 
 
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 
 
The Board’s decision is final. If the decision is to not expel, the student shall be reinstated 
immediately. If the decision is to suspend the enforcement of the expulsion, the student shall be 
reinstated under the conditions of the suspended expulsion. 
 
Upon ordering an expulsion, the Board shall set a date when the student shall be reviewed for 
readmission to a school within the district.  For a student expelled for any "mandatory 
recommendation and mandatory expulsion" act listed in the section "Authority to Expel" in the 
accompanying Board policy, this date shall be one year from the date the expulsion occurred, 
except that the Board may set an earlier date on a case-by-case basis.  For a student expelled for 
other acts, this date shall be no later than the last day of the semester following the semester in 
which the expulsion occurred.  If an expulsion is ordered during summer session or the 
intersession period of a year-round program, the Board shall set a date when the student shall be 
reviewed for readmission not later than the last day of the semester following the summer session 
or intersession period in which the expulsion occurred. (Education Code 48916) 
 
At the time of the expulsion order, the Board shall recommend a plan for the student's 
rehabilitation, which may include: (Education Code 48916) 
 
1. Periodic review, as well as assessment at the time of review, for readmission 
 
2. Recommendations for improved academic performance, tutoring, special education  
 assessments, job training, counseling, employment, community service and other 

rehabilitative programs 
 
With parent/guardian consent, students who have been expelled for reasons relating to controlled 
substances or alcohol may be required to enroll in a county-sponsored drug rehabilitation program 
before returning to school.  (Education Code 48916.5) 

 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(s) 
 
Written Notice to Expel 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall send written notice of the decision to expel to the student or 
parent/guardian.  This notice shall include the following: 
 
1. The specific offense committed by the student for any of the causes for suspension or 

expulsion listed above under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12," "or  
     “Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12," or "Additional Grounds for  
      Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 9-12" (Education Code 48900.8) 
 
2. The fact that a description of readmission procedures will be made available to the student 
      and his/her parent/guardian (Education Code 48916) 
 
3.   Notice of the right to appeal the expulsion to the County Board  (Education Code 48918)  
 
4. Notice of the alternative educational placement to be provided to the student during the time 

of expulsion  (Education Code 48918) 
 
5. Notice of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new district in which the 

student seeks to enroll of the student's status with the expelling district, pursuant to Education 
Code 48915.1  (Education Code 48918) 

 
Decision to Suspend Expulsion Order 
 
In accordance with Board policy, when deciding whether to suspend the enforcement of an 
expulsion order, the Board shall take into account the following criteria: 
 
1. The student's pattern of behavior 
 
2. The seriousness of the misconduct 
 
3. The student's attitude toward the misconduct and his/her willingness to follow a rehabilitation 

program 
 
The suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion shall be governed by the following:   
 
1. The Board may, as a condition of the suspension of enforcement, assign the student to a  
 school, class, or program appropriate for the student's rehabilitation.  This rehabilitation 

program may provide for the involvement of the student's parent/guardian in the student's  
 education.  However, a parent/guardian's refusal to participate in the rehabilitation program   
 shall not be considered in the Board's determination as to whether the student has 

satisfactorily completed the rehabilitation program. (Education Code 48917) 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(t) 
 
2. During the period when enforcement of the expulsion order is suspended, the student shall be 

on probationary status. (Education Code 48917) 
 
3. The suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion order may be revoked by the Board if the 

student commits any of the acts listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades  
 K-12,” or “Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12," or "Additional 

Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 9-12" above or violates any of the district's 
rules and regulations governing student conduct. (Education Code 48917) 

 
4. When the suspension of enforcement of an expulsion order is revoked, a student may be  
      expelled under the terms of the original expulsion order.(Education Code 48917) 
 
5. Upon satisfactory completion of the rehabilitation assignment, the Board shall reinstate the 

student in a district school.  Upon reinstatement, the Board may order the expunging of any or 
all records of the expulsion proceedings.  (Education Code 48917) 

 
6. The Superintendent or designee shall send written notice of any decision to suspend the 

enforcement of an expulsion order during a period of probation to the student or 
parent/guardian.  The notice shall inform the parent/guardian of the right to appeal the 
expulsion to the County Board, the alternative educational placement to be provided to the 
student during the period of expulsion, and the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to 
inform any new district in which the student seeks to enroll of the student’s status with the 
expelling district, pursuant to Education Code 48915.1(b). (Education Code 48918(j))  

 
7. Suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion order shall not affect the time period and 

requirements for the filing of an appeal of the expulsion order with the County Board.  
(Education Code 48917)    

 
Appeal 
 
The student or parent/guardian is entitled to file an appeal of the Board's decision with the County 
Board.  The appeal must be filed within 30 days of the Board's decision to expel, even if the 
expulsion order is suspended and the student is placed on probation.  (Education Code 48919) 
 
If the student submits a written request for a copy of the written transcripts and supporting  
documents from the district simultaneously with the filing of the notice of appeal with the County  
 
Board, the district shall provide the student with these documents within 10 school days following 
the student's written request.  (Education Code 48919) following the student's written request.  
(Education Code 48919) 
 
 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(u) 
 
Notifications to Law Enforcement Authorities 
 
Prior to the suspension or expulsion of any student, the principal or designee shall notify  
appropriate city or county law enforcement authorities of any student acts of assault which may 
have violated Penal Code 245.  (Education Code 48902) 
 
The principal or designee shall notify appropriate city or county law enforcement authorities  
of any student acts which may involve the possession or sale of narcotics or of a controlled  
substance or of any student acts involving the possession, sale, or furnishing of firearms, 
explosives, or other dangerous weapons in violation of Education Code 48915(c)(1) or (5) or 
Penal Code 626.9 and 626.10 (Education Code 48902) 
 
Within one school day after a student’s suspension or expulsion, the principal or designee shall 
notify appropriate county or district law enforcement authorities, by telephone or other 
appropriate means, of any student acts which may violate Education Code 48900(c) or (d), 
relating to the possession, use, offering, or sale of controlled substances, alcohol or intoxicants of 
any kind. (Education Code 48902) 
 
Placement During Expulsion 
 
The Board shall refer expelled students to a program of study that is:  (Education Code 48915, 
48915.01) 
 
1. Appropriately prepared to accommodate students who exhibit discipline problems 
 
2. Not provided at a comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school or at any elementary 

school, unless the program is offered at a community day school established at  any of these 
 
3. Not housed at the school site attended by the student at the time of suspension 
 
(cf. 6158 – Independent Study) 
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 
 
When the placement described above is not available and when the County Superintendent so 
certifies, students expelled for only acts described in items #6-12 under "Grounds for Suspension 
and Expulsion: Grades K-12" and items #1-3 under "Additional Grounds for Suspension and 
Expulsion: Grades 4-12" above may be referred to a program of study that is provided at another 
comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school or at an elementary school. (Education Code 
48915) 
 
The program for a student expelled from any of grades K- 6 shall not be combined or merged  
with programs offered to students in any of grades 7-12.  (Education Code 48916.1) 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(v) 
 
Each school site administrator shall take steps to see that services are provided for students who  
have an expulsion hearing.  A student whose behavior has resulted in expulsion shall be given a  
rehabilitation plan that is designed by the district of residence.  When recommended placement 
includes a classroom option, it is possible that the placement may not be available in the Oak Park 
Unified School District.  Any recommended placement shall be monitored and appropriate  
documentation maintained by district and/or site personnel.  This plan may involve one or more  
of the options outlined below. 
 
Oak Park Unified School District education alternatives for expelled pupils includes: 
 
Secondary Students (7-12) 
 

1. Expulsion with subsequent transfer to another school district or private school – classroom 
option.  (Responsibility of parent to notify other district.  No financial  
obligations on the part of OPUSD) 

2. Expulsion with referral to Ventura County Superintendent of Schools Court and 
Community School Program – classroom option (Gateway School – Camarillo site) 

3. Suspended expulsion with referral to district independent Study Program or placement 
with rehabilitation plan on OPUSD site. 

 
Elementary Students (K-6) 
 

1. Expulsion with subsequent transfer to another school district or private school – classroom 
option (Responsibility of parent to notify other district.  No financial  

 obligations on the part of OPUSD.) 
2. Suspended expulsion with referral to district Independent Study program or placement 

with rehabilitation plan on OPUSD site.  (Education Code 51745 – Voluntary program –  
cannot be mandated). 

 
Secondary students referred back to Oak Park Unified School District due to second violations, 
non-attendance or failed placement: 
 
We believe that the appropriate response to students who have been removed from the county-
operated Community School Program is to inform the parents that 1) the parents are compelled  
by law to educate their child, and 2) it is their responsibility to find an educational placement.  
The child’s expellable behavior has deemed the student unsuitable for either regular school or 
alternative school placement.  The parents’ options are: a) request Independent Study if agreeable 
to the community school administration; b) provide private tutoring at parents’ expense; c) enroll  
in a private full-time day school at parents’ expense; or d) pursue enrollment with another school  
district’s board (unless student is expelled for injurious behavior, weapons, drugs, drug dealing,  
assault or other “zero tolerance” offenses [Education Code 48915(a) or (c)]).  In essence, the 
district will have fulfilled its obligation to secure an educational program to the  
extent funds are apportioned. 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(w) 
 
Elementary students referred back to Oak Park Unified School District due to second violations,  
non-attendance or failed placement: 
 
The respective strategies in the county plan include statements that: “A regional program may  
be developed to address geographical factors or limited numbers”; and “A regional program may 
be developed to meet this need (grades 1 to 6 placement).”  The Oak Park Unified School District 
Board of Education and principals strongly recommend that the Ventura County Superintendent 
coordinate a consortium of small districts which are impacted by gaps in #3, #4, #5 and #6 of the 
County Plan.  The purpose of this consortium will be to explore, plan and implement an  
educational placement which meets the needs found in the above referenced gaps. 
 
Readmission After Expulsion 
 
Prior to the date set by the Board for the student’s readmission: 
 

1. The Superintendent or designee shall hold a conference with the parent/guardian and the        
     student.  At the conference the student's rehabilitation plan shall be reviewed and the  
     Superintendent or designee shall verify that the provisions of this plan have been met. 

School regulations shall be reviewed and the student and parent/guardian shall be asked to 
indicate in writing their willingness to comply with these regulations. 

     
2. The Superintendent or designee shall transmit to the Board a his/her recommendation 

regarding readmission.  The Board shall consider this recommendation in closed session.  
If a written request for open session is received from the parent/guardian or adult student, 
it shall be honored to the extent that privacy rights of other students are not violated. 
 

3. If the readmission is granted, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student and 
parent/guardian, by registered mail, of the Board's decision regarding readmission. 
 

4. The Board may deny readmission only if it finds that the student has not satisfied the  
     conditions of the rehabilitation plan or that the student continues to pose a danger to 

campus safety or to other district students or employees.  (Education Code 48916) 
      

5. If the Board denies the readmission of a student, the Board shall determine either to 
continue the student's placement in the alternative educational program initially selected or 
to place the student in another program that serves expelled students, including placement 
in a county community school.  
 

6. The Board shall provide written notice to the expelled student and parent/guardian  
describing the reasons for denying readmittance into the regular program.  This notice 
shall indicate the Board's determination of the educational program which the Board has 
chosen.  The student shall enroll in that program unless the parent/guardian chooses to 
enroll the student in another school district.  (Education Code 48916) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000     Students                 AR 5144.1(x) 
 
No student shall be denied readmission into the district based solely on the student’s arrest, 
adjudication by a juvenile court, formal or informal supervision by a probation officer, detention 
in a juvenile facility, enrollment in a juvenile court school, or other such contact with the juvenile 
justice system. (Education Code 48645.5)  
 
Maintenance of Records 
 
The district shall maintain a record of each suspension and expulsion, including its specific 
cause(s). (Education Code 48900.8) 
 
Expulsion records of any student shall be maintained in the student's mandatory interim record, 
and sent to any school in which the student subsequently enrolls upon written request by that 
school.  (Education Code 48918(k)) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall, within five working days, honor any other district's request 
for information about an expulsion from this district.  (Education Code 48915.1) 
 
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 
 
Adopted:  5-15-84 
Amended:  5-6-97; 2-2-99; 2-20-02; 9-17-02; 6-17-03, 11-05, 11-08, 3-10, 3-12, 7-12, 11-12,  
4-14, 4-21-15, 4-17-18, 2-19-19,10-21-20 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 

DATE:  OCTOBER 21, 2020 

SUBJECT: B.6.c. APPROVE AMENDMENT TO BOARD POLICY AND EXHIBIT 5145.6 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS – First Reading 

ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve the amendment to Board Policy and 

Exhibit 5145.6 Parental Notifications? 
 
BACKGROUND: Board Policy 5145.6 updated for gender neutrality and to update legal references 

based on new laws reflected in the accompanying exhibit. Exhibit updated to 
reflect NEW LAW (SB 74, 2020) which extends the suspension of certain 
mandated activities through the 2020-21 school year; reflect NEW FEDERAL 
REGULATION (85 Fed. Reg. 30026) which requires notice of the contact 
information of the district's Title IX Coordinator; delete legal cites for the Open 
Enrollment Act, which is no longer operational; delete reference to BP 5141.33 
which is no longer applicable to exclusions from school; reflect NEW LAW (SB 
1109, 2018) which requires dissemination of an opioid fact sheet to 
parents/guardians of student athletes; reflect NEW LAW (AB 2370, 2018) which 
requires child care centers with buildings constructed before 2010 to test drinking 
water for lead and notify parents/guardians of the results of that test; add notice 
requirements for districts receiving Impact Aid for children residing on Indian 
lands; reflect NEW FEDERAL REGULATION (85 Fed. Reg. 30026) which 
requires notifications to the parents/guardians of a student who complains of 
sexual harassment regarding rights, the complaint process, and the availability of 
supportive measures; and move the classroom notice requirement pertaining to 
complaints about health and safety in California State Preschool Programs to 
AR/E 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures consistent with CDE's Federal 
Program Monitoring instrument. Board Policy 5145.6 is being submitted with 
recommended language from CSBA.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve amendment to Board Policy and Exhibit 5145.6 Parental 

Notifications. 
 2.    Do not approve amendment to Board Policy and Exhibit 5145.6 Parental 

Notifications. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Alternative #1. 
 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
            
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Education Meeting, October 21, 2020 
Approve amendment to Board Policy and Exhibit  
5145.6 Parental Notifications 
Page 2  
 
 

Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000          Students            BP 5145.6(a) 
 
Parental Notifications 
 
The Governing Board desires to promote effective communication between the school and the 
home and to keep parents/guardians informed regarding educational programs, school 
operations, and the legal rights of students and their parents/guardians. The Superintendent or 
designee shall send parents/guardians and students all notifications required by law and any other 
notifications he/shethe Superintendent or designee believes will promote parental understanding 
and involvement. 
 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Notice of the rights and responsibilities of parents/guardians as specified in Education Code 
48980 shall be sent at the beginning of each academic year and may be provided by regular mail, 
in electronic form when so requested by the parent/guardian, or by any other method normally 
used by the district for written communication with parents/guardians.  (Education Code 48981) 
 
No activity specified in Education Code 48980 shall be undertaken with respect to any particular 
student unless his/herthe student's parent/guardian has been informed of such action through the 
annual notification or other separate special notification. Such notice shall state the activity that 
will be undertaken and the approximate date on which the activity will occur.  (Education Code 
48983-48984) 
 
The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and return 
it to the school or, if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the parent/guardian submit a 
signed acknowledgment of receipt of the notice to the school. The parent/guardian's signature is 
an acknowledgment of receipt of the information but does not indicate that consent to participate 
in any particular program has been given or withheld. (Education Code 48982) 
 
Whenever a student enrolls in a district school during the school year, his/herthe student's 
parents/guardians shall be given all required parental notifications at that time. 
 
Notifications shall be presented in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent 
practicable, in a language that parents/guardians can understand. 
 
Whenever 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in a district school speak a single primary 
language other than English, as determined from the California Department of Education census 
data collected pursuant to Education Code 52164, all notices sent to the parent/guardian of any 
such student shall, in addition to being written in English, be written in the primary language, 
and may be responded to either in English or the primary language. (Education Code 48981, 
48985) 
Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is unable to understand the  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000          Students            BP 5145.6(b) 
 
district's printed notifications for any reason, he/shethe employee shall inform the principal or 
designee, who shall work with the parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of 
communication. 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
221.5 Prohibited sex discrimination 
231.5 Sexual harassment policy 
234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 
262.3 Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding availability of civil remedies 
310 Language acquisition programs 
313 Reclassification of English learners, parental consultation 
313.2 Long-term English learner, notification 
440 English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language development 
8483 Before/after school program; enrollment priorities 
17288 Building standards for university campuses 
17611.5-17612 Notification of pesticide use 
32221.5 Insurance for athletic team members 
32255-32255.6 Right to refuse harmful or destructive use of animals 
32390 Fingerprint program; contracts; funding; consent of parent/guardian 
33479.3 The Eric Paredes Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 
35160.5 Extracurricular and cocurricular activities 
35178.4 Notice of accreditation status 
35182.5 Advertising in the classroom 
35183 School dress codes; uniforms 
35186 Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities 
35211 Driver training; district insurance, parent/guardian liability 
35256 School Accountability Report Card 
35258 School Accountability Report Card 
35291 Rules for student discipline 
37616 Consultation regarding year-round schedule 
39831.5 School bus rider rules and information 
44050 Employee codes of conduct, employee interactions with students 
44808.5 Permission to leave school grounds 
46010.1 Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services 
46014 Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes 
46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance agreements 
48000 Minimum age of admission 
48070.5 Promotion or retention of students 
48204 Residency requirements 
48205 Absence for personal reasons 
48206.3 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions 
48207-48208 Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals 
48213 Prior notice of exclusion from attendance 
48216 Immunization 
48260.5 Notice regarding truancy 
48262 Need for parent conference regarding truancy 
48263 Referral to school attendance review board or probation department 
48301 Interdistrict transfers 
48350-48361 Open Enrollment Act 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000          Students            BP 5145.6(c) 
 

48354 Option to transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 
48357 Status of application for transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 
48412 Certificate of proficiency 
48432.3 Voluntary enrollment in continuation education 
48432.5 Involuntary transfers of students 
48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students 
48900.1 Parental attendance required after suspension 
48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 
48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 
48906 Notification of release of student to peace officer 
48911 Notification in case of suspension 
48911.1 Assignment to supervised suspension classroom 
48912 Closed sessions; consideration of suspension 
48915.1 Expelled students; enrollment in another district 
48916 Readmission procedures 
48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures 
48929 Transfer of student convicted of violent felony or misdemeanor 
48980 Required notification at beginning of term 
48980.3 Notification of pesticide use 
48981 Time and means of notification 
48982 Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice 
48983 Contents of notice 
48984 Activities prohibited unless notice given 
48985 Notices to parents in language other than English 
48987 Child abuse information 
49013 Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees 
49063 Notification of parental rights 
49067 Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course 
49068 Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record 
49069 Absolute right to access 
49070 Challenging content of student record 
49073 Release of directory information 
49073.6 Student records, social media 
49076 Access to student records 
49077 Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order 
49403 Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunization 
49423 Administration of prescribed medication for student 
49451 Physical examinations:  parent's refusal to consent 
49452.5 Screening for scoliosis 
49452.7 Information on type 2 diabetes 
49452.8 Oral health assessment 
49456 Results of vision or hearing test 
49471-49472 Insurance 
49475 Student athletes; concussions and head injuries 
49476 Student athletes; opioid fact sheet 
49480 Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions 
49510-49520 Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970 
49557.5 Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017; notice of negative balance in meal 
account 
51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000          Students            BP 5145.6(d) 
 

51225.2 Course credits; foster youth, homeless youth, former juvenile court school students and military-
connected students 
51225.3 Graduation requirements; courses that satisfy college entrance criteria 
51229 Course of study for grades 7-12 
51513 Personal beliefs; privacy 
51938 HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction 
52164 Language census 
52164.1 Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of language skills 
52164.3 Reassessment of English learners; notification of results 
54444.2 Migrant education programs; parent involvement 
56301 Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights 
56321 Special education:  proposed assessment plan 
56321.5-56321.6 Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education 
56329 Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment 
56341.1 Development of individualized education program; right to audio record meeting 
56341.5 Individualized education program team meetings 
56343.5 Individualized education program meetings 
56521.1 Behavioral intervention 
58501 Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment 
60615 Exemption from state assessment 
60641 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
69432.9 Submission of grade point average to Cal Grant program 
CIVIL CODE 
1798.29 District records, breach of security 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
1596.857 Right to enter child care facility 
1597.16 Licensed child care centers, lead testing  
104420 Tobacco use prevention 
104855 Availability of topical fluoride treatment 
116277 Lead testing of school drinking water 
120365-120375 Immunizations 
120440 Sharing immunization information 
124100-124105 Health screening and immunizations 
PENAL CODE 
626.81 Notice of permission granted to sex offender to volunteer on campus 
627.5 Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
852 Exemptions from state assessments 
863 Reports of state assessment results 
3052 Behavioral intervention 
4622 Notification of uniform complaint procedures 
4631 Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal 
4702 Student transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 
4917 Notification of sexual harassment policy 
11303 Reclassification of English learners 
11511.5 English language proficiency assessment; test results 
11523 Notice of proficiency examinations 
18066 Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences 
18094-18095 Notice of Action; child care services 
18114 Notice of delinquent fees; child care services 
18118-18119 Notice of Action; child care services 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000          Students            BP 5145.6(e) 
 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 
2951 Hearing tests 
6040 Time period to obtain needed immunizations 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act 
1232h Privacy rights 
1415 Procedural safeguards 
6311 State plan 
6312 Local educational agency plans 
6318 Parent and family engagement 
7704 Impact Aid; policies and procedures related to children residing on Indian lands 
7908 Armed forces recruiter access to students 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1758 Child nutrition programs 
11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
245.5 Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals 
245.6a Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.7 Student records, annual notification 
99.30 Disclosure of personally identifiable information 
99.34 Student records, disclosure to other educational agencies 
99.37 Disclosure of directory information 
104.32 District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education 
104.36 Procedural safeguards 
104.8 Nondiscrimination 
106.8 Notification of contact information for Title IX coordinator 
106.9 Dissemination of policy, nondiscrimination on basis of sex 
200.48Teacher48 Teacher qualifications 
222.94 Impact Aid; district responsibilities 
300.300 Parent consent for special education evaluation 
300.322 Parent participation in IEP team meetings 
300.502 Independent educational evaluation of student with disability 
300.503 Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of student with disability 
300.504 Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities 
300.508 Due process complaint 
300.530 Discipline procedures 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40 
763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions 
763.93 Asbestos management plans 

Management Resources: 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
Unpaid Meal Charges: Guidance and Q&A, SP 23-2017, March 2017 
Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement -- Nutrition Programs and Services, FNS Instruction 113-1, 
2005 
WEB SITES 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service:  http://www.fns.usda.gov 

 
Adopted:  8-18-92 
Amended:  3-05, 3-06, 3-07, 2-19-13, 5-17-18, 10-21-20 

http://www.fns.usda.gov


OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(a) 
 
Parental Notifications 
 
Cautionary Notice:  Government Code 17581.5 releases districts from the obligation to perform 
specified mandated activities when the Budget Act does not provide reimbursement during that 
fiscal year. The Budget Act of 2020 (SB 74, Ch. 6, Statutes of 2020) extends the suspension of 
these requirements through the 2020-21 fiscal year. As a result, certain provisions of the following 
Exhibit related to scoliosis screening and bus safety instruction may be suspended. 
 
I.  Annually 
 
When to Notify: Beginning of each school year  
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 222.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 5146 
Subject: Rights and options for pregnant and parenting students  
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year  
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 234.7 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 0410 
Subject:  Right to a free public year 234.7 education regardless of immigration status or religious 
beliefs 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 310 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6142.2, See AR 6174 
Subject:  Information on the district's language acquisition program 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 17611.5, 17612, 48980.3 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3514.2 
Subject:  Use of pesticide product, active ingredients, Internet address to access information, and, if 
district uses certain pesticides, integrated pest management plan 
 
When to Notify:  Annually by February 1 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35256, 35258 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 0510 
Subject:  School Accountability Report Card provided 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35291, 48980 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144, See AR 5144.1 
Subject:  District and site discipline rules 
 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(b) 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44050 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 4119.21, See BP 4219.21, See BP 4319.21 
Subject:  Code of conduct addressing employee interactions with students 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 46010.1 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113 
Subject:  Absence for confidential medical services 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year, if district has adopted policy on involuntary 
transfer of students convicted of certain crimes when victim is enrolled at same school 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48929, 48980 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5116.2 
Subject:  District policy authorizing transfer 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6111 
Subject:  Schedule of minimum days and student-free staff development days 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 231.5; 5 CCR 4917; 34 CFR 106.8 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5145.7 
Subject:  Copy of sexual harassment policy as related to students; contact information for Title IX 
coordinator 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 32255-32255.6 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5145.8 
Subject:  Right to refrain from harmful or destructive use of animals 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 35160.5, 46600-46611, 48204, 48301, 
48350-48361 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5111.1, See AR 5116.1, See AR 5117 
Subject:  All statutory attendance options, available local attendance options, options for meeting 
residency, form for changing attendance, appeals process 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year, if Board allows such absence 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 46014 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113 
Subject:  Absence for religious exercise or purposes 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(c) 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 48205 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113, See BP 6154 
Subject:  Excused absences; grade/credit cannot be reduced due to excused absence if work or test 
has been completed; full text of Education Code 48205 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 48206.3, 48207, 48208 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6183 
Subject:  Availability of home/hospital instruction for students with temporary disabilities 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 49403 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5141.31 
Subject:  School immunization program 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 49423, 49480 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.21 
Subject:  Administration of prescribed medication 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 49451; 20 USC 1232h 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3 
Subject:  Right to refuse consent to physical examination 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 49471, 49472 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5143 
Subject:  Availability of insurance 
 
When to Notify: Annually 
Education or Other Legal Code: 49013; 5 CCR 4622 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 1312.3 
Subject:  Uniform complaint procedures, available appeals, civil law remedies 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49063 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125, See AR 5125.3 
Subject:  Challenge, review and expunging of records 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49063, 49069; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.7 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(d) 
 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125 
Subject:  Student records: inspect and review, access, types, location, persons responsible, location 
of log, access criteria, cost of copies, amendment requests, criteria to determine legitimate 
educational interest, course prospectus availability 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49063, 49073; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.37 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.1 
Subject:  Release of directory information 
 
When to Notify:  On or around July 1; beginningBeginning of each school year, 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49428 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See None 
Subject:  How to be includedaccess mental health services at school and/or in registration 
materials.community 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49520, 48980; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 245.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  BP 3553;See AR 3553; BP 3551; AR 3551; E 3551  
Subject:  Letter to HouseholdEligibility and application process for Free and Reduced-Price Meals; 
Application for Freefree and Reduced-Price Meals; Medical Statement to Request Special Meals 
And/Or Accommodations; Non-Medical Request for Special Meals; Meal Charge Policy (E 
3551)reduced price meals 
 
When to Notify: Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51513, 20 USC 1232h 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5022, See BP 6162.8 
Subject:  Notice of privacy policy and dates of activities re: survey, health examination, or 
collection of personal information for marketing; process to opt out of such activities; inspection 
rights and procedures 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56301 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6164.4 
Subject:  Parental rights re: special education identification, referral, assessment, instructional 
planning, implementation and review, and procedures for initiating a referral for assessment 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 58501, 48980 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6181 
Subject:  Alternative schools 
 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(e) 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 104855 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.6 
Subject:  Availability of dental fluoride treatment; opportunity to accept or deny treatment 
 
When/Whom to Notify: Annually 
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 852; Education Code 60615 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6162.51 
Subject: Student's participation in state assessments; option to request exemption from testing 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year, if district receives Title I funds 
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 6312; 34 CFR 200.48 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 4112.2, See AR 4222 
Subject:  Right to request information re: professional qualifications of child's teacher and 
paraprofessional 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year 
Education or Other Legal Code: 34 CFR 104.8, 106.9 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 0410, See BP 6178 
Subject:  Nondiscrimination 
 
When to Notify: Beginning of each school year to parent, teacher, and employee organizations or, 
in their absence, individuals 
Education or Other Legal Code:  40 CFR 763.84, 40 CFR 763.93 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3514 
Subject:  Availability of asbestos management plan; any inspections, response actions or post-
response actions planned or in progress 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year  
Education or Other Legal Code:  USDA SP-23-2017 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP/AR/E 3551 
Subject:  Email, phone, and/or print notification of current negative cafeteria fund balance with 
information on payment options; reference to adopted local policies. 
Subject:  District policy on meal payments 
 
II.  At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning in grade 7, at least once prior to course selection and career counseling 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 221.5; 48980 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6164.2 
Subject:  Course selection and career counseling 
 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(f) 
 
When to Notify:  Upon a student's enrollment  
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 310 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6142.2, See AR 6174 
Subject:  Information on the district's language acquisition programs 
 
When to Notify:  When child first enrolls in a public school, if the school offers a fingerprinting 
program 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 32390, 48980 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5142.1 
Subject:  Fingerprinting program 
 
When/Whom to Notify: When participating in driver training courses under the jurisdiction of the 
district 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35211 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None 
Subject: Civil liability, insurance coverage 
 
When to Notify:  Upon registration in K-6, if students have not previously been transported 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 39831.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3543 
Subject:  School bus safety rules and information, list of stops, rules of conduct, red light crossing 
instructions, bus danger zones, walking to and from stops 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year for high school students, if high school is open 
campus 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 44808.5, 48980 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See ARBP 5112.5 
Subject:  Open campus 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year in grades 9-12, if district allows career technical 
education (CTE) course to satisfy graduation requirement 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980, 51225.3 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6146.1 
Subject:  How each school graduation requirement does or does not satisfy college entrance a-g 
course criteria; districts CTE courses that satisfy a-g course criteria 
 
When to Notify: Upon a student's enrollment 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49063 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125, See AR 5125.3 
Subject:  Specified rights related to student records 
 
When to Notify: When students enter grade 7 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49452.7 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(g) 
 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3 
Subject: Specified information on type 2 diabetes 
 
When to Notify:  When in kindergarten, or first grade if not previously enrolled in public school 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49452.8 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5141.32 
Subject:  Requirement for oral health assessment, explanation of law, importance of oral health, 
agency contact, privacy rights 
 
When to Notify: Beginning of each school year for students in grades 9-12 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51229, 48980 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6143 
Subject:  College admission requirements, UC and CSU web sites that list certified courses, 
description of CTE, CDE Internet address, how students may meet with counselors 
 
When to Notify:  Beginning of each school year for students in grades 7-12, or at time of 
enrollment if after beginning of year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51938, 48980 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6142.1 
Subject:  Sexual health and HIV prevention education; right to view A/V materials, whether taught 
by district staff or outside consultants, right to request specific Education Code sections, right to 
excuse 
 
When to Notify:  Within 20 working days of receiving results of standardized achievement tests or, 
if results not available in school year, within 20 working days of start of next school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 60641; 5 CCR 863 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6162.51 
Subject:  Results of tests; test purpose, individual score and intended use 
 
When/Whom to Notify: By October 15 for students in grade 12 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 69432.9 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5121, See AR 5125 
Subject: Forwarding of student's grade point average to Cal Grant program; timeline to opt out 
 
When to Notify:  When child is enrolled or reenrolled in a licensed child care center or preschool  
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 1596.7996 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148 
Subject:  Information on risks and effects of lead exposure, blood lead testing 
 
When to Notify:  When child is enrolled in kindergarten 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 124100, 124105 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.32 
Subject:  Health screening examination 



 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT 
 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(g) 
 
When to Notify:  To students in grades 11-12, early enough to enable registration for fall test 
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 11523 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6146.2 
Subject:  Notice of proficiency examination provided under Education Code 48412 
 
When to Notify:  To secondary students, if district receives Title I funds 
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 7908 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.1 
Subject:  Request that district not release student's name, address, and phone number of child to 
military recruiters without prior written consent 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur 
 
When to Notify:  In the event of a breach of security of district records, security of district records, 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Civil Code 1798.29 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 3580 
Subject:  Types of records affected, date of breach, description of incident, contact information for 
credit reporting agencies 
 
When to Notify:  Upon receipt of a complaint alleging discrimination 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 262.3 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 1312.3 
Subject:  Civil law remedies available to complainants 
 
When to Notify:  When determining whether an English learner should be reclassified as fluent 
English proficient 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 313; 5 CCR 11303 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6174 
Subject:  Description of reclassification process, opportunity for parent/guardian to participate 
 
When to Notify:  When Student is identified as English learner and district receives Titles I or Title 
III funds for English learner programs, not later than 30 days after beginning of school year or 
within two weeks of placement if identified during school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 313.2, 440; 20 USC 6312 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6174 
Subject:  Reason for classification, level of English proficiency, identification as long-term English 
learner, description of program(s), option to decline program or choose alternate, option to remove 
student from program at any time, exit requirements of program 
 
When to Notify:  When homeless or foster youth applies for enrollment in before/after school 
program 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 8483 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(h) 
 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5178.2 
Subject:  Right to priority enrollment how to request priority enrollment 
 
When to Notify:  Before high school student attends specialized secondary program on a university 
campus 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 17288 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: None 
Subject:  University campus buildings may not meet Education Code requirements for structural 
safety 
 
When to Notify:  At least 72 hours before use of pesticide product not included in annual list 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 17612 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3514.2 
Subject:  Intended use of pesticide product 
 
When to Notify:  To members of athletic teams 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 32221.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5143 
Subject:  Offer of insurance; no-cost and low-cost program options 
 
When to Notify:  Annually to parents/guardians of student athletes before participation in 
competition 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 33479.3 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6145.2 
Subject:  Information on sudden cardiac arrest  
 
When to Notify:  If school has lost its WASC accreditation status 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35178.4 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6190 
Subject:  Loss of status, potential consequences 
 
When/Whom to Notify: When district has contracted for electronic products or services that 
disseminate advertising 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35182.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 3312 
Subject: Advertising will be used in the classroom or learning center 
 
When to Notify:  At least six months before implementing a schoolwide uniform policy 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35183 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5132 
Subject:  Dress code policy requiring schoolwide uniform 
 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(i) 
 
When to Notify:  Before implementing a year-round schedule 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 37616 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6117 
Subject:  Public hearing on year-round schedule 
 
When to Notify:  When interdistrict transfer is requested and not approved or denied within 30 
days 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 46601 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5117 
Subject:  Appeal process 
 
When to Notify:  Before early entry to kindergarten, if offered 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48000 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5111 
Subject:  Effects, advantages and disadvantages of early entry 
 
When to Notify:  When student identified as being at risk of retention 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48070.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5123 
Subject:  Student at risk of retention 
 
When to Notify:  When student excluded due to quarantine, contagious or infectious disease, 
danger to safety or health 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48213 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5112.2, See BP 5141.33 
Subject:  Student has been excluded from school 
 
When to Notify:  Before already admitted student is excluded for lack of immunization 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48216; 17 CCR 6040 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.31 
Subject:  Need to submit evidence of immunization or exemption within 10 school days; referral to 
medical care 
 
When to Notify:  When a student is classified as truant 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48260.5, 48262 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113.1 
Subject:  Truancy, parental obligation, availability of alternative programs, student consequences, 
need for conference 
 
When to Notify:  When a truant is referred to a SARB or probation department 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48263 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5113.1 
Subject:  Name and address of SARB or probation department and reason for referral 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(j) 
 
When to Notify:  When a school is identified on the state's Open Enrollment List 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48354; 5 CCR 4702 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5118 
Subject:  Student's option to transfer to another school 
 
When to Notify:  Within 60 days of receiving application for transfer out of open enrollment 
school 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48357; 5 CCR 4702 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5118 
Subject:  Whether student's transfer application is accepted or rejected; reasons for rejection 
 
When/Whom to Notify: When student requests to voluntarily transfer to continuation school 
Education or Other Legal Code:   Education Code 48432.3 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6184 
Subject: Copy of district policy and regulation on continuation education 
 
When to Notify:  Prior to involuntary transfer to continuation school 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48432.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6184 
Subject:  Right to require meeting prior to involuntary transfer to continuation school 
 
When/Whom to Notify: To person holding educational rights, prior to recommending placement of 
foster youth outside school of origin 
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48853.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6173.1 
Subject: Basis for the placement recommendation 
 
When to Notify:  When student is removed from class and teacher requires parental attendance at 
school 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48900.1 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1 
Subject:  Parental attendance required; timeline for attendance 
 
When to Notify:  Prior to withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48904 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.2 
Subject:  Damaged school property 
 
When to Notify:  When withholding grades, diplomas or transcripts from transferring student 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48904.3 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.2 
Subject:  Next school will continue withholding grades, diplomas or transcripts 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(k) 
 
When to Notify:  When student is released to peace officer 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48906 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5145.11 
Subject:  Release of student to peace officer for the purpose of removing minor from school, unless 
taken into custody as victim of suspected child abuse 
 
When to Notify:  At time of suspension 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48911 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5144.1, See AR 5144.1 
Subject:  Notice of suspension 
 
When to Notify:  When original period of suspension is extended 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48911 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1 
Subject:  Extension of suspension 
 
When to Notify:  At the time a student is assigned to a supervised suspension classroom 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48911.1 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1 
Subject:  The student's assignment to a supervised suspension classroom 
 
When to Notify:  Before holding a closed session re: suspension 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48912 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1 
Subject:  Intent to hold a closed session re: suspension 
 
When to Notify:  When student expelled from another district for certain acts seeks admission 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48915.1, 48918 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5119 
Subject:  Hearing re: possible danger presented by expelled student 
 
When to Notify:  When readmission is denied 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48916 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1 
Subject:  Reasons for denial; determination of assigned program 
 
When to Notify:  When expulsion occurs 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48916 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1 
Subject:  Readmission procedures 
 
When to Notify:  At least 10 calendar days before expulsion hearing 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48918 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(l) 
 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1 
Subject:  Notice of expulsion hearing 
 
When to Notify:  When expulsion or suspension of expulsion occurs 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48918 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.1 
Subject:  Decision to expel; right to appeal to county board; obligation to inform new district of 
status 
 
When to Notify:  Before involuntary transfer of student convicted of certain crime when victim is 
enrolled at same school  
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48929, 48980 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5116.2 
Subject:  Right to request a meeting with principal or designee 
 
When to Notify:  One month before the scheduled minimum day 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48980 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6111 
Subject:  When minimum days are scheduled after the beginning of the school year 
 
When to Notify:  When parents/guardians request guidelines for filing complaint of child abuse at 
a school site 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 48987 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.4 
Subject:  Guidelines for filing complaint of child abuse at a school site with local child protective 
agencies 
 
When to Notify:  When student in danger of failing a course 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49067 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5121 
Subject:  Student in danger of failing a course 
 
When to Notify:  When student transfers from another district or private school 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49068 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125 
Subject:  Right to receive copy of student's record and to challenge its content 
 
When/Whom to Notify: When parent/guardian's challenge of student record is denied and 
parent/guardian appeals 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49070 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125.3 
Subject: If board sustains allegations, the correction of destruction of record; if denied, right to 
submit written objection 



 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT 
 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(m) 
 
When/Whom to Notify: When district is considering program to gather safety-related information 
from students' social media activity 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49073.6 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 5125 
Subject: Opportunity for input on proposed program 
 
When/Whom to Notify: When district adopts program to gather information from students' social 
media activity, and annually thereafter 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49073.6 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5125 
Subject: Information is being gathered, access to records, process for removal or corrections, 
destruction of records 
 
When to Notify:  Within 24 hours of release of information to a judge or probation officer 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49076 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5125 
Subject:  Release of student record to a judge or probation officer for conducting truancy mediation 
program or for presenting evidence at a truancy petition 
 
When to Notify:  Before release of information pursuant to court order or subpoena 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49077 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125 
Subject:  Release of information pursuant to court order or subpoena 
 
When to Notify:  When screening results in suspicion that student has scoliosis 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49452.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3 
Subject:  Scoliosis screening 
 
When to Notify:  When test results in discovery of visual or hearing defects 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49456; 17 CCR 2951 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5141.3 
Subject:  Vision or hearing test results 
 
When to Notify:  Within 10 days of negative balance in meal account  
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49557.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3551 
Subject:  Negative balance in meal account; encouragement to apply for free or reduced price 
meals  
 
When to Notify:  Annually to parents/guardians of student athletes before their first practice or 
competition 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(n) 
 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49475 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6145.2 
Subject:  Information on concussions and head injuries 
 
When to Notify:  Annually to parents/guardians of student athletes before their first practice or 
competition 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 49476 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6145.2 
Subject:  Opioid fact sheet 
 
When/Whom to Notify: Within 30 days of foster youth, homeless youth, former juvenile court 
school student, or child of military family, or migrant student being transferred betweenafter second 
year of high schoolsschool, or immigrant student enrolled in newcomer program in grades 11-12 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Educational Code 51225.1 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6146.1, See AR 6173, See AR 6173.1, AR 
6173.3, See AR 6175 
Subject: Exemption from local graduation requirements, effect on college admission, option for 
fifth year of high school 
 
When to Notify:  Before any test/survey questioning personal beliefs 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51513 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5022 
Subject:  Permission for test, survey questioning personal beliefs 
 
When to Notify:  At least 14 days before HIV prevention or sexual health instruction, if 
arrangement made for guest speaker after beginning of school year 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51938 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6142.1 
Subject:  Instruction in HIV prevention or sexual health by guest speaker or outside consultant 
 
When to Notify:  Prior to administering survey regarding health risks and behaviors to students in 
7-12 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 51938 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5022 
Subject:  Notice that the survey will be administered 
 
When to Notify:  Within 30 calendar days of receipt of results of assessment or reassessment of 
English proficiency 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 52164.1, 52164.3; 5 CCR 11511.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6174 
Subject:  Results of state test of English proficiency 
 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(o) 
 
When to Notify:  When migrant education program is established 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 54444.2 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See BP 6175, See AR 6175 
Subject:  Parent advisory council membership composition 
 
When to Notify:  When child participates in licensed child care and development program 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 1596.857 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148 
Subject:  Parent/guardian right to enter facility 
 
When to Notify:  When a licensed child care center has a building constructed before January 1, 
2010 and has drinking water tested for lead 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 1597.16 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5148 
Subject:  The requirement to test the facility, and the results of the test 
 
When/Whom to Notify: When district receives Tobacco-Use Prevention Education Funds 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 104420 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3513.3 
Subject: The district's tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures 
 
When to Notify:  When testing by community water system finds presence of lead exceeding 
specified level 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 116277 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3514 
Subject:  Elevated lead level at school  
 
When to Notify:  When sharing student immunization information with an immunization system 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Health and Safety Code 120440 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125 
Subject:  Types of information to be shared, name and address of agency, acceptable use of the 
information, right to examine, right to refuse to share 
 
When/Whom to Notify: At least 14 days prior to sex offender coming on campus as volunteer 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Penal Code 626.81 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 1240, See BP 1250 
Subject: Dates and times permission granted; obtaining information from law enforcement 
 
When to Notify:  When hearing is requested by person asked to leave school premises 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Penal Code 627.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3515.2 
Subject:  Notice of hearing 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(p) 
 
When/Whom to Notify: When responding to complaint re: discrimination, special education, or 
noncompliance with law 
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 4631 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 1312.3 
Subject: Findings, disposition of complaint, any corrective actions, appeal rights and procedures 
 
When to Notify:  When child participates in licensed child care and development program 
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 18066 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148 
Subject:  Policies re:regarding excused and unexcused absences 
 
When to Notify:  Within 30 days of application for subsidized child care or preschool services 
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 18094, 18118 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148, See AR 5148.3 
Subject:  Policies re: Approval or denial of services  
 
When to Notify:  Upon recertification or update of application for child care or preschool services 
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 18095, 18119 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148, See AR 5148.3 
Subject:  Policies re: Any change in service, such as in fees, amount of service, termination of 
service 
 
When to Notify:  Upon child's enrollment in child care program 
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 18114 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148 
Subject:  Policies re: Policy on fee collection 
 
When to Notify:  When payment of child care fees is seven days late 
Education or Other Legal Code:  5 CCR 18114 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148 
Subject:  Policies re: Notice of delinquent fees 
 
When to Notify:  When district substantively changes policy on student privacy rights 
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1232h 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5022 
Subject:  Notice of any substantive change in policy or regulation 
 
When to Notify:  For districts receiving Title I funds, when a child has been assigned or taught for 
four or more consecutive weeks by a teacher who does not meet state certification requirements for 
the grade level/subject taught 
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 6312 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 4112.24 
Subject:  Timely notice to parent/guardian of child's assignment 



 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT 
 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(q) 
 
When to Notify:  For districts receiving Title I funds, not later than 30 days after beginning of 
school year, to parents/guardians of English learners 
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 6312 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6174 
Subject:  Reasons for placement, level of proficiency, instructional methods, how program meets 
child's strengths and teaches English, exit requirements, right to choose another program 
 
When to Notify:  For schools receiving Title I funds, upon development of parent involvement 
policy 
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 6318 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6020 
Subject:  Notice of policy 
 
When to Notify:  When district receives Impact Aid funds for students residing on Indian lands, to 
parents/guardians of Indian children 
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 7704; 34 CFR 222.94 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3231 
Subject:  Relevant applications, evaluations, program plans, information about district's general 
educational program; opportunity to submit comments 
 
When to Notify:  When household is selected for verification of eligibility for free or reduced-price 
meals 
Education or Other Legal Code:  42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 245.6a 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 3553 
Subject:  Need to submit verification information; any subsequent change in benefits; appeals 
 
When/Whom to Notify: When student is homeless or unaccompanied minor 
Education or Other Legal Code:  42 USC 11432; Education Code 48852.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6173 
Subject: Educational and related opportunities; transportation services; placement decision and right 
to appeal 
 
When to Notify:  When student transfers out of state and records are disclosed without consent 
pursuant to 34 CFR 99.30 
Education or Other Legal Code:  34 CFR 99.34 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125 
Subject: Right to review records 
 
When to Notify:  When student complains of sexual harassment 
Education or Other Legal Code:  34 CFR 106.44, 106.45 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5145.7 
Subject: Right to file formal complaint, availability of supportive measures, notice of process,  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(r) 
 
reason for dismissal of complaint if applicable 
 
When to Notify:  When district receives federal funding assistance for nutrition program 
Education or Other Legal Code:  USDA FNS Instruction 113-1 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 3555 
Subject: Rights and responsibilities, nondiscrimination policy, complaint procedures 
 
IV.  Special Education Notices 
 
When to Notify:  Prior to conducting initial evaluation 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56301, 56321, 56321.5, 56321.6, 56329; 20 USC 
1415 (d); 34 CFR 300.502, 300.503 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6159.1, See AR 6159.1, See AR 6164.4 
Subject:  Proposed evaluation plan, related parental rights, prior written notice, procedural 
safeguards 
 
When/Whom to Notify: Before functional behavioral assessment begins 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56321 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6159 
Subject: Notification and consent 
 
When to Notify:  24 hours before IEP when district intending to record 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56341.1 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159 
Subject:  Intention to audio-record IEP meeting 
 
When to Notify:  Early enough to ensure opportunity for parent to attend IEP meeting 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159 
Subject:  Time, purpose, location, who will attend, participation of others with special knowledge, 
transition statements if appropriate 
 
When to Notify:  When parent/guardian orally requests review of IEP 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56343.5 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159 
Subject:  Need for written request 
 
When to Notify:  Within one school day of emergency intervention or serious property damage 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 56521.1 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159.4 
Subject:  Emergency intervention 
 
When to Notify:  Whenever there is a proposal or refusal to initiate or change the identification,  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 5000     Students           E 5145.6(s) 
 
evaluation, placement, or FAPE, including when parent/guardian revokes consent for services 
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1415(c); 34 CFR 300.300, 300.503 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159, See AR 6159.1 
Subject:  Prior written notice 
 
When/Whom to Notify: Upon filing of state complaint 
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1415(d), 34 CFR 300.504 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159.1 
Subject: Procedural safeguards notice 
 
When/Whom to Notify: When disciplinary measures are taken, or change in placement 
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1415(k); 34 CFR 300.530 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 5144.2 
Subject: Decision and procedural safeguards notice 
 
When to Notify:  Upon requesting a due process hearing 
Education or Other Legal Code:  20 USC 1415(k); 34 CFR 300.508 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6159.1 
Subject:  Child's name, address, school, description of problem, proposed resolution 
 
When to Notify:  Eligibility for services under Section 504 
Education or Other Legal Code:  34 CFR 104.32, 104.36 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR 6164.6 
Subject:  District responsibilities, district actions, procedural safeguards 
 
V.  Classroom Notices 
 
When to Notify:  In each classroom in each school 
Education or Other Legal Code:  Education Code 35186 
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #:  See AR/E 1312.4 
Subject:  Complaints subject to Williams uniform complaint procedures 
Subject:  Complaints re: sufficiency of instructional materials, teacher vacancy and misassignment, 
maintenance of facilities, right of students who did not pass the exit exam to receive intensive 
instruction after grade 12 
 
 
Adopted:  9-17-02 
Amended: 3-05, 3-06. 3-07, 3-08, 3-10, 3-11, 3-12, 4-13, 4-14, 4-15, 5-16, 5-17-18, 10-21-20  
 
 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 

DATE:  OCTOBER 21, 2020 

SUBJECT: B.6.d. ANNUAL REVIEW OF BOARD POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
REGULATION 5116.1 INTRADISTRICT OPEN ENROLLMENT – First 
Reading 

ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education review Board Policy and Administrative 

Regulation 5116.1 Intradistrict Open Enrollment? 
 
BACKGROUND: Education Code 35160.5 and 48980 require annual review of Board Policy 

5116.1 and Administrative Regulation. There are no recommended updates from 
CSBA or the staff.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve annual review of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 

5116.1 as presented.  
 2.    Do not approve annual review of Board Policy and Administrative 

Regulation 5116.1 as presented. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Alternative #1. 
 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
            
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
 

Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000      Students     BP 5116.1(a) 
 
Intradistrict Open Enrollment 
 
The Governing Board desires to provide enrollment options that meet the diverse needs and 
interests of district students and parents/guardians, while also maximizing the efficient use of 
district facilities and resources. The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures for the 
selection and transfer of students among district schools in accordance with law, Board policy, 
and administrative regulation. 
 
(cf. 5116.2 - Involuntary Student Transfers) 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 
 
The parents/guardians of any student who resides within district boundaries may apply to enroll 
their child in any district school, regardless of the location of their residence within the district.  
(Education Code 35160.5) 
 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
 
The Board shall annually review this policy.  (Education Code 35160.5, 48980) 
 
Enrollment Priorities 
 
No student currently residing within a school's attendance area shall be displaced by another 
student transferring from outside the attendance area.  (Education Code 35160.5) 
 
(cf. 5116 - School Attendance Boundaries) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall grant priority for the enrollment of a student in a district 
school outside of the student's attendance area, if the student:   

1. Is enrolled in a district school designated by the California Department of Education 
(CDE) as "persistently dangerous" (20 USC 7912; 5 CCR 11992) 

 
0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
  

2. Is a victim of a violent crime while on school grounds (20 USC 7912) 
 

3. Is victim of an act of bullying committed by another district student, as determined 
through an investigation following the parent/guardian's submission of a written 
complaint with the school, district, or local law enforcement agency pursuant to 
Education Code 234.1 (Education Code 46600) 

 
If the district school requested by the student is at maximum capacity, the Superintendent 
or designee shall accept an intradistrict transfer request for another district school.  
(Education Code 46600) 



 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD POLICY 
 
Series 5000      Students     BP 5116.1(b) 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
 

4. Is currently enrolled in a district school identified by CDE for comprehensive support and 
improvement, with priority given to the lowest academically achieving students from 
low-income families as determined pursuant to 20 USC 6313(a)(3) (20 USC 6311) 

 
(cf. 0520.1 - Comprehensive and Targeted Support and Improvement) 
 

5.  Is experiencing special circumstances that might be harmful or dangerous to the student 
in the current attendance area, including, but not limited to, threats of bodily harm or 
threats to the emotional stability of the student. Any such student may transfer to a 
district school that is at capacity and otherwise closed to transfers. To grant priority under 
these circumstances, the Superintendent or designee must have received either: 
(Education Code 35160.5) 

    
a. A written statement from a representative of an appropriate state or local agency, 

including, but not necessarily limited to, a law enforcement official or a social 
worker, or a properly licensed or registered professional, including, but not 
necessarily limited to, a psychiatrist, psychologist, marriage and family therapist, 
clinical social worker, or professional clinical counselor 
 

b. A court order, including a temporary restraining order and injunction 
 

6. Is a sibling of another student already attending that school 
 

7. Has a parent/guardian whose primary place of employment is that school 
 
Application and Selection Process 
 
In order to ensure that priorities for enrollment in district schools are implemented in accordance  
with law and Board policy, applications for intradistrict open enrollment shall be submitted 
between May 1 and June 1 of the school year preceding the school year for which the transfer is 
requested.  
 
The Superintendent or designee shall calculate each school's capacity in a nonarbitrary manner 
using student enrollment and available space. (Education Code 35160.5) 
 
Except for the enrollment priorities listed above, the Superintendent or designee shall use a 
random, unbiased selection process to determine which students shall be admitted whenever a 
district school receives admission requests that are in excess of the school's capacity.  
(Education Code 35160.5) 



 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD POLICY 
 
Series 5000      Students     BP 5116.1(c) 
 
Enrollment decisions shall not be based on a student's academic or athletic performance. 
However, existing entrance criteria may be used for enrolling students in specialized schools or 
programs, provided that the criteria are uniformly applied to all applicants. In addition, academic 
performance may be used to determine eligibility for, or placement in, programs for gifted and 
talented students. (Education Code 35160.5) 
 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 
 
Transportation 
 
In general, the district shall not be obligated to provide transportation for students who attend 
school outside their attendance area. 
 
However, upon parent/guardian request, the district shall provide transportation assistance to any 
student who is eligible for free or reduced-price meals and whose enrollment in a district school 
outside the student's attendance area is a result of being a victim of bullying. (Education Code 
46600) 
 
(cf. 3250 - Transportation Fees) 
(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200 Prohibition against discrimination 
35160.5 District policies; rules and regulations 
35291 Rules 
35351 Assignment of students to particular schools 
46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance agreements 
48200 Compulsory attendance 
48204 Residency requirements for school attendance 
48300-48316 Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program 
48980 Notice at beginning of term 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
11992-11994 Definition of persistently dangerous schools 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6311 State plans 
6313 Eligibility of schools and school attendance areas; funding allocation 
7912 Transfers from persistently dangerous schools 
COURT DECISIONS 
Crawford v. Huntington Beach Union High School District, (2002) 98 Cal.App.4th 1275 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 95 (2002) 

Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Public School Choice FAQs 
Every Student Succeeds Act - Update #8, July 14, 2017 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000      Students     BP 5116.1(d) 
 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Unsafe School Choice Option, May 2004 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 

 
Adopted: 6-92 
Amended: 3-29-94, 4-20-99, 9-17-02, 6-19-12, 01-17-17, 3-2-20 
Reviewed: 10-21-20 
 
 

http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov


OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000      Students     AR 5116.1(a) 
 
Intradistrict Open Enrollment 
 
Transfers for Victims of a Violent Criminal Offense 
 
Within a reasonable amount of time, not to exceed 14 calendar days, after it has been determined 
that a student has been the victim of a violent criminal offense while on school grounds, the 
student's parents/guardians shall be offered an option to transfer their child to an eligible school 
identified by the Superintendent or designee.  In making the determination that a student has 
been a victim of a violent criminal offense, the Superintendent or designee shall consider the 
specific circumstances of the incident and consult with local law enforcement as appropriate.  
Examples of violent criminal offenses include, but are not limited to, attempted murder, battery 
with serious bodily injury, assault with a deadly weapon, rape, sexual battery, robbery, extortion, 
or hate crimes. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall consider the needs and preferences of the affected student 
and parent/guardian in making the offer. If the parent/guardian elects to transfer the student, the 
transfer shall be completed as soon as practicable. 
 
Transfers from a "Persistently Dangerous" School 
 
Upon receipt of notification from the California Department of Education (CDE) that a district 
school has been designated as "persistently dangerous," intradistrict transfers shall be granted as 
follows: 
 

1. Within 10 days of receipt of the notification from CDE, the Superintendent or designee 
shall provide parents/guardians of students attending the school with notice of the 
school's designation. Along with this notification, or at least 14 calendar days before the 
start of the school year, the Superintendent or designee shall provide a list of other district 
schools to which any student of the school that is designated as persistently dangerous 
may transfer. 

 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
 

2. Parents/guardians who desire to transfer their child out of the school shall provide a 
written response to the Superintendent or designee and shall rank-order their preferences 
from among all schools identified by the Superintendent or designee as eligible to receive 
transfer students. 

 
3. The Superintendent or designee shall consider the needs and preferences of students and 

parents/guardians before making an assignment, but is not obligated to accept the 
parent/guardian's preference if the assignment is not feasible due to space constraints or 
other considerations. The Superintendent or designee shall notify the parents/guardians of 
the assigned school. 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000      Students     AR 5116.1(b) 
 

4. For students whose parents/guardians accept the offer, the transfer shall be made as 
quickly as possible. If the parents/guardians decline the assigned school, the student may 
remain in the current school. 

 
The transfer shall remain in effect as long as the student's school of origin is identified as 
"persistently dangerous." The Superintendent or designee may choose to make the transfer 
permanent based on the educational needs of the student, parent/guardian preferences, and other 
factors affecting the student's ability to succeed if returned to the school of origin. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall cooperate with neighboring districts to develop an 
interdistrict transfer program in the event that space is not available in a district school. 
 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 
 
Other Intradistrict Open Enrollment 
 
Except for transfers for victims of a violent crime and from a "persistently dangerous school," 
the following procedures shall apply to intradistrict open enrollment: 
 

1. The Superintendent or designee shall identify those schools which may have space 
available for additional students. A list of those schools and open enrollment applications 
shall be available at each school site, the district office, and on the district's web site. 

 
2. After the enrollment priorities have been applied in accordance with Board policy, if 

there are more requests for a particular school than there are spaces available, a random 
drawing shall be held from the applicant pool. A waiting list shall be established to 
indicate the order in which applicants may be accepted if openings occur during the year.  
Late applicants shall not be added to the waiting list for the current year but shall instead 
wait for a subsequent lottery. 

 
3. The Superintendent or designee shall provide written notification to applicants as to  

whether their applications have been approved, denied, or placed on a waiting list. If the 
application is denied, the reasons for denial shall be stated. 

 
4. Approved applicants must confirm their enrollment within 10 school days. 

 
Any student who is granted a transfer out of a school that had been identified by CDE for 
comprehensive support and improvement shall be allowed to remain in the school of enrollment 
until completing the highest grade offered at that school.  (20 USC 6311) 
 
(cf. 0520.1 - Comprehensive and Targeted Support and Improvement) 
 
A student granted intradistrict enrollment under other circumstances shall not be required to  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 5000      Students     AR 5116.1(c) 
 
reapply for readmission but may be subject to displacement due to excessive enrollment. 
 
Any complaints regarding the open enrollment process shall be submitted in accordance with the 
applicable complaint procedure. 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
Notifications 
 
Notifications shall be sent to parents/guardians at the beginning of each school year describing 
all current statutory attendance options and local attendance options available in the district.  
Such notification shall include:  (Education Code 35160.5, 48980) 
 

1. All options for meeting residency requirements for school attendance 
 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
 

2. Program options offered within local attendance areas 
 

3. A description of any special program options available on both an interdistrict and 
intradistrict basis 

 
4. A description of the procedure for application for alternative attendance areas or 

programs and the appeals process available, if any, when a change of attendance is denied 
 

5. A district application form for requesting a change of attendance 
 

6. The explanation of attendance options under California law as provided by CDE 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
Adopted: 9-17-02 
Amended: 11-08, 3-11, 1-17-17, 3-17-20 
Reviewed: 10-21-20 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 

DATE:  OCTOBER 21, 2020 

SUBJECT: B.6.e. ANNUAL REVIEW OF BOARD POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
REGULATION 6145 EXTRACURRICULAR AND COCURRICULAR 
ACTIVITIES – First Reading 

ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education review Board Policy and Administrative 

Regulation 6145 Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities? 
 
BACKGROUND: Education Code 35160.5 requires annual review of Board policy and 

Administrative Regulation 6145 Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities, as it 
relates to the participation of students in grades 7-12 in extracurricular and 
cocurricular activities. The policy and administrative regulation are being 
submitted for review with updates for gender neutrality. There are no other 
recommended updates from CSBA or the staff.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve annual review of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6145 

Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities as presented.  
 2.    Do not approve annual review of Board Policy and Administrative 

Regulation 6145 Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities as presented. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Alternative #1. 
 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
            
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
 

Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 6000              Instruction                     BP 6145(a) 
 
Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that extracurricular and cocurricular activities enrich the 
educational and social development of students and enhance students’ feelings of connectedness 
with the schools. The district shall encourage and support student participation in extracurricular 
and cocurricular activities without compromising the integrity and purpose of the educational 
program. 
 
(cf. 1330 – Use of School Facilities) 
(cf. 5137 – Positive School Climate) 
(cf. 6145.2 – Athletic Competition) 
(cf. 5148.2 – Before/After School Programs) 
 
Prerequisites for student participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities shall be 
limited to those that have been demonstrated to be essential to the success of the activity. No 
extracurricular or cocurricular program or activity shall be provided or conducted separately on 
the basis of any actual or perceived characteristic listed as a prohibited category of 
discrimination in state or federal law, nor shall any student’s participation in an extracurricular or 
cocurricular activity be required or refused on those bases.  (5 CCR 4925) 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 (cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
(cf. 6145.5 – Student Organizations and Equal Access) 
 
Any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination in the district's extracurricular or cocurricular 
programs or activities shall be filed in accordance with BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint 
Procedures.  
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
Unless specifically authorized by law, no student shall be charged a fee for his/her their 
participation in educational activities, including extracurricular and cocurricular activities and 
materials or equipment related to such activities. (Education Code 49010, 49011)  
 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
(cf. 3452 – Student Activity Funds) 
 
Eligibility Requirements 
 
To be eligible to participate in extracurricular and cocurricular activities, students in grades 7-12 
must demonstrate satisfactory educational progress in the previous grading period, including, but 
not limited to: (Education Code 35160.5) 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 6000              Instruction                     BP 6145(b)  
 
1. Maintenance of a minimum of 2.0 grade point average on a 4.0 scale in all enrolled classes 
 
2. Maintenance of minimum progress toward meeting high school graduation requirements 
 
(cf. 5121 – Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may grant ineligible students a probationary period not to exceed 
one semester.  Students granted probationary eligibility must meet the required standards by the 
end of the probationary period in order to remain eligible for participation. (Education Code 
35160.5) 
 
Any decision regarding the eligibility of a homeless student, foster youth, or child of an active 
duty military family for extracurricular or cocurricular activities shall be made by the 
Superintendent or designee in accordance with Education Code 48850 and 49701. 
 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 – Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 – Education of Children of Military Families) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may revoke a student's eligibility for participation in 
extracurricular and cocurricular activities when the student's poor citizenship is serious enough 
to warrant loss of this privilege. 
 
Student Conduct at Extracurricular/Cocurricular Events 
 
When attending or participating in extracurricular and cocurricular activities on or off campus, 
district students are subject to district policies and regulations relating to student conduct.  
Students who violate district policies and regulations may be subject to discipline including, but 
not limited to, suspension, expulsion, transfer to alternative programs, or denial of participation 
in extracurricular or cocurricular activities in accordance with Board policy and administrative 
regulation.  When appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall notify local law 
enforcement. 
 
(cf. 5131 – Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.1 – Bus Conduct) 
(cf. 5144 – Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 – Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 – Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
 
Annual Policy Review 
 
The Board shall annually review this policy and implementing regulations. (Education Code 
35160.5) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 6000              Instruction                     BP 6145(c)  
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35145 Public meetings 
35160.5 District policy rules and regulations; requirements; matters subject to regulation 
35179 Interscholastic athletics; associations or consortia 
35181 Students’ responsibilities 
48850 Participation of homeless students and foster youth in extracurricular activities and interscholastic 
sports  
48930-48938 Student organizations 
49010-49013 Student fees 
49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 
49700-49704 Education of children of military families 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
Article 9, Section 5 Common school system 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
350 Fees not permitted 
4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state financial 
assistance 
5531 Supervision of extracurricular activities of pupils 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000h-2-2000h-6 Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 
COURT DECISIONS 
Hartzell v. Connell, (1984) 35 Cal. 3d 899 

Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 12-02, April 24, 2013 
CALIFORNIA TASK FORCE REPORT TO THE LEGISLATURE 
Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children: Preliminary Final Report, March 2009 
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS  
Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor Clearance  
Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Association of Directors of Activities:  http://www.cada1.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Interscholastic Federation: http://www.cifstate.org 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 

 
Adopted: 4-26-80 
Amended: 9-3-85, 1-5-99, 9-17-02, 3-16-10, 8-21-12, 8-30-17 
Reviewed: 10-21-20 

http://www.csba.org
http://www.cada1.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.cifstate.org
http://www.ctc.ca.gov


OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

  
Series 6000          Instruction         AR 6145(a)  
 
Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities 
 
Definitions 
 
For the purposes of applying eligibility criteria for student participation, extracurricular and 
cocurricular shall be defined as follows: (Education Code 35160.5) 
 

1. Extracurricular activities are not part of the regular school curriculum, are not graded, do 
not offer credit, do not take place during classroom time, and have all of the following 
characteristics: 

 
a. The program is supervised or financed by the school district. 

 
b. Students participating in the program represent the school district. 

 
c. Students exercise some degree of freedom in the selection, planning or control of the 

program. 
 

d. The program includes both preparation for performance and performance before an 
audience or spectators. 

 
2. Co-curricular activities are programs that may be associated with the curriculum in a 

regular classroom.  
 
An activity is not an extracurricular or co-curricular activity if either of the following conditions 
applies: (Education Code 35160.5) 
 

1. It is a teacher-graded or required program or activity for a course which satisfies the 
entrance requirements for admission to the California State University or the University 
of California. 

 
2. It is a program that has as its primary goal the improvement of academic or educational 

achievement of students.   
 
Eligibility Requirements 
 
The grade point average used to determine eligibility for extracurricular or cocurricular activities 
shall be based on grades of the last previous grading period during which the student attended 
class at least a majority of the time.  If a student was not in attendance for all, or a majority of, 
the grading period due to absences excused by the school for reasons such as serious illness or 
injury, approved travel, or work, the GPA used to determine eligibility shall be the grading  
period immediately prior to the excluded grading period(s). (Education Code 35160.5) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

  
Series 6000          Instruction         AR 6145(b)  
 
(cf. 5113 – Absences and Excuses) 
 
When a student becomes ineligible to participate in extracurricular or cocurricular activities in 
the upcoming grading period, or when he/she is subject to probation, the principal or designee 
shall provide written notice to the student and his/her  their parents/guardians.   
 
Supervision 
 
All extracurricular activities conducted under the name or auspices of a district school or any 
class or organization of the school, regardless of where the activities are held, shall be under the 
direct supervision of certificated employees. (5 CCR 5531) 
 
Any noncertificated person working with students in a district-sponsored extracurricular activity 
program shall possess an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate from the Commission on 
Teacher Credentialing or shall have cleared a Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of 
Investigation criminal background check prior to beginning his/her  their duties, in accordance 
with BP 4127/4227/4327 – Temporary Athletic Coaches. (Education Code 49024) 
 
(cf. 1240 – Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 4127/4227/4327 – Temporary Athletic Team Coaches) 
(cf. 4212.5 – Criminal Record Check) 
 
Adopted:  1-5-99 
Amended:  9-17-02, 3-12, 8-30-17 
Reviewed: 10-21-20 
 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

  
Series 6000          Instruction         AR 6145(a)  
 
Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities 
 
Definitions 
 
For the purposes of applying eligibility criteria for student participation, extracurricular and 
cocurricular shall be defined as follows: (Education Code 35160.5) 
 

1. Extracurricular activities are not part of the regular school curriculum, are not graded, do 
not offer credit, do not take place during classroom time, and have all of the following 
characteristics: 

 
a. The program is supervised or financed by the school district. 

 
b. Students participating in the program represent the school district. 

 
c. Students exercise some degree of freedom in the selection, planning or control of the 

program. 
 

d. The program includes both preparation for performance and performance before an 
audience or spectators. 

 
2. Co-curricular activities are programs that may be associated with the curriculum in a 

regular classroom.  
 
An activity is not an extracurricular or co-curricular activity if either of the following conditions 
applies: (Education Code 35160.5) 
 

1. It is a teacher-graded or required program or activity for a course which satisfies the 
entrance requirements for admission to the California State University or the University 
of California. 

 
2. It is a program that has as its primary goal the improvement of academic or educational 

achievement of students.   
 
Eligibility Requirements 
 
The grade point average used to determine eligibility for extracurricular or cocurricular activities 
shall be based on grades of the last previous grading period during which the student attended 
class at least a majority of the time.  If a student was not in attendance for all, or a majority of, 
the grading period due to absences excused by the school for reasons such as serious illness or 
injury, approved travel, or work, the GPA used to determine eligibility shall be the grading  
period immediately prior to the excluded grading period(s). (Education Code 35160.5) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

  
Series 6000          Instruction         AR 6145(b)  
 
(cf. 5113 – Absences and Excuses) 
 
When a student becomes ineligible to participate in extracurricular or cocurricular activities in 
the upcoming grading period, or when he/she the student is subject to probation, the principal or 
designee shall provide written notice to the student and his/her  their parents/guardians.   
 
Supervision 
 
All extracurricular activities conducted under the name or auspices of a district school or any 
class or organization of the school, regardless of where the activities are held, shall be under the 
direct supervision of certificated employees. (5 CCR 5531) 
 
Any noncertificated person working with students in a district-sponsored extracurricular activity 
program shall possess an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate from the Commission on 
Teacher Credentialing or shall have cleared a Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of 
Investigation criminal background check prior to beginning his/her  their duties, in accordance 
with BP 4127/4227/4327 – Temporary Athletic Coaches. (Education Code 49024) 
 
(cf. 1240 – Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 4127/4227/4327 – Temporary Athletic Team Coaches) 
(cf. 4212.5 – Criminal Record Check) 
 
Adopted:  1-5-99 
Amended:  9-17-02, 3-12, 8-30-17 
Reviewed: 10-21-20 
 
 



TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: VII.1. MONTHLY CASH FLOW REPORT 
 INFORMATION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board receive and review a status report on District’s actual and 

projected cash flow as of September 30th of the 2020-21 fiscal year? 
 
BACKGROUND: The State’s funding appropriation schedule for school districts is always 

challenging. Continuing its standard practice of the last several years, the 
Business Office has produced a monthly cash flow report as an ongoing tool 
to assist the both the Administration and Board in analyzing and managing the 
District’s cash in order to remain cash-solvent.  

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None- for information only. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None - for information only. 
 
Prepared by: Byron Jones, Director, Fiscal Services 
 Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
 



10/7/2020 https://projection-pro.fcmat.org/projections/7246/reports

https://projection-pro.fcmat.org/projections/7246/reports 1/4

FCMAT/CSIS So�ware 1.0.0.0 - 10/7/2020 1:39:00 PM

Oak Park Unified
56-73874-0000000

Cashflow Report
2020-21 Adopted as of 9.30.2020

Base Year 2020-21; Actuals Through the Month of September

Fund 01

 
Object
Range

Budget/Beg.
Balance

2020
July August September October November December

2021
January Feburary

A. BEGINNING CASH 242,718 242,718 3,853,180 6,104,653 7,057,598 4,592,667 4,391,639 9,862,559 6,275,103

B. RECEIPTS          

LCFF Sources          

Principal Appor�onment 8010-8019 26,930,635 947,170 947,170 3,835,413 1,704,906 1,704,906 2,831,618 1,704,906 1,166,119

Property Taxes 8020-8079 11,933,223 82,488 254 26,105 31,790 402,448 6,351,547 147,137 69,451

Miscellaneous Funds & LCFF Transfers 8080-8099 0 — — — — — — — —

Federal Revenue 8100-8299 1,006,772 — 17,523 1,010,241 — — 68,568 — —

Other State Revenue 8300-8599 1,259,020 — 114,355 567,713 (226,952) 188,485 269,900 5,440 —

Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 4,387,714 417,798 218,903 302,712 264,934 493,697 246,445 260,794 796,728

Interfund Transfers in 8910-8929 0 — — — — — — — —

All Other Financing Sources 8930-8999 0 — — — — — — — —

TOTAL RECEIPTS 45,517,364 1,447,455 1,298,205 5,742,183 1,774,678 2,789,536 9,768,078 2,118,277 2,032,298

C. DISBURSEMENTS          

Cer�ficated Salaries 1000-1999 22,020,666 164,492 2,343,172 2,111,964 2,094,057 2,106,642 2,079,832 2,451,671 2,184,406

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 7,012,919 219,537 511,386 546,794 609,414 624,700 591,366 733,369 634,985

Employee Benefits 3000-3999 10,120,893 90,338 987,410 981,684 939,939 947,124 943,410 1,044,891 997,465

Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,002,163 46,501 139,913 338,124 118,757 34,668 74,979 40,845 46,451

Services 5000-5999 3,399,448 176,592 72,093 474,909 330,945 272,530 310,649 342,865 202,291

Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0 — — — — — — — —

Other Outgo 7000-7499 504,774 2,395 2,395 18,828 — — 14,518 65,524 —

Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629 50,000 50,387 85,388 80,332 — — 50,000 — —

All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 0 — — — — — — — —

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 44,110,863 750,241 4,141,756 4,552,635 4,093,113 3,985,665 4,064,754 4,679,165 4,065,598

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 2,268,880 3,610,462 2,251,474 952,945 (2,464,931) (201,028) 5,470,920 (3,587,456) (1,976,553)

F. ENDING CASH (A + E)  3,853,180 6,104,653 7,057,598 4,592,667 4,391,639 9,862,559 6,275,103 4,298,549

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ACCRUALS AND
ADJUSTMENTS

         

https://CSIS
https://projection-pro.fcmat.org/projections/7246/reports


10/7/2020 https://projection-pro.fcmat.org/projections/7246/reports

https://projection-pro.fcmat.org/projections/7246/reports 2/4

FCMAT/CSIS So�ware 1.0.0.0 - 10/7/2020 1:39:00 PM

Oak Park Unified
56-73874-0000000

Cashflow Report
2020-21 Adopted as of 9.30.2020

Base Year 2020-21; Actuals Through the Month of September

Fund 01

 
Object
Range

Budget/Beg.
Balance

2021
March April May June Accruals Adjustments TOTAL Variance

A. BEGINNING CASH 242,718 4,298,549 3,867,123 6,139,564 3,460,351 — — — —

B. RECEIPTS          

LCFF Sources          

Principal Appor�onment 8010-8019 26,930,635 2,930,896 1,804,184 1,804,184 1,126,713 4,422,450 — 26,930,635 —

Property Taxes 8020-8079 11,933,223 50,847 4,591,606 116,027 63,524 — — 11,933,223 0

Miscellaneous Funds & LCFF Transfers 8080-8099 0 — — — — — — — —

Federal Revenue 8100-8299 1,006,772 47,290 — — 67,500 867,495 — 2,078,617 (1,071,845)

Other State Revenue 8300-8599 1,259,020 384,900 5,440 — 275,340 233,444 — 1,818,064 (559,044)

Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 4,387,714 209,227 214,471 275,456 301,949 427,621 — 4,430,735 (43,021)

Interfund Transfers in 8910-8929 0 — — — — — — — —

All Other Financing Sources 8930-8999 0 — — — — — — — —

TOTAL RECEIPTS 45,517,364 3,623,161 6,615,700 2,195,667 1,835,026 5,951,010 — 47,191,274 (1,673,910)

C. DISBURSEMENTS          

Cer�ficated Salaries 1000-1999 22,020,666 2,165,710 2,166,635 2,157,607 397,890 — — 22,424,079 (403,413)

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 7,012,919 629,704 623,372 677,560 452,874 — — 6,855,060 157,859

Employee Benefits 3000-3999 10,120,893 970,492 972,355 975,118 242,190 — — 10,092,416 28,477

Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,002,163 29,581 54,068 100,717 131,134 — — 1,155,738 (153,575)

Services 5000-5999 3,399,448 136,797 227,675 200,041 412,486 — — 3,159,872 239,576

Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0 — — — — — — — —

Other Outgo 7000-7499 504,774 14,518 351 36,356 64,207 288,077 — 507,169 (2,395)

Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629 50,000 — — — — — — 266,108 (216,108)

All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 0 — — — — — — — —

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 44,110,863 3,946,803 4,044,456 4,147,398 1,700,781 288,077 — 44,460,442 (349,579)

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 2,268,880 (431,426) 2,272,441 (2,679,213) (556,147) 11,325,866 — 13,987,352  

F. ENDING CASH (A + E)  3,867,123 6,139,564 3,460,351 2,904,204 — — —  

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ACCRUALS AND
ADJUSTMENTS

       14,230,070  

https://CSIS
https://projection-pro.fcmat.org/projections/7246/reports


10/7/2020 https://projection-pro.fcmat.org/projections/7246/reports

https://projection-pro.fcmat.org/projections/7246/reports 3/4

FCMAT/CSIS So�ware 1.0.0.0 - 10/7/2020 1:39:00 PM

Oak Park Unified
56-73874-0000000

Cashflow Report
2020-21 Adopted as of 9.30.2020

Base Year 2020-21; Actuals Through the Month of September

Fund 01

 
Object
Range

Budget/Beg.
Balance

2020
July August September October November December

2021
January Feburary

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS          

Assets and Deferred Ou�lows          

Cash Not in Treasury 9111-9199 2,000 — — — — — — — —

Accounts Receivable 9200-9299 7,186,634 5,574,400 36,979 64,505 52,450 1,305,910 767 3,302 —

Due From Other Funds 9310 3,468 — 3,468 — — — — — —

Stores 9320 0 — — — — — — — —

Prepaid Expenditures 9330 15,899 5,953 — — — — — — —

Other Current Assets 9340 0 — — — — — — — —

Deferred Ou�lows of Resources 9490 0 — — — — — — — —

SUBTOTAL 7,208,002 5,580,352 40,447 64,505 52,450 1,305,910 767 3,302 —

Liabili�es and Deferred Inflows          

Accounts Payable 9500-9599 5,263,658 3,667,105 (209,578) 301,108 198,946 310,809 233,171 184,870 (56,746)

Due To Other Funds 9610 966,535 (1,000,000) 1,000,000 — — — — — —

Current Loans 9640 0 — (5,845,000) — — — — 845,000 —

Unearned Revenues 9650 115,429 — — — — — — — —

Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0 — — — — — — — —

SUBTOTAL 6,345,622 2,667,105 (5,054,578) 301,108 198,946 310,809 233,171 1,029,870 (56,746)

Nonopera�ng          

Suspense Clearing 9910 0 — — — — — — — —

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 862,379 2,913,248 5,095,025 (236,603) (146,497) 995,101 (232,404) (1,026,568) 56,746

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 2,268,880 3,610,462 2,251,474 952,945 (2,464,931) (201,028) 5,470,920 (3,587,456) (1,976,553)

F. ENDING CASH (A + E)  3,853,180 6,104,653 7,057,598 4,592,667 4,391,639 9,862,559 6,275,103 4,298,549

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ACCRUALS AND
ADJUSTMENTS

         

https://CSIS
https://projection-pro.fcmat.org/projections/7246/reports


10/7/2020 https://projection-pro.fcmat.org/projections/7246/reports

https://projection-pro.fcmat.org/projections/7246/reports 4/4

FCMAT/CSIS So�ware 1.0.0.0 - 10/7/2020 1:39:00 PM

Oak Park Unified
56-73874-0000000

Cashflow Report
2020-21 Adopted as of 9.30.2020

Base Year 2020-21; Actuals Through the Month of September

Fund 01

 
Object
Range

Budget/Beg.
Balance

2021
March April May June Accruals Adjustments TOTAL Variance

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS          

Assets and Deferred Ou�lows          

Cash Not in Treasury 9111-9199 2,000 — — — — — — —  

Accounts Receivable 9200-9299 7,186,634 — — — — 5,951,010 — 12,989,322  

Due From Other Funds 9310 3,468 — — — — — — 3,468  

Stores 9320 0 — — — — — — —  

Prepaid Expenditures 9330 15,899 — — — — — — 5,953  

Other Current Assets 9340 0 — — — — — — —  

Deferred Ou�lows of Resources 9490 0 — — — — — — —  

SUBTOTAL 7,208,002 — — — — 5,951,010 — 12,998,744  

Liabili�es and Deferred Inflows          

Accounts Payable 9500-9599 5,263,658 107,785 298,803 727,481 690,391 288,077 — 6,742,223  

Due To Other Funds 9610 966,535 — — — — — — —  

Current Loans 9640 0 — — — — — — (5,000,000)  

Unearned Revenues 9650 115,429 — — — — — — —  

Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0 — — — — — — —  

SUBTOTAL 6,345,622 107,785 298,803 727,481 690,391 288,077 — 1,742,223  

Nonopera�ng          

Suspense Clearing 9910 0 — — — — — — —  

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 862,379 (107,785) (298,803) (727,481) (690,391) 5,662,933 — 11,256,520  

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 2,268,880 (431,426) 2,272,441 (2,679,213) (556,147) 11,325,866 — 13,987,352  

F. ENDING CASH (A + E)  3,867,123 6,139,564 3,460,351 2,904,204 — — —  

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ACCRUALS AND
ADJUSTMENTS

       14,230,070  

https://CSIS
https://projection-pro.fcmat.org/projections/7246/reports


TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: VII.2. MONTHLY MEASURE S BOND PROJECT STATUS REPORT 
 INFORMATION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board receive and review a status report on the progress of authorized 

Measure S bond projects through October 6, 2020? 
 
BACKGROUND: As an ongoing tool to assist the Administration and Board in implementing 

and managing the District’s Measure S bond program and master plan, the 
Business Office, in conjunction with its construction management team, has 
produced the following monthly status report on the progress of authorized 
Measure S bond projects for the Board’s information and review. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: None - for information only. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None - for information only. 
 
Prepared by: Brendan Callahan, Director of Bond Programs, Sustainability, Maintenance & Operations  
 Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 



Oak Park Unified School District Printed 10/21/2020

Consolidated Budget Status Report
Budgets versus Commitments and Expenditures for multiple Projects

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 1 of 3 1 of 3

Budget vs. Commitments and Expenditures

Current Status  Project Comments
(current only) 

School/Project Name  Initial Budget  Approved Budget 
Changes 

 Proposed Budget 
Changes  Total Budget  Total Commitments  Remaining Against 

Budget  Total Expenditures  Remaining Against 
Commited 

 Measure S Management -                       -                       
Measure S General Architecture Planning Services 155,160           -                       -                       155,160           155,160           -                       155,160           -                       Complete CLOSED
Measure S District Salaries (3) 1,000,000        281,190           -                       1,281,190        1,086,563        194,627           849,435           237,128           Future
17-58S General Planning & Architectural Services (1) (3) (4) 90,821             29,400             -                       120,221           119,400           821                  101,952           17,448             Complete HED General Planning
Measure S Program Direct Software, Equipment & Su 251,000           -                       -                       251,000           210,946           40,054             210,342           604                  In Design IN PROGRESS
Measure S General CM Services-Balfour Beatty (3) 900,000           (475,437)          -                       424,563           374,793           49,770             374,793           -                       Future IN PROGRESS

 2,396,981       (164,847)         -                      2,232,134       1,946,863       285,272          1,691,682       255,180          
Brookside Elementary School -                       -                       

17-32S Security Fencing 99,940             (41,450)            -                       58,490             58,490             -                       58,490             -                       Future Phase-1 Complete/Phase-2 Future
17-42S Modernization Campus Wide 10,000             -                       -                       10,000             10,000             -                       10,000             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 09/15/17
17-47S Administration Building DSA Cert. (1) (3) (4) 1,302,493        87,763             -                       1,390,256        1,285,364        104,892           1,285,364        -                       Future IN PROGRESS
18-11S Design HVAC System Upgrade, BLDG 200 & 300 3,400               -                       -                       3,400               3,400               -                       3,400               -                       Complete CLOSED
18-18S Classroom Replacement(4) Phase 1 3,648,750        -                       -                       3,648,750        326,920           3,321,830        326,920           -                       In Design IN PROGRESS
19-28S Extend Shared Wall Room 216 11,200             -                       -                       11,200             11,200             -                       11,200             -                       Complete
19-30S Extend Height of Playground Fence 25,034             -                       -                       25,034             25,034             -                       25,034             -                       In Close-Out
20-17S Remove and Replace Foundation on Portable C (1) 46,571             1,212               -                       47,783             46,099             1,684               46,099             -                       Future
20-16S Innovation Lab BES (1) 47,200             -                       -                       47,200             47,200             -                       47,200             -                       Future

 5,194,587       47,525            -                      5,242,112       1,813,706       3,428,406       1,813,706       -                      
District Office -                       -                       

19-17S District Office Emergency Generator 65,625             -                       -                       65,625             22,640             42,985             13,390             9,250               In Design IN DESIGN
19-21S Upper Field Chain Link Fencing and Gates 12,416             -                       -                       12,416             12,416             -                       12,416             -                       In Close-Out

 78,041            -                      -                      78,041            35,056            42,985            25,806            9,250              
District Wide -                       -                       

17-49S Security Badge System Upgrade 9,586               -                       -                       9,586               9,586               -                       9,586               -                       Complete C APPROVED 11/21/17
17-01S Solar Project 7,000,000        120,121           -                       7,120,121        7,120,121        -                       7,120,121        -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 11/14/17
17-33S Ext. Campus Surveillance Cameras @ 6 Si 344,563           30,034             -                       374,597           374,597           -                       374,597           -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 11/14/17
17-39S Landscape Improvements 19,000             -                       -                       19,000             19,000             -                       19,000             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 09/15/17
18-22S Security Upgrades - PA System 14,669             -                       -                       14,669             14,669             -                       14,669             -                       Complete CLOSED
18-26S Collaborative Furniture 200,000           (15,412)            -                       184,588           184,588           -                       184,588           -                       Complete CLOSED
18-38S Extended Care Facility Furniture & Equipmen 100,000           (87,681)            -                       12,319             12,319             -                       12,319             -                       Complete IN PROGRESS
18-33S Solar Installation Maintenance Contract (1) (3) 256,055           -                       -                       256,055           153,633           102,422           120,761           32,872             Future IN PROGRESS
19-10S Collaborative Furniture 200,000           -                       -                       200,000           196,043           3,957               195,708           335                  Future
19-31S Security Raptor Software Districtwide 45,710             (343)                 -                       45,367             45,367             -                       45,367             -                       In Construction
20-04S Collaborative Furniture 101,671           -                       -                       101,671           102,802           (1,131)              38,663             64,139             Complete
20-10S Exterior Repairs to Portables at BES/MCMS 59,834             1,200               -                       61,034             61,034             -                       61,034             -                       Complete
20-21S Outdoor Furniture Purchases DW (1) (3) 90,374             -                       -                       90,374             53,468             36,906             44,407             9,061               Future

 8,441,461       47,919            -                      8,489,380       8,347,226       142,154          8,240,820       106,406          
King James Court -                       -                       

19-22S King James Court Debris Clearance 15,700             -                       -                       15,700             15,700             -                       15,700             -                       Complete
 15,700            -                      -                      15,700            15,700            -                      15,700            -                      
Medea Creek Middle School -                       -                       

17-23S Roof Replacement 83,000             (22,684)            -                       60,316             60,316             -                       60,316             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 08/15/17
17-24S HVAC Replacement 276,810           54,977             -                       331,787           331,787           0                      331,787           -                       Closed NOC APRROVED 08/15/17
17-36S Modernization Campus Wide 5,058               4,942               -                       10,000             10,000             -                       10,000             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 09/15/17
17-35S Kitchen Improvements 1,506,394        -                       -                       1,506,394        1,566,445        (60,051)            1,566,150        295                  Close-Out NOC APPROVED 1/23/19
18-03S Security Fencing Parking Lot   42,630             -                       -                       42,630             42,630             -                       42,630             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 05/17/18
18-07S Sidewalk and Handrail Installation, Buildin 26,937             -                       -                       26,937             26,937             -                       26,937             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 02/20/18
18-21S Classroom Replacement (1) (2) (3) 4,903,463        505,862           19,496             5,428,821        5,082,595        346,226           3,836,574        1,246,022        Future IN PROGRESS
18-25S MPR High Roof Replacement 160,135           -                       -                       160,135           165,457           (5,322)              165,457           -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 8/12/18
18-36S Library Wall Removal   3,500               -                       -                       3,500               3,500               -                       3,500               -                       Complete CLOSED

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 



Oak Park Unified School District Printed 10/21/2020

Consolidated Budget Status Report
Budgets versus Commitments and Expenditures for multiple Projects

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 2 of 3 2 of 3

Budget vs. Commitments and Expenditures

Current Status  Project Comments
(current only) 

School/Project Name  Initial Budget  Approved Budget 
Changes 

 Proposed Budget 
Changes  Total Budget  Total Commitments  Remaining Against 

Budget  Total Expenditures  Remaining Against 
Commited 

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 

18-39S Counseling Office Improvements & Additions 28,350             3,759               -                       32,109             35,459             (3,350)              35,459             -                       In Close-Out NOC APPROVED 04/23/19
18-40S Safety/Security Gates 89,827             -                       -                       89,827             89,827             -                       89,827             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 2/19/19
18-45S ORCA Food Waste Recycling Pilot Program 61,844             -                       -                       61,844             64,940             (3,096)              45,633             19,307             In Construction MAINT IN PROGRESS
18-48S EV Charging Station 17,794             -                       -                       17,794             17,794             -                       17,794             -                       Closed NOC APPROVED 4/23/19
19-05S Trellis Removal at MCMS 23,000             52,609             -                       75,609             75,609             -                       75,609             -                       Complete
19-15S Shade Sails at MCMS 55,850             4,995               -                       60,845             60,845             -                       60,845             -                       Completion
20-12S Renovate Lobby MCMS (1) (4) 19,808             899                  -                       20,707             20,707             -                       20,707             -                       Complete

 7,304,400       605,360          19,496            7,929,256       7,654,849       274,407          6,389,225       1,265,624       
Oak Hills Elementary School -                       -                       

17-25S HVAC Replacement 143,189           (3,352)              -                       139,837           133,652           6,184               133,652           -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 08/15/17
17-38S Modernization Campus Wide 15,000             -                       -                       15,000             15,000             -                       15,000             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 09/15/17
17-32S Security Fencing 50,000             (1,155)              -                       48,845             48,845             -                       48,845             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 10/17/17
19-09S/18-19S Add Modular Classrooms (1) (2) 358,700           54,717             54,800             468,217           215,220           252,997           215,220           -                       Close Out
19-02S Area Drain Improvements Rooms 8-11 13,640             (1,240)              -                       12,400             12,400             -                       12,400             -                       Closed NOC Approved 5/14/19
19-12F OHES Running Track 25,084             4,471               -                       29,555             29,555             -                       29,555             -                       Complete NOC 9-17-2019
19-13S OHES Fencing @ Park  (3) 135,042           0                      -                       135,042           120,691           14,351             120,517           174                  Complete
19-20S Kindergarten  Flooring Classrooms 19,223             -                       -                       19,223             19,223             -                       19,223             -                       In Close-Out
19-29S Extend Wall Between Conf/Copy Room 11,732             -                       -                       11,732             11,732             -                       11,732             -                       Complete
20-03S Innovation Lab OHES (1) (2) 65,731             -                       (575)                 65,156             65,156             -                       65,156             -                       In Construction

 837,340          53,440            54,225            945,006          671,474          273,532          671,300          174                 
Oak Park High School -                       -                       

17-34S Security Lighting at Cul De Sac 376,862           (93,728)            -                       283,134           283,134           0                      283,134           -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 09/19/17
17-28S Roof Replacement 125,000           (70,295)            -                       54,705             54,705             0                      54,705             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 08/15/17
17-27S HVAC Replacement 96,219             1,011               -                       97,230             97,230             0                      97,230             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 08/15/17
17-32S Security Fencing (Ornamental @ Stadium) 249,060           (50,226)            -                       198,834           139,864           58,970             139,864           -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 5/17/18
17-57S Safety Lighting 30,000             (5,109)              -                       24,891             -                       24,891             -                       -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 02/20/18
18-01S Football Field Fencing 56,370             -                       -                       56,370             56,370             -                       56,370             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 03/20/18
18-02S Fencing Girls Varsity Softball Field 42,885             -                       -                       42,885             42,855             30                    42,855             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 5/17/18
18-24S Safety Security Fencing @ Library & Gates 52,800             -                       -                       52,800             62,010             (9,210)              62,010             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 8/12/18
18-23S OPHS Stadium Safety Rail Repair 20,650             2,800               -                       23,450             23,450             -                       23,450             -                       Complete OC APPROVED 8/12/18
18-46S OPHS Stairs & Sidewalk-Athletic Facilities 117,838           4,245               -                       122,083           122,083           -                       122,083           -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 12/11/18
19-19S Art Court Phase II (1) 229,138           -                       -                       229,138           229,138           0                      217,771           11,367             Future
19-23S Tennis Court Resurfacing 44,084             -                       -                       44,084             44,084             -                       44,084             -                       In Close-Out
19-27S Repair Wood Columns @OPHS 19,655             -                       -                       19,655             19,655             -                       19,655             -                       Complete
20-05S Basketball Courts Resurfacing OPHS 20,052             -                       -                       20,052             20,052             -                       20,052             -                       Future
20-22S Economizers OPHS F Bldg. HVAC's (1) (4) 25,756             -                       -                       25,756             25,756             -                       25,756             -                       Future

 1,506,370       (211,302)         -                      1,295,067       1,220,386       74,682            1,209,018       11,367            
Oak Park Neighborhood School -                       -                       

19-08S OPNS Arch Svcs for DSA Certific (2) (3) 189,285           -                       274,054           463,339           30,453             432,886           30,453             -                       In Close-Out
 189,285          -                      274,054          463,339          30,453            432,886          30,453            -                      
Oak View High School -                       -                       

19-26S Reno Bldg Ext at OVHS 175,763           (763)                 -                       175,000           163,763           11,237             163,763           -                       Future
 175,763          (763)                -                      175,000          163,763          11,237            163,763          -                      
Red Oak Elementary School -                       -                       

17-37S Modernization Campus Wide 10,000             -                       -                       10,000             10,000             -                       10,000             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 09/15/17
17-32S Security Fencing 5,400               (1,540)              -                       3,860               3,860               -                       3,860               -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 08/15/17
18-20S Modular Classroom Replacement (1) (3) (4) 6,564,170        24,400             -                       6,588,570        597,323           5,991,246        498,312           99,011             Future IN PROGRESS
19-01S MPR Structural Repairs 37,849             (3,441)              -                       34,408             34,408             -                       34,408             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 3/19/19
19-14S ROES Phase 1 Safety/Security Fencing 148,440           (18,040)            -                       130,400           130,400           -                       130,400           -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 10/15/2019
19-16S ROES Phase 2 Safety/Security Fencing 75,873             0                      -                       75,873             69,615             6,258               69,615             -                       Completed NOC APPROVED 10/15/2019



Oak Park Unified School District Printed 10/21/2020

Consolidated Budget Status Report
Budgets versus Commitments and Expenditures for multiple Projects

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 3 of 3 3 of 3

Budget vs. Commitments and Expenditures

Current Status  Project Comments
(current only) 

School/Project Name  Initial Budget  Approved Budget 
Changes 

 Proposed Budget 
Changes  Total Budget  Total Commitments  Remaining Against 

Budget  Total Expenditures  Remaining Against 
Commited 

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 

20-11S Restoom Upgrades at ROES (1) (3) 86,466             -                       -                       86,466             86,298             168                  85,748             550                  Future
20-13S Paint Admin Interior 17,601             -                       -                       17,601             17,601             -                       17,601             -                       Complete
20-14S Flooring for Admin + 7 Classrooms 49,125             -                       -                       49,125             49,125             -                       49,125             -                       In Close-Out
20-15S Innovation Lab at ROES (1) 44,065             -                       -                       44,065             44,065             -                       44,065             -                       Future
20-18S Renovate Exteriors of Buildings B & C @ROES (1) (3) 80,050             -                       -                       80,050             -                       80,050             -                       -                       Future

 7,119,038       1,379              -                      7,120,417       1,042,695       6,077,722       943,135          99,560            
TECH -                       -                       

17-50S Next Gen CR/Flat Panel SMRT Display Pilot 35,000             1,532               -                       36,532             48,120             (11,588)            48,120             -                       Complete NOC APPROVED 02/01/18
18-12S Network File Server Refresh 125,000           -                       -                       125,000           124,500           500                  124,500           -                       In Progress IN PROGRESS
18-13S Purchase Staff Computers & Spare Device 55,000             -                       -                       55,000             37,272             17,728             37,272             -                       In Progress IN PROGRESS
18-14S Chromebook 1-to-1 Take Home Pilot 6 Grade 263,923           77,334             -                       341,257           218,114           123,143           210,136           7,978               In Progress IN PROGRESS
18-35S BES Chromebooks for Gr5 18,000             (794)                 -                       17,206             17,206             -                       17,206             -                       Complete Project complete
18-30S MCMS Library Computer Lab Refresh 47,000             -                       -                       47,000             37,106             9,894               37,106             -                       In Progress IN PROGRESS
18-31F 3-D Printers 31,500             -                       -                       31,500             26,882             4,618               26,882             -                       In Progress IN PROGRESS
18-28S DW Chromebook Refresh 250,000           -                       -                       250,000           209,943           40,057             209,943           -                       In Progress IN PROGRESS
18-29S Flat Panel Displays @ MCMS & OPHS 36,100             -                       -                       36,100             31,124             4,976               31,124             -                       In Progress IN PROGRESS
18-42S MCMS Computer on Wheels Laptops for Art Cla 30,000             (11,019)            -                       18,981             18,981             -                       18,981             -                       Complete PROJECT COMPLETE
18-43S DW Virtual Reality Pilot Program 6,000               -                       -                       6,000               5,148               852                  5,148               -                       In Progress IN PROGRESS
18-44S I-Pad Refresh of K-2 Totes 325,000           -                       -                       325,000           302,138           22,862             302,138           -                       In Progress IN PROGRESS
18-49F iMacs for Tech Lab MCMS 10,000             -                       -                       10,000             20,000             (10,000)            8,052               11,948             In Progress IN PROGRESS
19-03S Replace Smartboard Projectors 24,000             -                       -                       24,000             22,448             1,552               21,081             1,367               In Construction PROJECT APPROVED 2/19/19
19-04S District Refresh & Spare Computer Equipment 50,000             -                       -                       50,000             53,415             (3,415)              53,415             -                       In Construction PROJECT APPROVED 2/19/19
19-06S Promethean Smart Board Replacement at OHES 82,409             (1,180)              -                       81,229             81,229             -                       81,229             -                       In Close-Out IN CLOSEOUT
19-07F Chromebook 1:1 Take Home Prgrm Grds 5-12 670,000           121,266           -                       791,266           762,556           28,709             669,293           93,263             Out for Bid BOARD APPROVED 5/23/19
19-11S Ipad Air Refresh Part 2 243,400           7,935               -                       251,335           251,335           (0)                     251,335           -                       Complete BOARD APPROVED 6-4-19
19-24S Additional Security Cameras DW Phase 4 38,029             -                       -                       38,029             38,029             -                       38,029             -                       In Close-Out
20-01S Next Generation MacBook Pro Pilot Program (1) 20,451             -                       -                       20,451             20,451             -                       8,576               11,875             Future
20-02S Interactive Flat Panel Displays for Element 15,000             -                       -                       15,000             -                       15,000             -                       -                       Future
20-08S Apple iPad Air Refresh (1) 34,544             -                       -                       34,544             34,544             -                       34,544             -                       Future
20-09S District Network Firewall Refresh (1) 285,524           -                       -                       285,524           285,524           -                       285,524           -                       Out for Bid
20-19S Staff Laptop Refresh (1) 198,069           28,916             -                       226,985           226,985           -                       205,220           21,766             In Construction
20-20S Chromebook 1:1 Program (1) 333,436           -                       -                       333,436           333,436           -                       333,436           -                       Future
20-24S Oak Park High School Engineering Workstatio (1) 69,534             -                       -                       69,534             69,534             -                       69,534             -                       Future
20-25S Apple iPad Air Refresh Wave 3 (1) (3) 33,030             -                       -                       33,030             33,030             -                       795                  32,235             Future

 3,329,949       223,990          -                      3,553,939       3,309,049       244,890          3,128,618       180,431          
Totals 36,588,916     602,700          347,775          37,539,392     26,251,219     11,288,172     24,323,227     1,927,993       



 

 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: VII.3. MONTHLY GENERAL FUND BUDGET REPORT 
 INFORMATION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board receive and review a status report on District’s General Fund 

operating budget through September 30th  of the 2020-21 fiscal year? 
 
BACKGROUND: In order to better monitor and manage its General Fund operating budget, the 

District set as a goal establishing a system to provide monthly progress 
reporting to Board of operating costs for large categories of budget 
expenditures. In meeting that goal, the Business Office has produced monthly 
budget reports from the District’s financial system to serve as another tool to 
assist the both the Administration and Board in closely analyzing and 
managing the District’s General Fund operating budget.  

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None- for information only. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None - for information only. 
 
Prepared by: Byron Jones, Director, Fiscal Services 
 Adam Rauch, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 



Fund 01 Fiscal Year 2020/21 Through September 2020

REVENUE DETAIL
LCFF Revenue Sources
8011-8019 LCFF State Aid 26,930,635.00 26,930,635.00 5,729,753.00 21,200,882.00 21.28%
8020-8079 Property Taxes 11,933,223.00 11,933,223.00 108,846.41 11,824,376.59 0.91%

38,863,858.00 38,863,858.00 5,838,599.41 33,025,258.59 15.02%
Federal Revenues
8100-8299 Federal Revenues 1,006,772.00 1,006,772.00 1,027,764.00 20,992.00- 102.09%
Other State Revenues
8300-8599 Other State Revenues 1,259,020.00 1,259,020.00 682,067.62 576,952.38 54.17%
Other Local Revenue
8600-8799 Other Local Revenues 4,387,714.00 4,387,714.00 939,412.27 3,448,301.73 21.41%

45,517,364.00 45,517,364.00 8,487,843.30 37,029,520.70 18.65%

EXPENDITURE DETAIL
Certificated Salaries
1100-1199 Certificated Teacher Salaries 17,918,712.00 17,918,712.00 .00 3,763,737.23 14,154,974.77 21.00%
1160 Certificated Salaries Stipends 356,389.00 356,389.00 9,000.00 8,332.10 339,056.90 2.34%
1200 Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1,740,521.00 1,740,521.00 .00 353,530.27 1,386,990.73 20.31%
1260 Counselor Stipend 10,085.00 10,085.00 .00 .00 10,085.00 0.00%
1300 Certificated Supervisors' & Administrators' Salaries 1,994,959.00 1,994,959.00 .00 494,028.14 1,500,930.86 24.76%

22,020,666.00 22,020,666.00 9,000.00 4,619,627.74 17,392,038.26 20.98%

Classified Salaries
2100 Classified Instructional Salaries 2,488,921.00 2,488,921.00 .00 397,970.12 2,090,950.88 15.99%
2200 Classified Support Salaries 1,723,532.00 1,723,532.00 .00 394,683.88 1,328,848.12 22.90%
2300 Classified Supervisors' & Administrators' Salaries 343,547.00 343,547.00 .00 85,886.82 257,660.18 25.00%
2400 Clerical, Technical, & Office Staff Salaries 1,615,295.00 1,617,995.00 .00 381,986.76 1,236,008.24 23.61%
2900 Other Classified Salaries 841,624.00 841,624.00 .00 17,188.56 824,435.44 2.04%

7,012,919.00 7,015,619.00 .00 1,277,716.14 5,737,902.86 18.21%

Employee Benefits
3100 State Teachers' Retirement System 3,492,795.00 3,492,795.00 .00 703,933.71 2,788,861.29 20.15%
3200 Public Employees' Retirement System 960,514.00 961,073.00 .00 215,244.83 745,828.17 22.40%
3400 Health & Welfare Benefits 4,436,712.00 4,436,712.00 .00 901,983.21 3,534,728.79 20.33%
3300-3900 All Other Statutory Costs 1,230,872.00 1,231,116.00 .00 238,269.60 992,846.40 19.35%

10,120,893.00 10,121,696.00 .00 2,059,431.35 8,062,264.65 20.35%

Books and Supplies
4100 Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 236,529.00 278,874.00 69,021.00 291,077.90 81,224.90- 104.38%
4200 Other Books and Reference Material 32,073.00 22,983.00 6,774.75 20,383.17 4,174.92- 88.69%
4300 Materials & Supplies 580,605.00 514,731.00 322,120.09 197,623.44 5,012.53- 38.39%
4400 Noncapitalized Equipment 152,956.00 152,956.00 14,637.36 15,453.01 122,865.63 10.10%

1,002,163.00 969,544.00 412,553.20 524,537.52 32,453.28 54.10%

Actual Balance % Used

Total LCFF Revenue Sources  

Total Year To Date Revenues

Object Description Adopted Budget Revised Budget Encumbrance

Balance % Rec'd

Fiscal13a Financial Statement

Object Description Adopted Budget Revised Budget Revenue

Total Certificated Salaries

Total Classified Salaries

Total Employee Benefits

Total Books and Supplies



Fund 01 Fiscal Year 2020/21 Through September 2020
Fiscal13a Financial Statement

Services and Other Operating Expenditures
5200 Travel and Conference 61,542.00 62,082.00 6,125.00 2,035.85 53,921.15 3.28%
5300 Dues and Memberships 38,224.00 40,957.00 .00 37,893.23 3,063.77 92.52%
5400 Insurance 472,501.00 472,501.00 236,250.50 236,250.50 .00 50.00%
5500 Operations & Housekeeping Services 625,968.00 625,968.00 422,061.41 68,541.55 135,365.04 10.95%
5600 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, & Noncapitalized Improvements 331,485.00 349,235.00 177,463.24 43,885.80 127,885.96 12.57%
5700 Transfers of Direct Costs .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 0.00%
5800 Professional/Consulting Services & Operating Expenditures 1,532,722.00 1,571,142.00 690,383.06 346,799.70 533,959.24 22.07%
5899 Legal Fees 227,000.00 227,000.00 .00 33,148.75- 260,148.75 -14.60%
5900 Telephone and Communications 110,006.00 127,495.00 83,407.91 21,335.48 22,751.61 16.73%

3,399,448.00 3,476,380.00 1,615,691.12 723,593.36 1,137,095.52 20.81%

Capital Outlay
6000 Capital Outlay .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 0.00%

Tuition
7100 Tuition 446,703.00 446,703.00 128,000.00 9,100.00 309,603.00 2.04%

Debt Service
7438 Debt Service - Interest 8,771.00 8,771.00 6,578.52 2,192.84 .36- 25.00%
7439 Debt Service - Principal 49,300.00 49,300.00 36,974.94 12,324.98 .08 25.00%

58,071.00 58,071.00 43,553.46 14,517.82 .28- 25.00%
44,060,863.00 44,108,679.00 2,208,797.78 9,228,523.93 32,671,357.29 20.92%

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Other Financing Sources
8919 Other Authorized Interfund Transfer In .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 0.00%

.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 0.00%

.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 0.00%

OTHER FINANCING USES
Interfund Transfers Out
7611 From General to Child Development Fund .00 .00 .00 111,451.74 111,451.74- 0.00%
7612 Transfer General Fund to/from Special Reserve Fund .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 0.00%
7616 Transfer Between General Fund & Cafeteria Fund 50,000.00 50,000.00 .00 104,656.31 54,656.31- 209.31%

50,000.00 50,000.00 .00 216,108.05 166,108.05- 432.22%
50,000.00 50,000.00 .00 216,108.05 166,108.05- 432.22%

Description Adopted   Budget Revised     Budget Encumbrance

% Used

Actual Balance % Used

Adopted   Budget Revised     Budget Encumbrance Actual Balance

Total Interfund Transfers Out
Total Year To Date Other Financing Uses

Total Services and Other Operating Expenditures

Total Debt Service
Total Year To Date Expenditures

Object Description

Total Other Financing Sources
Total Year To Date Other Financing Sources

Object



Fund 01 Fiscal Year 2020/21 Through September 2020
Fiscal13a Financial Statement

Adopted Revised Actual Budget Balance

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
A.  Revenues 45,517,364.00 45,517,364.00 8,487,843.30 37,029,520.70 18.65%
B.  Expenditures 44,060,863.00 44,108,679.00 2,208,797.78 9,228,523.93 32,671,357.29 20.92%

C. Subtotal (Revenues LESS Expense) 1,456,501.00 1,408,685.00 740,680.63- 4,358,163.41
D. Other Financing Sources & Uses
Source .00 .00 .00 .00 0.00%
LESS Uses 50,000.00 50,000.00 216,108.05 166,108.05‐ 432.22%

E. Net Change in Fund Balance 1,406,501.00 1,358,685.00 956,788.68‐ 4,524,271.46
F. Fund Balance
Beginning Balance (9791) 725,328.00 725,328.00 1,105,097.01
Audit Adjustments (9793) .00 .00 .00
Audit Adjustments (9793) .00 .00 .00

Adjusted Beginning Balance 725,328.00 725,328.00 1,105,097.01

G. Calculated Ending Balance 2,131,829.00 2,084,013.00 148,308.33
*Components of Ending Fund Balance
Legally Restricted (9740)
Other Designations (9780)
Undesig/Unapprop (9790) 2,131,829.00 2,084,013.00
Other 2,208,797.78

Budget
Encumbrance

Actuals To Date
% of BudgetObject Description


	Agenda October 21_2020 1007
	B.1.a.1. Minutes of Regular Board Meeting 9-15-2020
	B.1.a.2. Minutes of Board Retreat Meeting 10_4_2020
	B.1.a.3. Minutes of Special Board Meeting 10_14_2020
	B.1.a.4. Minutes of Special Board Meeting 10_16_2020
	B.1.b.1. Classified Personnel Report 10_21_2020
	B.1.b.2. Certificated Personnel Report 10_21_2020
	B.1.c.1. Ratify PO Coversheet 10_21_2020
	B.1.c.2. PO Report 211 Option D - September 2020 10_21_2020
	B.1.d.1 Quarterly Williams Complaints 10_21_2020
	B.1.d.2. Quarterly Williams Report OPUSD 10_21_2020
	B.1.e.1. Cover Sheet Obsolete Text Books 10_21_2020
	B.1.e.2. OPUSD List of Obsolete Textbooks 10_21_2020
	B.2.a. Approve Resolution 2020-20 Refinancing_Refunding Bonds Coversheet 10_21_2020
	B.2.b.1. Approve Resolution 2020-21 Matching Funds for ROES Modulars Coversheet_10_21_2020
	B.2.b.2. Board Resoultion 2020-21 Beyond Bond Authority Modernization Projects at ROES 10_21_2020
	B.2.c.1. Approve Service Contract for District Security Camera System with Blue Violet 10_21_2020
	B.2.c.2. Blue VIolet Security Camera Maintneance Proposal - Avigilon 4 year 10_21_2020
	B.2.d. Approve Acceptance of Donation 10_21_2020
	B.3.a.1. Approve Revised GPA Designation on the OPHS Transcript 10_21_2020
	B.3.a.2. GPA Proposal - Remove UC_CSU and Cal Grant
	B.3.a.3. GPA Proposal Sample Transcripts 10_21_2020
	B.3.b.1. Approve addendum to Career Technical Education Incentive Grant MOU with VCOE 10_21_2020
	B.3.b.2. Addendum to CTEIG.MOU. with VCOE 10_21_2020
	B.4.a.1. Approve MOU with OPTA for Elementary Hybrid Model 10_21_2020
	B.4.a.2. ELEMENTARY Hybrid MOU OPTA - October 21, 2020
	B.4.b.1. Approve MOU with OPTA for Secondary Hybrid Model 10_21_2020
	B.4.b.2. SECONDARY of Hybrid MOU OPTA - October 21, 2020
	B.5.a.1 Approve Board Goals 2020-21 10_21_2020
	B.5.a.2. Board of Education Goals 2020-21
	B.5.b.1. 2020 Approve Governance Handbook 10_21_2020
	B.5.b.2. OPUSD Governance Handbook 2020 10_21_2020
	B.5.c.1. 2020 Moral Imperatives and Goals Evaluation and Review 10_21_2020
	B.5.c.2. OPUSD Moral Imperatives 2020-21 10_21_2020
	B.5.c.3. Oak Park USD Goals 2020-21 10_21_2020
	B.6.a.1. Amendment Board Policy and Exhibit 3555 Nutritional Program Compliance 10_21_2020
	B.6.a.2. BP 3555 Nutrition Program Compliance for Review 10_21_2020
	B.6.a.3. E 3555 Nutrition Program Compliance for adoption 10_21_2020
	B.6.b.1. Amendment Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5144.1 Suspension Expulsion Due Process 10_21_2020
	B.6.b.2. BP 5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion_Due Process for review 10_21_2020
	B.6.b.3. AR 5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion_Due Process for review 10_21_2020
	B.6.c.1. Amendment Approve amendment to Board Policy and Exhibit 5145.6 Parental Notifications 10_21_2020
	B.6.c.2. BP 5145.6 Parental Notifications for review 10_21_2020
	B.6.c.3. E 5145.6 Parental Notifications for review 10_21_2020
	B.6.d.1. Annual review Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5116.1 Intradistrict Open Enrollment 10_21_2020
	B.6.d.2. BP 5116.1 Intradistrict Open Enrollment reviewed 10_21_2020
	B.6.d.3. AR 5116.1 Intradistrict Open Enrollment reviewed 10_21_2020
	B.6.e.1. Annual Review 6145 Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities 10_21_2020
	B.6.e.2. BP6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities reviewed 10_21_2020
	B.6.e.3. AR6145 Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activites reeviewed 10-21-2020
	B.6.e.3. AR6145 Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activites reviewed 10-21-2020
	VII.1.1. Cash Flow Report Coversheet 10_21_2020
	VII.1.2. FY 2020-20201 Adopted Budget Cash Flow as of 9.30.2020
	VII.2.1. Measure S Bond Project Status Report_Coversheet 10_21_2020
	VII.2.2 AccountAbility Board Report 10-21-2020
	VII.3.1. Monthly General Fund Budget Report 10_21_2020
	VII.3.2. Fiscal13a - Financial Statement - Through September 2020



